
 

 

 
Date of issue: 22nd June, 2010  

 
  

MEETING  OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 (Councillors M S Mann (Chair), Haines, Bains, Bal, 

Basharat, Coad, Shine, O'Connor and Walsh) 
  
DATE AND TIME: THURSDAY, 1ST JULY, 2010 AT 6.30 PM 
  
VENUE: COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, BATH ROAD, 

SLOUGH 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

TERESA CLARK  
 
(01753) 875018 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 

 
RUTH BAGLEY 
Chief Executive 

 

NOTE TO MEMBERS 
This meeting is an approved duty for the payment of travel expenses. 

 
 

AGENDA 

 
PART 1 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 
 



 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 

 

 CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 
 

1.   Declaration of Interest 
 

  

 (Members are reminded of their duty to declare 
personal and personal prejudicial interests in 
matters coming before this meeting as set out in 
the Local Code of Conduct). 
 

  

2.   Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 7th June, 
2010 
 

1 - 6  

 SCRUTINY ISSUES 
 

3.   Financial Performance Reporting for 2009/10 
 

7 - 40 All 

4.   Unemployment and the response to the Economic 
Downturn 
 

41 - 74 All 

5.   Census 2011 Update- Presentation 
 

75 - 82 All 

6.   Carbon Management Plan- 2009/2014 
 

83 - 88 All 

7.   Member's Attendance Record 
 

89 - 90  

8.   Forward Agenda Plan 
 

91 - 102  

 
 
   

 Press and Public  

   
You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an 
observer. You will however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in 
the Part II agenda. Special facilities may be made available for disabled or non-English 
speaking persons. Please contact the Democratic Services Officer shown above for 
furthers details. 

 



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee – Meeting held on Monday, 7th June, 2010. 
 

Present:-  Councillors M S Mann (Chair), Haines (Vice-Chair), Bains, Bal, 
Basharat, Coad, Shine, O'Connor and Walsh. 

  

Also present under Rule 30:- Councillors Matloob, Parmar and Small. 

 
PART I 

 
1. Declaration of Interest  

 
Councillor Bal declared a personal interest as Members of his family were 
employed by Slough Borough Council. 
 

2. Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 7th April, 2010  
 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 7th April 2010 were approved as a correct 
record subject to the following addition:- 

Minute No. 83 – Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) update: 

The following comment was added under the discussion points raised by 
Members: 

• Some Members were concerned that NI 35, Preventing Violent 
Extremism, could create a stigma for the Muslim community. 

 
3. Appointment of Scrutiny Panels  

 
The Committee considered a report recommending the re-appointment of the 
four Overview and Scrutiny Panels for the 2010/11 Municipal year.  The Panel 
noted the seat allocations that had been calculated to reflect Political Group 
membership and statutory proportionality entitlement, which equated to five 
appointments to be offered to the Labour Group, two to the BILLD Group and 
two to the Conservative Group.  The Committee noted that the Chairs of the 
Panels would be offered to a Member of the Administration and it had been 
indicated that the 4 Vice-Chair positions would be offered to the Opposition 
Group.   
 
Details of the nominations received from the political groups were noted and 
the Committee was requested to appoint the four Scrutiny Panels and the 
Members nominated.  Details were also presented of the Co-opted Members 
for formal approval. 
 

Resolved –  

(a) That the Panels set out in paragraph 5.1 of the report be appointed 
for the 2010/11 Municipal year.   

(b) That the Committee note the allocation of seats to the Panels. 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - 07.06.10 

 

(c) That the Committee agree the allocation of Chairs and Vice Chairs of 
the Panels on the basis as set out in paragraph 5.3 of the report and 
that the Panels be invited to appoint their Chairs and Vice-Chairs at 
their first meeting accordingly. 

(d) That Members be appointed to serve on each of the Panels in 
accordance with the wishes expressed by Political Groups in respect 
of the seats allocated to them as set out in paragraph 5.4 of the 
report. 

(e) That the Co-opted Members as listed in paragraphs 5.5 and 5.6 of 
the report be appointed to the Education and Children Services and 
Neighbourhoods and Renewal Scrutiny Panels.   

 
4. Statement of Accounts and Outturn Position for 2009/10  

 
The Strategic Director of Resources outlined a report setting out the 
Statement of Accounts 2009/10, prior to its consideration by the Cabinet on 
14th June, 2010, and by an extraordinary meeting of the Council on 29th June, 
2010. The final outturn position on the budget was a surplus of £253k against 
a budget of £106m. The Director outlined the financial position of the Council 
in detail and advised that although this was a period of real challenge for 
Local Government, the Council was in a strong position to face challenges in 
public spending. 
 
On completion of the presentation Members asked a number of questions 
including the following:- 
 

• A Member asked whether the Council would achieve the 4% efficiency 
savings required by Government for the 3 year period to March 2011.  
The Deputy Director of Finance advised that this would be achieved 
because provision had been made for the additional 1% that was 
required in 2010/11.   

• A Member referred to the prudential borrowing and capital receipts and 
asked when the Council would be advised of the capital budget for this 
year.  The Deputy Director of Finance advised that the budget had 
been agreed in February and nothing had changed since then;  further 
details of the capital budget would be made available within the first 
monitoring report that would be available in July 2010. 

• In relation to the forthcoming budget on the 22nd June, a Member was 
concerned that local government cuts were anticipated which could 
affect the Council’s budget and she asked the Director to comment on 
this.  The Committee was advised that some funding was vulnerable 
but the Government would leave the decision on how cuts would be 
implemented to individual authorities.  More information would be 
available following the budget but the Cuncil was in a good position in 
that it had implemented a three year budget.  The monitoring report 
would be brought to the Scrutiny Committee. 

• A Member asked what implications the next census would have on the 
Council’s funding in view of past concerns regarding the inaccuracy of 
population statistics.  The Director advised that the formula for 
assessing the grant remained linked to population.  It was therefore 

Page 2



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - 07.06.10 

 

important to ensure full public participation in the census.  The 
Committee was also advised that there was no guarantee that the new 
grant allocation would be set over a three year period.   

• In relation to ‘earmarked reserves’, a Member noted that £285,000 was 
set against “Berkshire liabilities” and he asked what this was used for.  
The Deputy Director of Finance advised that this was a historic 
obligation arising from the demise of the Berkshire County Council, 
where each of the unitary authorities contributed an amount for  
outstanding risks.  

• A Member asked how the Council would be able to predict spending if 
the Government’s aim was to half the UK deficit over a 5 year period.  
The Director advised that the Council’s financial strategy would be 
extended from 3 to 5 years but this would very much be a moving feast 
and Officers would be required to make proposals for changes when  
necessary.   

 
Resolved – That the report be noted. 
 

5. Adult Participation in Sport and Physical Activity - National Indicator 8  
 
Andrew Stevens, Assistant Director, Learning and Cultural Engagement, 
outlined a report to update the Committee on the progress of work done to 
increase participation in sport and physical activity (NI 8) and seek its views 
on plans to address underperformance in this area.   
 
The Committee noted that NI 8 measured the number of people who took part 
in 30 minutes of sport and moderate physical activity for 30 minutes three 
times a week, and that the measure of activity was collected through a 
national telephone survey involving 500 individuals in each authority.  The 
Assistant Director highlighted that SBC would not be able to draw down 
allocated reward money through the Local Area Agreement if the agreed 
targets for NI 8 were not met.   
 
Slough’s performance in NI 8 was recorded at 16.1% in December 2009, 
having dropped from the previous base line of 19.4% and the Committee 
noted the detail of several initiatives which had been delivered to improve 
performance, including the provision of free swimming for targeted groups and 
the creation of an improvement action plan.  New initiatives that would be 
delivered during 2010/11 included a healthy workforce initiative for SBC staff, 
a Slough Community Leisure Open Weekend and a GP Healthy Walks 
Scheme.  The Improvement and Development Agency (IDeA) had worked 
with the Culture and Sports Team earlier in the year to develop and take 
forward its improvement action plan.  The IDeA had cited the plan as one of 
the best examples they had seen.   
 
The Officer concluded that much remained to be done to refine and 
strengthen the actions and local measures needed to meet targets and that 
the Council would continue to work with the key partners to encourage and 
develop further opportunities for access to sports and physical activity 
programmes that would impact on the whole community.  

Page 3



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - 07.06.10 

 

 
In the ensuing discussion Members raised a number of questions/comments 
as follows:- 
 

• A Member asked whether the Council had considered operating a 
health/ fitness scheme such as that operated by Nissan, whereby staff 
undertook a series of exercises at the beginning of their working day. 
The Head of Culture and Sports Delivery advised that whilst the 
Council had not considered carrying out an exercise scheme on this 
scale, consideration had been given, for example, to holding yoga 
classes in the Council Chamber at lunch times. 

• A Member asked whether the Council was providing cheaper rates and 
subsidies for swimming and football clubs etc, and felt that the Council 
should be focusing on communities where individuals undertook little 
physical activity,  often due to cultural barriers.  The Assistant Director 
advised that subsidies were not proposed at this stage but there were 
plans to encourage activity through marketing and the promotion of 
sporting activities.  Slough Community Leisure would be considering  
the provision of taster sessions to show residents what was available.  
A benchmarking exercise had shown that local prices for sporting 
activities were fair compared to other authorities.  The Head of Culture 
and Sports Delivery commented that many sports clubs were run by 
volunteers and recent legislation regarding the requirement for CRB 
checks had made it more difficult and expensive for clubs to recruit 
volunteers.  

• In relation to sporting facilities available within schools, a Member 
asked whether the Council was utilising these facilities, for example, 
the swimming facilities available at Beechwood School.  The Assistant 
Director advised that such facilities were used as far as possible and 
this would be researched further. 

• A Member questioned whether local parks such as Langley Park and 
Black Park were being sufficiently promoted by the Council as it was 
felt that people could be encouraged to use the facilities and increase 
their physical activity.  The Head of Culture and Sports Delivery  
advised that Salt Hill Park was a good example of this and a recent 
visit had shown that the park was being used well with evidence of 
informal cricket matches, football games and picnics taking place.   

• A Member felt that the provision of separate sessions for female 
members of ethnic communities would encourage the use of swimming 
facilities.   

• Several Members suggested that any advertisements or information 
regarding the promotion of health and physical activity should be 
posted at mosques and temples.  In this way the communities where 
there was often a problem in health and physical activity would be 
better targeted. 

• A Member referred to the closure of the Tennis Centre and was 
concerned that this decision would impact on the amount of physical 
activity.  The Assistant Director advised that a Tennis Development 
Programme had been put in place and was open to anyone who 
wanted to participate.  There would be eight outdoor courts which 

Page 4



 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee - 07.06.10 

 

would be of Lawn Tennis Association standard.  The tennis courts 
would be funded through the Ten Pin bowling activities on the site.  It 
was emphasised that there was a need to reach large numbers of the 
community and encourage new activities wherever possible and the 
availability of Ten Pin Bowling would contribute to this. 

• A Member was concerned that Britwell was losing 50% of its parks and 
there were no swimming, football or hockey facilities provided by the 
Council. He advised that the Britwell Parish Council arranged some 
football activities and it would be useful if the Officer contacted the 
Parish Council to explore what other activities the Parish could provide.   

 
It was agreed that the Committee would receive a quarterly update report 
on NI 8-Adult Participation in Sport and Physical Activity. 
 
Resolved – That the report be noted. 

 
6. Forward Agenda Plan  

 
The Forward Agenda Plan was circulated to Members.  The Scrutiny Officer 
advised that some Members had requested that the style of the regular 
performance report be changed and the Committee.  It was suggested, for 
example, that whilst the underlying report could still be produced, a one page 
summary should highlight the key ten positives and negatives, providing a 
simple overview of the main figures and itemising some possible quick fixes.  
It was agreed that the Scrutiny Officer would liaise with the Chair and discuss 
this with the relevant Officer. 
  
The work programme was revised to include a quarterly report on NI 8 – Adult 
Participation in Sport and Physical Activity. 
 
Resolved-  That the report be noted. 
 

7. Date of Next Meeting  
 
The date of the next meeting was noted- Thursday, 1st July, 2010. 
 
 

Chair 
 
 
(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.30 pm and closed at 8.10 pm) 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO:    Overview & Scrutiny     DATE: 1st July 2010

CONTACT OFFICER:  Julie Evans, Strategic Director of Resources (01753) 875300 
(For all enquiries Roger Parkin, Strategic Director of Improvement & Development 

(01753) 875207

WARD(S): All

PORTFOLIO: All

PART I
NON-KEY DECISION

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPORTING FOR 2009/10

1 Purpose of Report 

This report highlights the Council’s overall performance from delivery of service to 
financial management.  

The report covers the revenue and capital monitoring position to May 2010.

The report covers the performance information to year end of 31st March 2010 where 
available (many of the 09 - 10 year end returns have a calculation submission date of 
30th June and are therefore not ready for circulation).

2 Recommendation(s) / Proposed Action 

The Committee is requested to resolve:

a)  That the following aspects of the report be noted:

i.  Performance and Project management  
ii.  Financial performance – revenue and capital  
iii.  Treasury management position as at May 2010  

3 Key Priorities – Taking Pride in Slough and Making a Difference to 
Communities

The budget is the financial plan of the authority and as such underpins the delivery 
of the Council’s key priorities through the financial year.

Budget monitoring throughout the financial year reflects on whether those priorities 
are being met and, if not, the reasons why, so Members can make informed 
decisions to ensure the Council remains within its available resources.  

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 7



Community Strategy Priorities

This report indirectly supports the community strategy priorities.  The maintenance of 
excellent governance within the council to ensure it is efficient, effective and economic in 
everything it does is achieved through the improvement of corporate governance and 
democracy and by ensuring good people and management practices are in place 

4 Other Implications

(a) Financial
 These are contained within the body of the report. 

(b) Risk Management

5.1 Performance Management 

5.1.1 Balanced Scorecard performance Indicators: L27: % of staff with appraisal in place 

There have been 635 appraisals completed across the council for the rolling year to 11th

June 2010.  There was 1437 staff eligible for an appraisal in this period giving an overall 
appraisal rate of 44.2%. 

The drive to increase the appraisal completion rate is having a positive effect and the 
figures have improved significantly. The numbers in some Directorates have dropped 
slightly as the figures are currently measured over a rolling year, however, it is clear that 
a lot of work has been put in to completing appraisals and data cleansing. C&W in 
particular should be acknowledged for their hard work in reaching 62.4% completion from 
a low starting baseline. 

The new form and guidance have now been introduced and 5 workshops to assist 
managers with the new appraisal process have already taken place, with 47 people 
attending. E-learning modules on Performance Appraisal in Practice and Giving and 
Receiving Feedback have also been designed specifically to support the new process 
and access to the system is available from the Learning & Development Team. 

Table showing Appraisals by Directorate 31-Dec-2009, 09-Feb-2010, 12-Mar-2010, 21-May-2010 and 11-Jun-

2010Target 31-Dec-09 09-Feb-10 12-Mar-10 21-May-10 11-Jun-10 Variance between 31-Dec-2009 and 11-June-10
Whole Council 100% 27% 34% 37% 42% 44% +17%
Chief Executive 100% 29% 65% 74% 84% 68% +40%
Community & Wellbeing 100% 32% 36% 36% 51% 62% +31%
Education & Children's Services 100% 12% 11% 18% 30% 31% +19%
Green & Built Environment 100% 36% 57% 54% 46% 40% +4%
Improvement & Development 100% 55% 54% 55% 41% 40% -15%
Resources 100% 15% 33% 32% 45% 44% +29%

Page 2 of 34
Page 8



Actions to improve performance:

CMT have recommended that 2 further appraisal workshops are run during July and 
August and that all staff receive an email reminding them about the importance of 
appraisal, highlighting the available learning opportunities and encouraging them to 
speak to their manager if their review is overdue. 

5.1.2 Project Management Update 

Attached to this report (Appendix D) is a summary status of the Council’s identified ‘Gold’ 
projects. A confidence level has been assigned by the AD of Transformational Change, 
Policy and Performance based on how many key elements of the PRINCE2 process 
being in place and also includes information from the highlight reports received so far. 

Of the 10 projects currently on the Gold Register, 6 projects have a confidence level of 
Green.  Currently there are no projects assigned a confidence level of either Amber or 
Red. There are 4 new projects included where the confidence level has not yet been set. 

The confidence level is dependent upon the number of key elements of the process 
being in place: where there are less than 2 elements in place the project has been given 
a confidence level of RED, 2 elements in place means the confidence level is AMBER, 
more than 2 elements makes a project GREEN. 

5.1.3 Performance Monitoring Update 

The attached Slough LSP LAA 2009-2010 Performance Status and Improvement Report 
(Appendix E) provides an update on performance covering the period up to 31st March 
2010.  The LAA target set comprises of 44 indicators including 4 local targets on priority 
areas (based on NI's 124, 59, 32 and 187). These are linked to Slough's key local 
priorities.

Below is a summary of the RAG status for the 44 National Indicators as at 31st March 
2010.  At this stage it has not been possible to provide end of year figures for all the 
indicators as finalised results for some have yet to be released. 

Currently a RAG status can only be assigned to 25 of the 44 indicators.  The proportion 
of indicators categorised as Green is 30% whilst those classified as Amber is 2% and 
those classified as Red is 25%.   There are currently 13 indicators where the RAG status 
could not be allocated due to awaiting data/results to be released which equates to 30% 
and a further 6 indicators where targets were not set for 2009/10 which equates to 14%.

Green Amber Red
2009/10

Target not set

Awaiting Final 

Results

Total* 13 1 11 6 13

Percentage 30% 2% 25% 14% 30%

Rag Status

Page 3 of 34
Page 9



5.2 Financial Reporting 

Note that this report does not include the financial impact of information recently 
received in respect of the central governments in year funding reductions or the 

emergency budget announcement expected on 22nd June. 

5.2.1 The Council’s net revenue budget for 2010/11 is £103.9m. 

5.2.2 There is currently a projected breakeven position for 2010/11 although this is against a 
backdrop of pressures within directorates, but these are offset by action plans to ensure 
a year end break even position. However if pressures continue and mitigation action 
does not achieve a balanced budget position, this will be reflected to members as 
appropriate.

5.2.3 The position is summarised in Table 1, overleaf, and detailed in Appendix A. 

Table 1 - Projected as at 31st May 2010

Directorate

Current Budget
Projected 

Outturn

Variance Over 

/(Under) Spend
Change

Previously 

Reported

A B C = B - A

£'M £'M £'M £'M £'M

Community and Wellbeing 37.111 37.111 0.000 0.000 0.000

Education and Childrens Services 24.511 24.511 0.000 0.000 0.000

Green and Built Environment 25.984 25.984 0.000 0.000 0.000

Central Directorates 22.551 22.551 0.000 0.000 0.000

Corporate (0.083) (0.083) 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total Cost of Services 110.075 110.075 0.000 0.000 0.000

% of revenue budget over/(under) 

spent by Services
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Treasury Management 3.334 3.334 0.000 0.000 0.000

Contingencies & earmarked reserves 2.943 2.943 0.000 0.000 0.000

Area Based grant * (12.374) (12.374) 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total 103.979 103.979 0.000 0.000 0.000

% of revenue budget over/(under) 

spent in total
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

* Included in Directorate base budgets

6. Month on Month Movement in Variances 

6.1.Community and Wellbeing have reported an overall break even position at this stage 
although there are compensating variances that have arisen.  A net pressure against 
care packages of £98k is made up of an overall pressure from client placements of 
£312k offset by the inflation allocation of £292k as robust contract negotiations take 

Page 4 of 34
Page 10



place. A projected overspend of £137k on the internal adult residential homes and £68k 
on the Internal Home & Extra Care Services is offset by under spends on the Day Care 
Budgets of £172k. Savings across staffing budgets totalling £131k have arisen from 
vacancies and are net of anticipated advertising costs and agency cover. 

6.2.Education and Children’s Services are reporting an overall break even position 
although pressures have arisen due to client demand, but these are looked to be offset 
by compensating savings. The current level of spending in Children and Families mainly 
reflects the continuing rise in children in care. This has increased by 47 in the past year; 
and between January and April 2010 has increased from 153 to 180. Work carried out 
internally and by GOSE suggests that placements meet the thresholds for care and a 
high proportion of them are court directed. The higher demand has led to a greater use 
of external foster placements which are more expensive than Slough internal foster 
placements. The Directorate are undertaking immediate work to mitigate expenditure, 
including:  

 the instigation of a looked after children panel chaired by the Director or AD to make 
recommendations about placements, draw out themes which could help with 
preventive work, and enable partnership working. This has already resulted in some 
challenges to requests from external organisations (e.g. CAFCASS requiring foster 
care placements to be kept open for 12 weeks at a cost of £20k, CAMHS refusal to 
offer mental health input) and is imposing tight time scales on expensive short term 
placements.  

 an examination of the possibility of reducing the length of stay in care for children 
who could be returned home or moved onto alternative placements 

 the potential for reduction in some fostering payments.

The new Assistant Director for Children and Families started on 1st June and is currently 
examining further potential savings 

Green and Built Environment are reporting an overall break even position although 
pressures have arisen due to a shortfall in the indexation costs associated with a number 
of major contracts and although negotiations are on-going with contractors there is a risk 
of a significant shortfall. However, a number of other risks and opportunities have also 
been identified and these are outlined in more detail below. These, together with any 
other items to emerge during the financial year, will be kept under constant review as part 
of the ongoing monitoring process and are being looked to be offset by compensating 
savings.

6.3.The Central Directorates have reported an overall break even position with no 
significant variances at this stage of the year. This is pending the realignment of services 
within the Resources and the Improvement and Development directorates. 

6.4. Figure 1 below illustrates the monthly projected outturn positions over the last 5 years.  
This shows, by comparison, that the current projected position is a break even position 
at this early point of the year and that it is the lowest projected variance at this stage of 
the year. 

Page 5 of 34
Page 11



Figure 1 

Figure 1 Projected Outturn Variance Trends

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

Jul Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Cabinet Reports

£
'M

2010/11

2009/10

2008/09

2007/08

2006/07

7. Emerging Issues / Risks 

7.1. Although the headline position is showing a net projected break even position it is 
important to note that underlying pressures have been identified against which mitigating 
actions are being implemented and that there are emerging issues which may result in 
further pressures on this variance. The most significant of which that applies to all 
directorates across the council is the recent central government announcement 
indicating significant in year reductions to streams of grant funding.  At the time of 
writing this report the specific detailed implications are not included in this estimated 
outturn position.  These risks should not be underestimated and they should be seen as 
a significant factor in the council looking to achieve a year end break-even position and 
not pass porting pressures into future years. 

7.2.Community and Wellbeing: 

 The department faces the potential pressure arising from a new independent 
residential facility opened in Ragstone Road where clients placed in there  become 
ordinary residents and therefore a liability for the council.  To date there has been no 
application for ordinary residence and the department is in negotiations with the 
proprietors to reduce/eliminate this risk.  This area is being closely monitored and 
negotiations are ongoing with provider.  Further updates will be provided when these 
are available.

7.3.Education and Children’s Services: 

 The level of client activity within the looked after settings of the Children & Families 
division continues to be volatile as demand levels remain buoyant. 

7.4.Green and Built Environment:

 The economy remains a key risk for the directorate’s income as outlined within 
‘Volatile Areas/Demand Led’. 

Page 6 of 34
Page 12



 Climate change continues to impact on winter maintenance and subsequent repairs, 
flooding and grounds maintenance costs. Innovative measures to negate the impact 
are being sought. 

 Inflation remains a significant concern with a number of the Directorates major 
contracts linked to RPIX (currently at 4.8%) 

 Proposed changes to the Housing Revenue Account ring fencing may result in further 
costs and expenditure being charged to the General Fund rather than HRA. While this 
may not happen within 2010/11 it is likely that any legislative change will be 
enforceable from April 2011 and, therefore, needs to be included in the Directorates 
PPRG submissions.

 Effect of the Heart of Slough project on income from the Market Yard and Prudential 
Yard car parks. 

All of these risks will be closely monitored and the impact clearly identified and reported as 
and when it is clear they are likely to become a reality. 

7.5.Central Directorates:

 The current economic situation with regards to increasing pressure on Housing 
Benefits.

8. Emerging Opportunities 

8.1. Whilst departments face emerging issues as identified above there are also 
opportunities that may emerge to mitigate any adverse financial occurrences. Whilst 
reliance should not be placed upon them and thus caution should be taken it should be 
noted that if they come to fruition they could have a favourable impact on the overall 
council position. 

8.2.Community & Wellbeing 

None identified at this stage. 

8.3.Education & Children’s Services

Information has come to light from the DECS department that in respect of the rates paid 
to foster carers there may be an opportunity to reduce these in line with levels being paid 
by other local authorities. To implement this would require a consultation period of 3 
months and would deliver a part year saving in 2010-11. This opportunity is being 
explored and when the financial position is quantified it will be reported to members 
accordingly.

8.4.Green & Built Environment 

 Maximise external grant funding opportunities by using ‘Grant Finder’ software to 
locate new grants but should be noted against a backdrop of reducing government 
grant.

 Option appraisals on shared service arrangements relating to regulatory services and 
building control 

 The option appraisal on relocation opportunities for Wexham Horticultural nursery is 
to be revisited and updated as part of the 2011/12 budget build process. 

 Discussions  with neighbouring councils are taking place to develop initiatives to help 
bring down waste management costs

Page 7 of 34
Page 13



 Developing the Highways Asset Management Plan will support whole life costing 
methodology on road and pavement resurfacing methodology and provide better 
value for money

 Recovery of assets and money through proceeds of crime by using a financial 
investigator to assist in criminal investigations

8.5.Central Directorates 

 The re-alignment of Support Services will allow opportunities for savings across the 
current year to be implemented and so secure the full year effect in the next financial 
year.

9. Efficiency Savings 

9.1. As part of Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 (CSR07) announced in October 2007, 
the Government set a target for all of Local Government to achieve £4.9 billion in 
efficiency savings for the three year period to March 2011. This equated to 3% of the 
defined baseline expenditure.

9.2. At that time it was also reported that Government is to monitor the progress of individual 
Councils towards achieving the national efficiency targets. In order to facilitate this 
monitoring, Councils must submit information twice a year in respect of National 
Indicator 179 (NI179) which records ‘the total net value of ongoing cash releasing value 
for money gains that have impacted (i.e. a forward and backward look) since the start of 
the 2008/09 financial year. 

9.3. However since then, for the 2009 Budget, the Government stated that, as a contribution 
towards reductions in public expenditure, local authorities would be required to increase 
their planned 3% annual efficiency savings under the ‘Gershon Agenda’, by a further 1% 
in 2010/11, as referred to in paragraphs 5.20 and 5.21 of the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy report of 22nd February 2010. For Slough, this additional increase equates to 
approximately £1.3m. 

9.4. CMT are already aware that the council has achieved more than the first year target but 
needs to continue to monitor against the achievement of the overall 4% target. 

9.5. Current monitoring indicates surplus of £35k against the target set by the DCLG as can 
be seen in the table below. 

Page 8 of 34
Page 14



NI 179

Budget Forecast

£'000 £'000

Over Achievement of SR 04 gains 4,194      4,194        

Efficiency savings carried forward from 2008/09 2,047 2,047        

Efficiency savings carried forward from 2009/10 2,291 2,291        

Efficiency Savings included in 2010/11 Budget Build 2,846 2,796        

Withstanding Impact of Inflation 1,272 1,272        

Impact of Job Evaluation 2% held back 1,102 1,102

NI 179 13,752 13,702

Target 13,667 13,667

Indicative Over / (under) achievement 0.62% 0.26%

As at May-10

10. PPRG Proposals 

10.1.To provide members with additional assurance that the recommendations around 
savings and growth agreed during the 2010/11 budget build process have been achieved 
a full list of growth and savings is attached as Appendix B to this report but an overall 
summary by department is shown in the following table; 

Departmental Growth & Savings Analysis 2010-11
Department Growth Proposals Savings Proposals

Target Estimated Variance Status Target Estimated Variance Status

Outturn Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Community & Wellbeing 940 940 0 GREEN -1,232 -1,232 0 GREEN

Education & Children's Services 959 959 0 GREEN -1,333 -1,333 0 GREEN

Green & Built Envronment 103 103 0 GREEN -281 -281 0 GREEN

Resources 130 130 0 GREEN -461 -461 0 GREEN

Improvement & Development 70 70 0 GREEN -655 -655 0 GREEN

Chief Executive 0 0 0 GREEN -89 -89 0 GREEN

Corporate 1,723 1,723 0 GREEN -1,440 -1,440 0 GREEN

Total 3,925 3,925 0 GREEN -5,491 -5,491 0 GREEN

11. Treasury Management 

11.1.Despite the Bank of England base rate remaining at 0.50% since 5th March 2009 and the 
current 3 month money market rate averaging around 0.70%, it is currently forecast that 
the treasury management investment income target of £1.1M for 2010-11 will be 
achieved, partly due to decisions taken 3 years ago to place part of the investment 
portfolio on deposit for longer than 1 year. This was done to mitigate forecast reduction in 
future interest rates. Subject to the capital programme spending profile and the general 

Page 9 of 34
Page 15



cash flow movements including receipt of grants and realisation of capital receipts, it is 
possible that the investment target may be slightly exceeded. This will be kept under 
review and reported at a later date. 

11.2.The Council’s deposit with Heritable Bank including the accrued interest to the date of 
Administration (October 2008) amounted to £2.579M. The latest report from the 
Administrators indicates an improved recovery rate from maximum 80% to 85%. To-date 
£902K has been repaid by the Administrators. Estimated £500K is expected to be repaid 
during 2010-11 with further repayments expected in 2011-12 and 2012-13.

11.3.The key Prudential Indicator included within the approved treasury management strategy 
is that of “Authorised Borrowing Limit” which under the Local Government Act 2003 must 
not be breached. The actual long term borrowing outstanding as at 10th June 2010 is 
£69.5M compared to approved limit (excluding PFI) of £96.0M. 

11.4.Investment deposits outstanding as at 10th June 2010 compared to individual counter 
party limits are set out below. The credit ratings as measured by Fitch Ratings and 
Moody’s Ratings are also summarised in the following table; 

RATINGS DEFINITIONS Fitch Moody’s 

 Long 
Term

Short
Term

Long
Term

Short
Term

Extremely Strong Grade AAA F1+ Aaa P-1 

Very Strong Grade AA+/AA- F1+ Aa1/Aa3 P-1 

Strong Grade but susceptible to 
adverse conditions 

A+/A- F1+/F2 A1/A3 P-1/P-2

Adequate Grade BBB+/- F2/F3 Baa1/3 P-2/P-3 

Speculative Grade to Vulnerable and 
Default

BB+ to
D

B to 
D

NP(Not
Prime)

BB+ to 
D

Page 10 of 34
Page 16



DEPOSITS OUTSTANDING AS AT 10th June 2010

Approved Counter Party Sovereign 

Risk

Approved 

Limit (£)

Deposit 

O/Stand

LT ST LT ST

BANKS

Santander Group UK AA- F1+ Aa3 P-1 25,000,000 4,400,000

Llloyds Banking Group £25M

 - Bank of Scotland UK AA- F1+ Aa3 P-1 12,500,000 8,834,000

 - Lloyds Bank UK AA- F1+ Aa3 P-1 12,500,000 12,500,000

Barclays Bank UK AA- F1+ Aa3 P-1 25,000,000 0

Clydesdale Bank UK AA- F1+ A1 P-1 10,000,000 0

Co-op Bank UK A- F2 A2 P-1 15,000,000 15,000,000

Heritable Bank 1,800,000 1,597,991

HSBC UK AA- F1+ Aa2 P-1 10,000,000 0

Northern Rock UK A+ F1+ A2 P-1 10,000,000 3,000,000

Royal Bank of Scotland UK AA- F1+ Aa3 P-1 25,000,000 24,195,000

Svenska Handelsbanken SWE - AAA AA- F1+ Aa2 P-1 10,000,000 0

UK Debt Mangt Office 0

Sub Total 69,526,991

Building Socities

Nationwide Group UK AA- F1+ Aa3 P-1 25,000,000 2,000,000

Coventry BS UK A F1 A3 P-2 10,000,000 8,700,000

Leeds BS UK A F1 A2 P-1 10,000,000 3,000,000

Sub Total 13,700,000

Counter Parties No Longer on the 

Approved Lists - Deposits Placed 

before June 2009

Yorkshire / Chelsea BS UK A- F2 Baa1 P-2 0 4,000,000

Total Deposits 87,226,991

In addition to above deposit limits, the Council may invest £10M in Gilts.

Deposits in UK based foreign banks limited to 30% of total Deposits.

Fitch Moody's

11.5.The Council’s treasury management activity for the period 1st April to 10th June 2010 has 
been carried out within the limits and parameters set in the agreed treasury management 
policy statement. 

12. Capital 

12.1.The overall council capital programme is £71.02m. This report looks to provide CMT with 
an update of the top 20 schemes valued at £55.18m (78%) of the total programme which 
are Attached as Appendix C to this report. 

12.2.The Deputy Director of Finance (DDF) would suggest, based on past performance, that 
the full level of the capital programme will not be spent in 2010/11. Even putting aside the 
Heart of Slough project valued at £21.3m that would leave £50m to spend on other 
projects. This figure is 67% above the c.£30m outturn achieved in 2009/10. Thus a review 
of the capital programme has been initiated by the DDF via the Asset Management Group 
to look to ascertain further re-profiling and the actual need for all projects. This review is 
also looking at the revenue implications and the actual viability for the council when 
compared to the in year potential budget pressure that will be directed by Government. 

Page 11 of 34
Page 17



13.  Conclusion 

13.1 The position as at the end of May 2010 leaves an overall headline breakeven position 
for the Authority.

13.2 The capital programme for 2010/11 to 2016/17 needs to be reviewed for suitability and 
value for money.

14. Appendices 

Appendix A –  Summary Variance Analysis for period ended 31st May 2010. 

Appendix B – Departmental Growth Analysis 2010 - 11 

Appendix C –  General Fund Capital Programme 2010/11 to 2016/17 

Appendix D –  Gold Projects – Updated 21/6/2010 

Appendix E –  Slough LSP LAA 2009 – 10 Performance status and improvement Report – 
March 2010. 

Page 18



Appendix A 
Summary Variance Analysis 

For the Period Ended:  31st May 2010 

Community & Wellbeing 

Service Area 
Total

Variance
£’000

Explanation 

Care Packages 98 

New this month: The position for this area has worsened slightly 
by £9k compared to our initial forecast of £293k was identified and 
reported at the SMT Awayday, making a total revised pressure of 
£312k.  This continues to assume that budget savings for this 
service area totalling £300k will be delivered in full.  £214k of this 
pressure can be ”set off” against the a share of the unallocated 
budget for price inflation of £292k as robust contract negotiations 
take place, leaving a net pressure of £98k. 

Internal Services 33

New this month: This is the net effect of the projected overspend 
of £137k on the internal adult residential homes and £68k on the 
Internal Home & Extra Care Services (both due to staff cost 
pressures) being offset by projected underspends on the Day Care 
Budgets of £172k (due to staff costs savings).  

Staffing Budgets -131

New this month: The latest analysis of permanent and temporary 
staff costs across the department (except those included in Internal 
Services above) shows that an underspend of £131k is projected.  
This is due to vacancies in several areas but mostly in the social 
work teams. This forecast is net of planned recruitment and 
advised agency cover. 

Total Variance 0

Page 13 of 34
Page 19



Appendix A (Cont.) 

Education & Childrens Services 

Service Area Total
Variance

£’000

Explanation 

Children & families 0 New this month: The current level of spending in Children and 
Families mainly reflects the continuing rise in children in care. This 
has increased by 47 in the past year; and between January and 
April 2010 has increased from 153 to 180. These pressures are 
looked to be offset by compensating savings. 

Youth 0 No significant variances at this point in time.  

Inclusion 0 No significant variances at this point in time.  

Raising Achievement 0 No significant variances at this point in time.  

Strategy, Information 
and resources 

0 No significant variances at this point in time.  

TOTAL 0 Total Variance 

Page 14 of 34
Page 20



Appendix A (Cont.) 

Green & Built Environment 

Service Area Total 
Variance

£’000

Explanation 

Resources & Business 
Support 

0 No significant variances at this point in time.   

Environment Services 
& Quality 

0 New this month: Overall net impact of RPIx 4.8% indexation on 
Environmental Services Contract, although negotiations are on-
going with contractors there is a risk of a significant shortfall. This 
together with any other items to emerge during the financial year, 
will be kept under constant review as part of the ongoing 
monitoring process and are being looked to be offset by 
compensating savings. 

Public Protection 0 No significant variances at this point in time.  

Transport & Planning 0 No significant variances at this point in time.  

Housing Strategy & 
Renewal 

0 No significant variances at this point in time.  

Total 0 Total Variance 

Page 15 of 34
Page 21



Appendix A (Cont.) 

Central Directorates 

Service Area Total 
Variance

£’000

Explanation 

Chief Executive 0 No significant variances at this point in time.   

Resources 0 No significant variances at this point in time.  Pending the re-
alignment of Support Services. 

Improvements & Developments 0 No significant variances at this point in time.  Pending the re-
alignment of Support Services. 

 0 Total Variance 

Page 16 of 34
Page 22



Depatmental Growth Analysis 2010-11 Appendix B
Proposal Title Growth Growth Growth Actual Variance Estimated Status

Type Agreed Expected Growth to date Total

to be Spent Variance

Spent to date

A B C C-B B-A

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

EDUCATION & CHILDREN'S SERVICES

Contact Service Demand Led 50 50 8 (42) 0 GREEN

Joint Arrangement - Joint Legal Team Demand Led 72 72 12 (60) 0 GREEN

Adoption Advisory Service Demand Led 46 46 8 (38) 0 GREEN

Placement Budgets Demand Led 580 580 97 (483) 0 GREEN

Building Schools for the Future Demand Led 161 161 27 (134) 0 GREEN

Youth Service opening hours Legislative 50 50 8 (42) 0 GREEN

Total ECS 959 959 160 (799) 0

COMMUNITY & WELLBEING

Demand Led Care Packages - actual 

commitments

Demand Led 57 57 10 (48) 0 GREEN

Reprovide budget for Langley Resource 

Centre

Contractual 200 200 33 (167) 0 GREEN

Slough Deaf Centre Policy Initiatives 20 20 3 (17) 0 GREEN

2 Reviewing officers to reduce care 

packages

Service Development 80 80 13 (67) 0 GREEN

Project Manager to achieve service 

redesign

Service Development 75 75 13 (63) 0 GREEN

2 Care Managers - CMHT Service Development 70 70 12 (58) 0 GREEN

CHC Worker Service Development 50 50 8 (42) 0 GREEN

Mobile Working Service Development 6 6 1 (5) 0 GREEN

Demand Led Care Packages Demand 357 357 60 (298) 0 GREEN

Library Opening Hours (part of Library 

Review)

Service Development 50 50 8 (42) 0 GREEN

Extra Care Housing Service Development (40) (40) (7) 33 0 GREEN

Reprovision of Central Library (Invest to 

Save)

Service Development 15 15 3 (13) 0 GREEN

Total CWB 940 940 157 (783) 0

GREEN & BUILT ENVIRONMENT

Civil Parking Enforcement Demand Led 30 30 5 (25) 0 GREEN

Animal warden Demand Led 17 17 3 (14) 0 GREEN

Stray Dogs legislation( out of hours) Demand Led 12 12 2 (10) 0 GREEN

Ongoing pressures from current year (net) Demand Led 170 170 28 (142) 0 GREEN

Joint Arrangements - Registrars Service Contractual 10 10 3 (7) 0 GREEN

Pest Control service Contractual 5 5 1 (4) 0 GREEN

Neighbourhood coordination (NOTE A) Policy Initiatives 30 30 5 (25) 0 GREEN

Licensing - Private Hire Operators Policy Policy Initiatives 10 10 3 (7) 0 GREEN

Loss of Workstep Subsidy (Wexham 

Nursery)

Policy Initiatives 9 9 9 0 0 GREEN

Parks & Open Spaces Demand 35 35 6 (29) 0 GREEN

Landfill Waste Service Development (325) (325) (54) 271 0 GREEN

Youth Transport Provision (NOTE A) Service Development 100 100 17 (83) 0 GREEN

Total GBE 103 103 28 (75) 0

RESOURCES

Borough Secretary Legislative 20 20 (20) 0 GREEN

Commercial Rents Demand Led 110 110 (110) 0 GREEN

Total Resources 130 130 0 (130) 0

IMPROVEMENT & DEVELOPMENT

Economic Development & Inclusion Demand Led 70 70 (70) 0 GREEN

Total I & D 70 70 0 (70) 0

CORPORATE

Funding of Future Capital Borrowing Demand Led 0 0 0 0 GREEN

Other Member Priorities Demand Led 0 0 0 0 GREEN

Funding Capital Programme & MRP Policy Initiative 1,150 1,150 (1,150) 0 GREEN

Treasury Management Policy Initiative 523 523 (523) 0 GREEN

Council Wide Growth Demand 0 0 0 0 GREEN

Discretionary Tax Relief Pressure Demand 50 50 (50) 0 GREEN

Total Corporate 1,723 1,723 0 (1,723) 0

TOTAL GROWTH 3,925 3,925 345 (3,581) 0

Page 17 of 34
Page 23



Departmental Savings Analysis 2010-11 Appendix B
Proposal Title Savings Saving Saving Actual Variance Estimated Status

Type Agreed Expected Savings to date Total

to be Achieved Variance

Achieved to date

A B C C-B B-A

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

EDUCATION & CHILDREN'S SERVICES

Out of Authority Placements - Children with

Disability

Efficiency (50) (50) (8) 42 0 GREEN

Home To School  Contract re-negotiation Efficiency (200) (200) (33) 167 0 GREEN

Utilise Extended Schools ABG grant Efficiency (93) (93) (93) 0 0 GREEN

Rationalisation of Adoption and Fostering Services Efficiency (55) (55) (9) 46 0 GREEN

Inclusion 2 % Efficiency Efficiency (61) (61) (10) 51 0 GREEN

Delete vacant post -Primary Strategy Manager Service Reduction (73) (73) (73) 0 0 GREEN

Review of Behaviour & Attendance support Service Reduction (236) (236) (236) 0 0 GREEN

Review funding across Children's Fund  Service Reduction (200) (200) (33) 167 0 GREEN

Non-renewal of Fixed Term Contracts - Improving

Schools Prog Posts

Service Reduction (69) (69) (69) 0 0 GREEN

Reduction to part time 14 - 19 Advisor Service Reduction (23) (23) (23) 0 0 GREEN

School Improvement Restructure Service Reduction (175) (175) 0 175 0 GREEN

Non devolvement of Standards Funds Service Reduction (40) (40) (7) 33 0 GREEN

Reduction in Admin Support Service Reduction (28) (28) (28) 0 0 GREEN

Primary School Admissions Service Reduction (30) (30) (5) 25 0 GREEN

Total DECS (1,333) (1,333) (628) 705 0

COMMUNITY & WELLBEING

Extend Call Monitoring System Efficiency (24) (42) 0 42 (18) GREEN

Adult Services Restructure Efficiency (20) (20) 0 20 0 GREEN

Restructure of Community Services Efficiency (110) (110) (52) 58 0 GREEN

Value for Money Review of Meals on Wheels Efficiency (32) (14) (3) 11 18 GREEN

Invest to save to increase flexible sessional tutor

hours and reduce admin and teaching costs in

lifelong learning

Efficiency (16) (16) 0 16 0 GREEN

Reduced use of Agency Staff Efficiency (100) (100) 0 100 0 GREEN

Reprovision of Central Library Efficiency (130) (130) (22) 108 0 GREEN

Adult Social Care Transformation Efficiency (50) 0 0 0 50

Continue to provide alternative care to further

enhance  independent living

Service Reduction (200) (295) 0 295 (95)

Value For Money  Review of  respite income Additional Income (50) (5) 0 5 45

Completion of the reprovision of  Newbeech Demography (465) (465) (465) 0 0 GREEN

Delete Social Work Post - CSWT Service Reduction (35) (35) 0 35 0 GREEN

Total CWB (1,232) (1,232) (541) 691 0

GREEN & BUILT ENVIRONMENT

Parks Maintenance Efficiency (55) (55) (9) 46 0 GREEN

Recharges to HRA/Capital Efficiency (20) (20) (3) 17 0 GREEN

Recharge to HRA Efficiency (20) (20) (3) 17 0 GREEN

Grounds Maintenance (S.106 funds) Efficiency (50) (50) (10) 40 0 GREEN

Travel Plan Efficiency 25 25 25 0 0 GREEN

Highways Maintenance Efficiency 250 250 42 (208) 0 GREEN

Housing Lettings Scheme Contractual Negotiation (50) (50) (12) 38 0 GREEN

Concessionary Fares contract neg Contractual Negotiation (100) (100) (100) 0 0 GREEN

Traders in Parks Income Additional Income (10) (10) 0 10 0 GREEN

Sale of Trade Waste Collection service Additional Income (100) (100) 0 100 0 GREEN

Small Traders' waste pass Additional Income (25) (25) 0 25 0 GREEN

Reduce Transport Management consultancy Service Reduction (20) (20) (20) 0 0 GREEN

Delete vacant Transport Engineer post Service Reduction (46) (46) (46) 0 0 GREEN

Heart of Slough planning support-reduce

consultancy support

Service Reduction (50) (50) (50) 0 0 GREEN

Bulky Waste - review of charges Additional Income (10) (10) (2) 8 0 GREEN

Total GBE (281) (281) (188) 93 0

RESOURCES

Reduction in Training / consultancy Budge Efficiency (29) (29) (5) 24 0 GREEN

Review of Property Services (should be a B

saving)

Efficiency (50) (50) (8) 42 0 GREEN

 Efficiency 40 40 7 (33) 0 GREEN

Centralisation of the Finance Service Efficiency (211) (211) (211) 0 0 GREEN

HR & Payroll - Review of Service (move to A) Service Reduction (100) (100) (17) 83 0 GREEN

Value for Money review  IST Service Reduction (50) (50) (40) 11 0 GREEN

VFM review of legal services Service Reduction (61) (61) (10) 51 0 GREEN

Total Resources (461) (461) (284) 178 0

GREEN

Page 18 of 34
Page 24



Departmental Savings Analysis 2010-11 Appendix B
Proposal Title Savings Saving Saving Actual Variance Estimated Status

Type Agreed Expected Savings to date Total

to be Achieved Variance

Achieved to date

A B C C-B B-A

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

IMPROVEMENT & DEVELOPMENT

Part time voluntary staff reduction within Comm'g,

Procurement & LGSS

Efficiency (20) (20) (3) 17 0 GREEN

Economic Development & Inclusion - reduction in

voluntary sector contributions and increased grant

utilisation

Efficiency (52) (52) (9) 43 0 GREEN

Reduction in Admin within Corporate & Specialist

Training Team-vacancy

Efficiency (15) (15) (3) 12 0 GREEN

More effective procurement providing VFM across

Training Budgets

Efficiency (37) (37) (6) 31 0 GREEN

Customer Service Centre - Housekeeping

Efficiencies

Efficiency (20) (20) (3) 17 0 GREEN

Vacant Performance Officer post Efficiency (30) (30) (5) 25 0 GREEN

Econ Rev - Removal of grant Efficiency (40) (40) (7) 33 0 GREEN

Sustainability - reduce energy consumption Efficiency (25) (25) (4) 21 0 GREEN

Procurement Savings Efficiency (50) (50) (8) 42 0 GREEN

Housing Benefits improved accuracy Additional Income (50) (50) (8) 42 0 GREEN

Delete vacant post -Policy Officer Service Reduction (30) (30) (5) 25 0 GREEN

Benefits - Recovery of Overpayments (add'l

income)

Additional Income (20) (20) (3) 17 0 GREEN

Procurement /CSC - reduction in cost of Siebel

Support

Contractual Negotiation (105) (105) (18) 87 0 GREEN

Revenues (Increase in court cost charges) Additional Income (28) (28) (5) 23 0 GREEN

Revenues (restructure of service) tbc Service Reduction (57) (57) (10) 47 0 GREEN

Specialist Training Service Reduction (76) (76) (13) 63 0 GREEN

Total I & D (655) (655) (110) 545 0

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Executive's Office - Remodel service delivery-

delete vacant post elsewhere

Efficiency (16) (16) (3) 13 0 GREEN

Subscriptions Cancellations - LGA Efficiency (40) (40) (7) 33 0 GREEN

Comm citizen/ corp projects Service Reduction (5) (5) (1) 4 0 GREEN

Comms - reduce staffing Service Reduction (28) (28) (5) 23 0 GREEN

Total CEX (89) (89) (16) 73 0

CORPORATE

Treasury Management / Capital Re-profiling / OtherEfficiency (1,440) (1,440) (240) 1,200 0 GREEN

Total Corporate (1,440) (1,440) (240) 1,200 0

TOTAL SAVINGS (5,491) (5,491) (2,007) 3,484 0

Analysis  by Type

Efficiency (2,846) (2,796) (703) 2,093 50

Service Reduction (1,632) (1,727) (691) 1,037 (95)

Additional Income (293) (248) (18) 230 45

Demography (465) (465) (465) 0 0

Contractual Negotiation (255) (255) (130) 125 0

TOTAL SAVINGS (5,491) (5,491) (2,007) 3,484 0

Page 19 of 34
Page 25



C
O

S
T

A
c

tu
a

ls
E

s
ti

m
a

te
Y

T
D

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
s

ti
m

a
te

E
s

ti
m

a
te

C
E

N
T

R
E

D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

 A
N

D
 S

C
H

E
M

E
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

2
0

0
9

/2
0

1
0

2
0

1
0

/2
0

1
1

2
0

1
0

/2
0

1
1

2
0

1
0

/2
0

1
1

2
0

1
1

/2
0

1
2

2
0

1
2

/2
0

1
3

2
0

1
3

/1
4

2
0

1
4

/1
5

2
0

1
5

/1
6

2
0

1
6

/1
7

T
o

ta
l

L
a

s
t 

Y
e

a
r

U
p

d
a

te
d

C
O

D
E

M
a

y
-1

0
M

a
y
 2

0
1

0
M

a
y
 2

0
1

0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
P

8
6

9
C

h
a

lv
e

y
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 (
p

re
v
. 

N
e

w
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 a
t 

T
V

C
C

 s
it
e

) 
8

8
9

6
2

2
-9

6
0

4
,2

1
0

1
,2

9
0

0
0

0
0

6
,5

5
0

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
8

5
5

W
e

s
tg

a
te

 E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
  

(T
C

F
)

9
5

2
4

,1
2

8
3

7
-4

,0
9

1
5

3
1

0
0

0
0

0
5

,6
1

1

P
8

6
6

W
e

x
h

a
m

 C
o

u
rt

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 (

P
C

P
2

)
1

2
8

3
,8

7
2

3
5

-3
,8

3
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
,0

0
0

P
6

6
4

B
a

y
lis

 C
o

u
rt

 -
 B

u
ild

in
g

 a
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 F

u
tu

re
 P

h
a

s
e

 1
(F

)
6

5
4

3
,7

6
2

4
0

3
-3

,3
5

9
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

,5
1

6

P
8

8
7

P
ri
m

a
ry

 E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 -

 L
e

a
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l
4

2
8

3
,7

2
2

2
4

1
-3

,4
8

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

,2
5

0

P
0

4
8

W
e

s
te

rn
 H

o
u

s
e

 E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 P

ro
je

c
t

7
3

,0
1

3
2

6
-2

,9
8

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
3

,0
2

0

P
8

8
5

/P
8

6
5

P
a

rl
a

u
n

t 
P

a
rk

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
n

e
t 

(P
C

P
1

)
1

2
7

2
,8

7
3

9
5

-2
,7

7
8

1
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

,0
0

0

P
7

8
3

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 D

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 C

a
p

it
a

l
4

,2
0

8
2

,6
5

7
3

4
-2

,6
2

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

,8
6

5

G
re

e
n

 a
n

d
 B

u
il
t 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t
P

8
7

9
IT

S
 -

 R
e

a
l 
T

im
e

 P
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
  

G
R

O
S

S
 (

R
T

P
I)

5
6

6
1

,9
3

4
1

1
-1

,9
2

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

,5
0

0

P
3

8
3

H
e

rs
c
h

e
l 
P

a
rk

 P
ro

je
c
t 

(H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 L
o

tt
e

ry
 P

a
rk

s
)

1
9

1
,9

1
4

-1
,9

1
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
,9

3
3

S
lo

u
g

h
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 F

o
re

c
o

u
rt

/B
ru

n
e

l 
W

a
y
 E

n
h

a
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 

(N
e

t)
0

8
3

2
-8

3
2

3
6

8
0

0
0

0
0

1
,2

0
0

P
7

7
9

B
ri
tw

e
ll 

&
 N

o
rt

h
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
  

(P
7

7
9

)
5

4
0

6
7

9
-6

7
9

1
,0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

,2
1

9

P
7

2
8

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 R

e
c
o

n
fi
g

u
ra

ti
o

n
 &

 R
e

s
u

rf
a

c
e

 (
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 -

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

)
4

9
7

6
2

5
2

4
-6

0
1

4
5

0
4

5
0

2
5

0
0

0
0

2
,2

7
2

P
0

0
6

/4
0

2
0

H
o

u
s
in

g
 I

m
p

. 
G

ra
n

ts
: 

 D
is

a
b

le
d

 F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
  

(M
a

n
d

a
to

ry
)

3
7

7
5

9
0

5
8

-5
3

2
3

8
7

2
3

6
0

0
0

0
1

,5
9

0

P
8

7
1

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 E

n
h

a
n

c
e

m
e

n
ts

5
6

4
3

3
6

1
1

5
-2

2
1

3
0

0
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
,5

0
0

P
2

3
1

A
rt

 a
t 

th
e

 C
e

n
tr

e
 -

 R
e

v
it
a

lis
in

g
 H

ig
h

 S
t

1
,7

2
4

7
6

7
6

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

,8
0

0

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 /
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
&

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
/ 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

P
1

5
7

H
e

a
rt

 o
f 

S
lo

u
g

h
 P

ro
je

c
t

4
,3

4
8

2
1

,3
9

2
8

5
8

-2
0

,5
3

4
7

,3
8

8
1

2
,0

7
6

0
0

0
0

4
5

,2
0

4

P
2

9
6

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
H

a
rd

w
a

re
 &

 o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 S

y
s
te

m
s

6
1

4
8

8
6

3
9

-8
4

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

,5
0

0

P
7

8
4

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
1

,6
4

2
6

3
3

-2
2

-6
5

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

,2
7

5

P
8

2
7

D
D

A
  

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

W
o

rk
s

4
6

1
2

9
9

-5
-3

0
4

4
8

8
5

0
0

5
0

0
0

0
0

2
,2

4
8

T
o

ta
l 

p
e

r 
y

e
a

r 
fo

r 
e

x
tr

a
c

t
1

7
,9

4
4

5
5

,1
8

5
2

,0
2

7
-5

3
,1

5
8

1
6

,3
2

2
1

4
,8

5
2

7
5

0
0

0
0

1
0

5
,0

5
3

T
o

ta
l 

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

3
0

,6
3

1
7

1
,0

2
4

2
3

,2
9

2
1

6
,6

7
2

1
,5

4
7

3
,5

0
0

5
0

0
0

1
4

7
,1

6
6

E
x

tr
a

c
t 

a
s

 a
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
ll

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
5

8
.5

8
%

7
7

.7
0

%
7

0
.0

8
%

8
9

.0
8

%
4

8
.4

8
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

7
1

.3
8

%

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
  

F
U

N
D

  
C

A
P

IT
A

L
  

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
  

2
0

1
0

 /
 2

0
1

1
 t

o
 2

0
1

6
/1

7

E
x

tr
a

c
t 

o
f 

to
p

 2
0

 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

s
c

h
e

m
e

s

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 e

x
tr

a
c
t 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
o

p
 2

0
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

It
 s

h
o

w
s
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
s
e

tt
in

g
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
0

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 

 T
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 w
a

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
a

s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

 d
e

ta
ils

.

T
h

e
 r

e
v
is

io
n

s
 m

a
in

ly
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 H

e
a

rt
 o

f 
S

lo
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 H

e
rs

c
h

e
l 
P

a
rk

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e

re
 o

ri
g

in
a

lly
 s

h
o

w
n

 n
e

t 
o

f 
g

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
, 

th
e

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 

b
e

e
n

 'g
ro

s
s
e

d
-u

p
' t

o
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
e

 t
ru

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
. 

 O
th

e
r 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

p
ro

fi
le

d
 t

o
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

.

Appendix C

P
a
g
e
2
0
o
f
3
4

Page 26



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 D
 G

o
ld

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
- 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 2

1
/0

6
/2

0
1
0

Timeline

Budget

Issues & Risks

draft

agreed by CMT

draft

agreed by CMT

S
B

C
_

1
0

C
u

lt
u

re
, 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 &
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g

L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

O
ff

e
r 

a
n

d
 O

ly
m

p
ic

, 
S

p
o

rt
s
 &

 L
e

is
u

re
 O

ff
e

r)
G

re
e

n
1

0
/0

6
/1

0
A

G
A

A

R
e

m
a

in
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
 

(m
e

e
ti
n

g
 1

4
/0

6
/1

0
) 

w
it
h

 n
e

w
 p

ro
je

c
t 

P
ID

 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 C

M
T

. 
H

ig
h

lig
h

t 
re

p
o

rt
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 a
rr

iv
e

 f
o

r 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
t 

th
is

 t
im

e
.

J
a

n
e

 W
o

o
d

C
&

W
A

n
d

re
w

 S
te

v
e

n
s

J
a

c
k
ie

 M
e

n
n

is
s

y
Y

Y
Y

S
B

C
_

1
2

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

G
re

e
n

2
1

/0
5

/1
0

A
G

A
A

H
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
P

ID
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
.

J
a

n
e

 W
o

o
d

C
&

W
M

ik
e

 B
ib

b
y

T
ra

c
y
 C

a
rt

m
e

ll
N

/A
Y

Y
Y

S
B

C
_

2
6

S
c
h

o
o

l 
P

la
c
e

s
 i
n

 S
lo

u
g

h
S

B
C

_
1

3
 &

 S
B

C
_

2
1

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

-

m
e

rg
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 o

f 
C

M
T

. 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 n

e
w

 p
a

p
e

rw
o

rk
.

C
la

ir
 P

y
p

e
r

E
C

S
A

n
n

a
l 
N

a
y
y
a

r
B

o
b

 G
a

rn
e

tt

S
B

C
_

3
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
G

re
e

n
2

2
/0

3
/1

0
G

G
G

G
N

o
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 s

in
c
e

 l
a

s
t 

u
p

d
a

te
. 

N
e

x
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

b
o

a
rd

 i
s
 2

9
th

 J
u

n
e

D
e

n
is

e
 A

ld
e

r
G

B
E

D
e

n
is

e
 A

ld
e

r
K

e
re

n
 B

a
ile

y
Y

Y
Y

Y

S
B

C
_

2
2

H
o

u
s
in

g
 F

u
tu

re
s
 (

A
L

M
O

 m
o

v
e

)

G
re

e
n

3
0

/0
4

/1
0

A
G

A
A

F
u

ll 
P

ID
 n

e
e

d
s
 s

ig
n

 o
ff

 b
y
 C

M
T

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
c
o

p
e

. 
P

M
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 k

e
e

p
in

g
 P

M
O

 

u
p

d
a

te
d

.

D
e

n
is

e
 A

ld
e

r
G

B
E

N
e

il 
A

v
e

s
V

ija
y
 M

c
G

u
ir
e

Y
Y

Y
Y

S
B

C
_

1
6

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
P

ro
je

c
t 

is
 n

o
w

 c
lo

s
e

d
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
lo

s
u

re
 &

 

le
s
s
o

n
s
 l
e

a
rn

e
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 

2
1

/0
4

/1
0

. 
W

ill
 b

e
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
p

o
rt

s
.

R
o

g
e

r 
P

a
rk

in
I&

D
Z

e
n

a
 M

ill
e

r
M

o
 H

a
s
s
a

n
Y

Y
Y

Y

S
B

C
_

2
4

2
0

1
1

 C
e

n
s
u

s
 

N
e

w
ly

 a
d

d
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 O
u

tl
in

e
 o

f 
ta

s
k
s
 

b
ri
e

fi
n

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o

r 
C

M
T

. 
J
o

b
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

b
e

in
g

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

e
d

.

S
B

C
_

2
7

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y

N
e

w
 p

ro
je

c
t 

re
q

u
e

s
te

d
 b

y
 C

M
T

 -
 d

e
ta

ils
 

a
w

a
it
e

d
.

S
B

C
_

5
R

E
G

E
N

E
R

A
T

IO
N

: 
H

e
a

rt
 o

f 
S

lo
u

g
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 C
u

rv
e

G
re

e
n

2
3

/0
2

/1
0

In
c
lu

d
in

g
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 F

o
re

c
o

u
rt

. 
H

ig
h

lig
h

t 

re
p

o
rt

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 3
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

n
 2

3
/0

2
 b

u
t 

h
a

v
e

 

re
q

u
e

s
te

d
 a

 h
i g

h
lig

h
t 

re
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

N
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

p
a

p
e

rs
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
.

J
u

lie
 E

v
a

n
s

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

N
e

il 
S

im
o

n

S
B

C
_

6
R

E
G

E
N

E
R

A
T

IO
N

: 
B

ri
tw

e
ll 

&
 H

a
y
m

ill
 

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

G
re

e
n

0
9

/0
4

/1
0

G
G

G
G

P
h

a
s
e

 2
 i
n

it
ia

te
d

 u
s
in

g
 P

R
IN

C
E

2
. 

In
it
ia

l 

d
ra

ft
 P

ID
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
.

D
e

n
is

e
 A

ld
e

r
G

B
E

N
e

il 
A

v
e

s
B

a
s
h

a
ra

t 
N

a
z
ir

Y
Y

S
B

C
_

2
5

R
E

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
IO

N
:
C

h
a

lv
e

y
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

N
e

w
 p

ro
je

c
t 

re
q

u
e

s
te

d
 b

y
 C

M
T

 -
 d

e
ta

ils
 

a
w

a
it
e

d
.

C
o

n
fi

d
e

n
c

e
 l

e
v

e
l 

c
ri

te
ri

a
:

L
e

s
s

 t
h

a
n

 2
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 p

la
c

e
 =

 R
E

D

T
h

e
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

c
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
is

 d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
u

p
o

n
2

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 =
 A

M
B

E
R

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

k
e

y
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 2

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 =
 G

R
E

E
N

b
e

in
g

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 i
.e

.:

* 
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

* 
S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 P

ID

* 
A

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 P

R
IN

C
E

2
 t

ra
in

e
d

 P
M

* 
F

o
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

ro
je

c
t 

B
o

a
rd

* 
S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
re

g
u

la
r 

H
ig

h
lig

h
t 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 

in
 p

la
c
e

?

Y
/N

S
p

o
n

s
o

r'
s

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te

P
ro

je
c

t

S
p

o
n

s
o

r(
s

)
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

B
u

s
in

e
s

s

C
a

s
e

P
ID

C
o

n
fi

d
e

n
c

e

L
e

v
e

l

D
a

s
h

b
o

a
rd

(h
ig

h
lig

h
t

re
p

o
rt

)
P

ro
je

c
t

U
ID

P
R

O
J

E
C

T

S
T

A
T

U
S

(f
ro

m
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 

re
p

o
rt

)

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
o

a
rd

 

s
e

t 
u

p
?

Y
/N

L
a

s
t

H
ig

h
li

g
h

t

R
e

p
o

rt

re
c

e
iv

e
d

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

P
ro

je
c

t

M
a

n
a

g
e

r/
s

(P
R

IN
C

E
2

tr
a

in
e

d
)

P
ro

je
c

t

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

1
P
a
g
e
2
1
o
f
3
4

Page 27



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
I 
1

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

c
o
h
e
s
io

n

%
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 b

e
lie

v
e
 

p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 g

e
t 
o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

in
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
re

a
P

S
A

2
1

6
8
.5

(0
8
/0

9

P
la

c
e

S
u
rv

e
y
)

N
/A

7
2
.3

%
6
8
.5

%
-

b
ie

n
n
ia

l
b
ie

n
n
ia

l
b
ie

n
n
ia

l
-

L
o
w

e
s
t

q
u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l 

0
8
- 

M
a
r 

0
9

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 

N
I 
5

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

c
o
h
e
s
io

n

O
v
e
ra

ll/
g
e
n
e
ra

l

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
re

a

6
3
.6

%

(0
8
/0

9

P
la

c
e

S
u
rv

e
y
)

N
/A

6
7
.0

%
6
3
.6

%
-

b
ie

n
n
ia

l
b
ie

n
n
ia

l
b
ie

n
n
ia

l
-

L
o
w

e
s
t

q
u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l 

0
8
- 

M
a
r 

0
9

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

:

N
I 
8

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

A
d

u
lt

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 (
1
6
+

) 

in
 s

p
o

rt
. 
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

m
o
d
e
ra

te

in
te

n
s
it
y
(i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

o
m

e
 

lig
h
t 
in

te
n
s
it
y
 f
o
r 

6
5
+

)s
p
o
rt

/r
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

3
0
 m

in
u
te

s
 t
h
re

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 

d
a
y
s
 a

 w
e
e
k
. 

1
9
.4

%

2
0
0
5
/0

6

2
2
.4

%
2
4
.4

%
 1

6
.1

%
  
  
 (

A
p
ri
l 

0
8
-M

a
rc

h
0
9
)

re
v
is

e
d
 f
ro

m
 

1
8
.9

%
 (

O
c
t 
0
7
-

0
8
) 

 L
o
w

e
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

ile

-
O

c
t 
0
7
-O

c
t 

0
9
 (

A
P

S
2
 

a
n
d
 A

P
S

3
 

s
u
rv

e
y
s

c
o
m

b
in

e
d
)

1
6
.1

%

la
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

in
 D

e
c
 0

9

-
in

te
ri
m

 d
a
ta

 

w
ill

 b
e
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
, 

D
e
c
 2

0
1
0
 

a
n
d
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
1

R
E

D
lo

w
e
s
t

q
u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l 

0
8
 -

 M
a
r 

0
9

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
T

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
re

c
e
n
t 
u
p
d
a
te

 c
o
m

b
in

e
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 g

iv
in

g
 a

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 o
f 

1
6
.1

%
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

0
7
 -

O
c
to

b
e
r 

0
9
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 

s
lig

h
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 1
5
.9

6
%

 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 A

p
ri
l 
0
8
 t
o
 A

p
ri
l 
0
9
.

T
h
e
 S

lo
u
g
h
 S

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 F

o
ru

m
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 (

a
d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 S

lo
u
g
h
 A

c
ti
v
e
 T

e
a
m

) 
to

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

w
id

e
r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
a
g
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 d

a
te

 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 
a
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
b
id

 f
o
r 

L
P

S
A

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 g

y
m

 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
y
 o

f 
u
s
e
 o

f 
s
p
o
rt

in
g
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fr

e
e
 

s
w

im
m

in
g
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 a

g
e
d
 6

0
 p

lu
s
, 
th

e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
e
w

 G
y
m

 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

lo
u
g
h
 T

ra
d
in

g
 E

s
ta

te
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 G

o
 K

a
rt

in
g
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
 A

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

re
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 P

D
G

. 
  
5
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
lo

c
a
l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 g

iv
e
 u

s
 a

 

b
e
tt
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 u

n
d
e
rp

in
 a

 m
o
re

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 I
D

E
A

.

N
I 
1
3

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
[L

O
C

A
L
] 
M

ig
ra

n
ts

 

E
n
g
lis

h
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 s

k
ill

s
 

a
n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
: 
 T

h
e
 %

 

o
f 
n
o
n
 -

E
n
g
lis

h
 s

p
e
a
k
in

g
 

th
ir
d
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
ls

 

e
n
ro

lli
n
g
 f
o
r 

E
S

O
L
 

C
o
u
rs

e
s
(f

u
ll 

o
r 

p
a
rt

ia
l)
 

w
h
o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
.

7
5
.3

%
(0

7
/

0
8
)

8
1
.3

%
8
4
.3

%
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 M

a
r 

2
0
1
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9

o
u
tt
u
rn

a
v
a
ila

b
le

in
 M

a
r 

2
0
1
0

-
-

D
E

L
E

T
E

D
-

-
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
D

u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
fi
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 d

e
le

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t 
fr

o
m

 0
8
/0

9
. 
 A

 l
o
c
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e
in

g
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 t
h
is

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

P
a

rt
 O

n
e

P
a
g
e
2
2
o
f
3
4

Page 28



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I 
1
6

S
a
fe

r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

S
e
ri
o
u
s
 A

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
 

ra
te

 P
S

A
 2

3

4
7
6
6

c
ri
m

e
s

2
0
0
7
/0

8

3
9
.8

8
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p
 

in
 2

0
0
7
/8

 

 3
5
.5

6
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
  
4
.7

%
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

 3
3
.8

2
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

4
.8

9
%

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

4
1
.8

6
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

4
9
9
8
 c

ri
m

e
s

7
.3

1
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 

q
tr

: 
8
7
8
 

c
ri
m

e
s
.

E
n
d
 o

f 

y
e
a
r

p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n

is
 2

9
.2

4

1
5
.1

c
ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

2
6
.4

9

c
ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

3
6
.2

5

c
ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
s
 =

 

4
3
9
4

R
E

D
-

In
 0

8
/0

9
 

ra
n
k
e
d

1
5
th

lo
w

e
s
t 
o
u
t 

o
f 
1
5
  
in

 

th
e
 M

o
s
t 

S
im

ila
r

G
ro

u
p
(M

S

G
)

8
0
 c

ri
m

e
s
 o

v
e
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 D

e
s
p
it
e
 n

o
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 S

A
C

 i
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ft
 o

f 
a
 v

e
h
ic

le
 

w
it
n
e
s
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
3
9
%

 (
n
2
7
9
),

 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
ft
 

fr
o
m

 a
 v

e
h
ic

le
 (

6
5
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
5
6
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
s
).

 I
n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 

ro
b
b
e
ry

 a
re

 d
e
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 6

%
 o

r 
7
8
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
s
 

le
s
s
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 h

e
a
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 

ri
g
h
t 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 i
s
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 7

.8
%

 (
n
3
7
2
).

 T
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
th

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
: 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
O

p
 C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
r 

p
a
tr

o
ls

 o
f 
a
ll 

h
o
ts

p
o
ts

 o
f 
S

A
C

 o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 u

ti
lis

in
g
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
 

v
is

ib
ili

ty
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 f
ro

m
 t
a
s
k
in

g
. 
T

ra
p
 c

a
r 

d
e
p
lo

y
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 

v
e
h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 b

id
s
 f
o
r 

tr
a
p
 h

o
u
s
e
 g

iv
e
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
. 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 P
C

T
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 2

 x
 P

C
s
 f
o
r 

6
 

m
o
n
th

 a
tt
a
c
h
m

e
n
ts

. 
E

m
p
ty

 c
a
r 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
, 
m

e
d
ia

 a
rt

ic
le

s
/ 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 n
o
th

in
g
 o

n
 d

is
p
la

y
 i
n
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 a

le
rt

in
g
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 t
re

n
d
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 l
e
tt
e
rb

o
x
 b

u
rg

la
ri
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

s
a
m

e
 m

e
d
iu

m
s
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

O
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e

N
I 
1
7

S
a
fe

r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

P
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 

b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

P
S

A
 2

3

3
5
.3

%

B
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

P
la

c
e

S
u
rv

e
y

2
0
0
8
/0

9

N
/A

3
1
.4

%
3
5
.3

%
-

b
ie

n
n
ia

l
b
ie

n
n
ia

l
4
8
.8

%
R

E
D

L
o
w

e
s
t

q
u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 A

p
ri
l 

0
8
- 

M
a
r 

0
9

In
 0

8
/0

9
 

ra
n
k
e
d
 6

th
 

(l
o
w

e
s
t)

o
u
t 
o
f 
6
 

B
e
rk

s
h
ir
e

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

W
: 

N
I 
2
0

S
a
fe

r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

A
s
s
a
u
lt
 w

it
h
 i
n
ju

ry
 c

ri
m

e
 

ra
te

 P
S

A
 2

5

1
1
3
0

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s

1
1
.1

3

c
ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

(0
8
/0

9

d
a
ta

 u
s
e
d
 

a
s

b
a
s
e
lin

e
)

B
a
s
e
lin

e

m
in

u
s
 3

%
 

(a
p
p
ro

x

1
0
9
6

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 o

r 

1
0
.8

c
ri
m

e
s
)

B
a
s
e
lin

e

m
in

u
s
 3

%
 

S
e
e

c
o
m

m
e
n
ta

r

y
 f
o
r 

G
O

S
E

 

C
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n

1
1
3
0
 o

ff
e
n
c
e
s
 

1
1
.1

3
 c

ri
m

e
s
 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
0

3
7
1

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s

3
.0

9

c
ri
m

e
s

p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o
p
. 
 E

n
d
 

o
f 
y
e
a
r 

p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n

is
 1

2
.3

6
 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
0

6
.4

6

c
ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

9
.1

1
 c

ri
m

e
s
 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

1
1
.0

8

c
ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
s
 =

 

1
3
4
3

R
E

D
-

In
 0

8
/0

9
 

ra
n
k
e
d

1
4
th

lo
w

e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
1
5
 

in
 I
q
u
a
n
ta

 

M
o
s
t

S
im

ila
r

G
ro

u
p
(M

S

G
)

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

W
 :
 E

v
e
n
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 w

e
 m

is
s
e
d
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 Q

4
 i
s
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

(O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

o
rt

c
u
lli

s
, 
C

lu
b
b
e
r,

 D
o
b
-A

-R
o
b
b
e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
,S

ta
y
 S

a
fe

 

e
tc

) 
is

 h
a
v
in

g
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 A

W
S

L
I.
  
T

h
e
 D

ru
g
s
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

 w
it
h
 T

h
a
m

e
s
 V

a
llw

e
y
 P

o
lic

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

 

p
ie

c
e
 t
o
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 A

W
S

L
I 
in

 S
lo

u
g
h
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 

is
 l
e
d
 b

y
 a

n
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 (

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 l
e
d
 S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
) 

a
n
d
 i
s
 

a
lm

o
s
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
 h

o
t 
s
p
o
ts

, 
p
e
a
k
 t
im

e
s
 a

n
d
 v

ic
ti
m

/o
ff
e
n
d
e
r 

p
ro

fi
le

s
.

N
I 
3
2
 

lo
c
a
l

(a
)

a
) 

1
1
6
 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

a
)1

4
0

b
)-

5
0
%

a
)1

5
0

b
)-

5
2
%

1
7
2
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

4
3
0
0
.0

%
4
4
0
0
.0

%
2
0
0
0
.0

%
-

-
-

-

N
I 

3
2

 

lo
c
a

l

(b
)

b
) 

-

4
8
.3

9
%

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

tb
c

tb
c

b
)-

3
5
.8

%
 e

n
d
 o

f 

y
e
a
r 

s
n
a
p
s
h
o
t

D
a
ta

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

D
a
ta

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

D
a
ta

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

-
-

-
-

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

(a
) 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

/v
is

it
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 
ru

n
 b

y
 

E
a
s
t 
B

e
rk

s
h
ir
e
 W

o
m

e
n
's

 

A
id

  
 (

b
) 

A
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
D

A
 

fo
r 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

S
a
fe

r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

(P
a
rt

 A
) 

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
A

w
a
it
in

g
 d

a
ta

(P
a
rt

 B
) 

H
IG

H
 

R
E

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
A

w
a
it
in

g
 d

a
ta

P
a
g
e
2
3
o
f
3
4

Page 29



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I 
3
5

A
v
e
ra

g
e
  
- 

2
.3

 -
 

2
0
0
7
/0

8

A
v
e
ra

g
e
  
- 

3
.3

 -

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 -

4
.2

A
v
e
ra

g
e
  
- 

2
.9

 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 2

.5

N
I 
3
5
 

(P
a
rt

P
a
rt

 1
 -

 3
P

a
rt

 1
 -

 3
P

a
rt

 1
- 

3
.2

5

P
a
rt

 1
 -

 3
P

a
rt

 1
 -

 3

N
I 
3
5
 

(P
a
rt

P
a
rt

 2
 -

 2
P

a
rt

 2
 -

 3
P

a
rt

 2
 –

 3
.5

P
a
rt

 2
 -

 2
.5

P
a
rt

 2
 -

 2

N
I 
3
5
 

(P
a
rt

P
a
rt

 3
 -

 2
P

a
rt

 3
 -

 3
.5

P
a
rt

 3
 –

 5
P

a
rt

 3
 -

 3
P

a
rt

 3
 -

 2

N
I 
3
5
 

P
a
rt

 4
 -

 2
P

a
rt

 4
 -

 3
.5

P
a
rt

 4
 -

 5
P

a
rt

 4
 -

 3
P

a
rt

 4
 -

 3

N
I 
3
8

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

D
ru

g
-r

e
la

te
d
 (

C
la

s
s
 A

) 

o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

 P
S

A
 2

5

n
o
 d

a
ta

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

A
v
e
ra

g
e

9
%

 b
e
lo

w
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e

a
c
ro

s
s

0
9
/1

0

c
o
h
o
rt

s

(0
.9

9
)

A
v
e
ra

g
e

9
%

 b
e
lo

w
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e

a
c
ro

s
s

1
0
/1

1

c
o
h
o
rt

s
(0

.9

6
)

 E
m

e
rg

in
g
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 1

.0
6
. 

N
o
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 d

a
ta

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 s

ta
rt

in
g
 

N
o
v
 2

0
0
9

-
8
8
.0

%
R

e
s
u
lt
 d

u
e
 

D
e
c
 2

0
1
0

-
-

In
 0

8
/0

9
 

R
a
n
k
e
d

1
2
th

lo
w

e
s
t 
o
u
t 

o
f 
1
5
 i
n
 

Iq
u
a
n
ta

M
o
s
t

S
im

ila
r

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 a

s
 a

 N
IS

 t
o
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
  
b
u
t 
L
A

A
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 N
o
v
 

2
0
0
9

N
I 
4
5

S
a
fe

r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

Y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

(7
1
.9

%

0
6
/0

7
 P

e
rf

 

D
a
ta

 u
s
e
d
 

fo
r 

L
A

A
)

7
7
.0

%
7
9
.3

%
7
0
.1

%
6
1
.9

0
%

  
  
 

2
6
 o

u
t 
o
f 

4
2

7
9
.4

1
%

2
7
 o

u
t 
o
f 

3
4

5
8
.3

3
%

2
8
 o

u
t 
o
f 
4
8

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 

fo
r 

0
9
/1

0
:

7
4
.8

5
%

1
2
5
 o

u
t 
o
f 

1
6
7

re
d

-
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
. 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

o
f 
7
4
.8

5
%

 i
s
 a

 4
.7

5
%

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 

7
0
.1

0
. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
7
7
%

 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
 F

u
ll 

T
im

e
 E

T
E

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 Y

O
T

 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
. 
 S

lo
u
g
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
a
n
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
Y

P
 i
n
 F

T
 E

T
E

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 b

y
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

2
%

 t
o
 7

9
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

2
1
0
/1

1
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 i
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 (

7
2
.6

%
) 

a
n
d
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
(7

1
.1

%
) 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 v

a
ri
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

m
a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

 b
e
in

g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
e
 c

a
s
e
 c

a
n
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 h
a
v
e
 o

n
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 

ta
rg

e
t.

N
I 
4
9

*N
I4

9
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 

fi
re

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 f
a
ta

lit
ie

s
 

a
n
d
 n

o
n
-f

a
ta

l 
c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

re
c
a
u
ti
o
n
a
ry

 

c
h
e
c
k
s
).

G
R

E
E

N
-

-
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
to

o
k
 p

la
c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

e
v
e
n
ts

 a
t 
M

a
n
o
r 

P
a
rk

 &
 C

o
ln

b
ro

o
k
 -

 w
h
e
re

 R
B

F
R

S
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

. 
R

B
F

R
S

a
ls

o
 

w
o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 P

e
o
p
le

 1
s
t 
(S

lo
u
g
h
) 

to
 g

iv
e
 a

 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

w
h
o
 l
e
a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 f
ro

n
t 
d
o
o
rs

 o
p
e
n
 w

h
ile

s
t 
c
o
o
k
in

g
 (

a
n
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

ff
 

a
u
to

m
a
te

d
 a

la
rm

s
),

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 
fa

ls
e
 

c
a
lls

 w
a
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
la

y
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
R

B
F

R
S

 g
a
v
e
 f
ir
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 

a
d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

o
f 
h
ig

h
 r

is
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 
F

ir
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

fo
r 

m
o
th

e
rs

 w
it
h
 w

it
h
 y

o
u
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 S

u
re

 

S
ta

rt
 w

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
R

B
F

R
S

 s
p
o
k
e
 t
o
 S

tu
d
e
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
 -

 p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 

fi
re

 s
a
fe

ty
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
, 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
ta

lk
 t
o
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 B

T
E

C
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

. 
C

o
o
k
in

g
 w

it
h
 a

 

c
h
ip

 p
a
n
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 t
o
 a

 L
a
n
g
le

y
 a

rs
o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
.

S
a
fe

r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
i

e
s

a
n
n
u
a
l

o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

B
u
ild

in
g
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 

v
io

le
n
t 
e
x
tr

e
m

is
m

 P
S

A
 2

6

C
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 C

o
h
e
s
io

n

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
ly

. 
A

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
lig

n
s
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
r 

le
v
e
ls

 s
e
t 
b
y
 t
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 7

 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

o
m

e
 O

ff
ic

e
 "

p
re

v
e
n
t 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
" 

fo
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
.

D
ia

lo
g
u
e
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

o
th

 a
t 
S

A
V

E
 s

te
e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

a
n
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
.

-
-

-

P
a
g
e
2
4
o
f
3
4

Page 30



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I 
4
9
 

(1
)

(1
.)

 T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 f
ir
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
;

2
5
4
.7

 f
ir
e
s
 

p
e
r

y
e
a
r

(3

y
e
a
r

to
ta

l:
7
6
4
.2

2
).

  
T

h
is

 

in
c
lu

d
e
s

8
5
.1

9

d
w

e
lli

n
g

fi
re

s
(3

y
e
a
r

to
ta

l:
2
5
5
.5

9
) 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
3
8
.5

 f
ir
e
s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g

7
8
.3

8

d
w

e
lli

n
g

fi
re

s
) 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

p
e
r 

y
e
a
r

2
3
8
.5

 f
ir
e
s
 

( 
3
 y

e
a
r 

to
ta

l

7
1
5
.7

)i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 7

8
.3

8
 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

fi
re

s
 (

3
 

y
e
a
r 

to
ta

l:
 

2
3
5
.1

5
) 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
3
6
.5

4
 f
ir
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 (

2
7
8
 

a
c
tu

a
l 
fi
re

s
 -

a
c
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
)

7
2
 f
ir
e
s
 

5
.9

9
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

E
n
d
 o

f 

y
e
a
r

p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n

is
 2

4
.6

4
 

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
4
2
 f
ir
e
s
 

1
1
8
.2

3
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
1
1
 f
ir
e
s
. 

1
7
5
.6

8
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

2
8
0
 f
ir
e
s
. 

2
.3

3
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

G
R

E
E

N
-

R
a
n
k
e
d

6
th

(l
o
w

e
s
t)

o
u
t 
o
f 
6
 i
n
 

B
e
rk

s
h
ir
e

0
8
/0

9

N
I 
4
9
 

(2
)

(2
.)

 T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
ta

lit
ie

s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

fi
re

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

1
1

1
0
.8

5
1
(n

 1
)

0
 f
a
ta

l 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

0
.8

5
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

0
 f
a
ta

l 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

0
 f
a
ta

l 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

G
R

E
E

N
-

R
a
n
k
e
d

5
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 

6
th

 l
o
w

e
s
t 

in B
e
rk

s
h
ir
e

0
8
/0

9

N
I 
4
9
 

(3
)

(3
.)

 T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
n
o
n
-

fa
ta

l 
c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

re
c
a
u
ti
o
n
a
ry

 

c
h
e
c
k
s
) 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

2
5
.1

c
a
u
s
a
lit

ie
s

p
e
r 

y
e
a
r

(3
 y

e
a
r 

to
ta

l:
7
5
.3

1

) 
p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
2
.9

4

c
a
u
s
a
lit

ie
s

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
2
.9

4

c
a
u
s
a
lit

ie
s

p
e
r 

y
e
a
r 

 (
 

3
 y

e
a
r 

to
ta

l:
6
7
.7

8
)

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

8
.5

0
8

c
a
u
s
a
lit

ie
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
, 
1
0
 

a
c
tu

a
l

c
a
u
s
a
lit

ie
s
)

2
.4

9

c
a
s
u
a
lit

ie

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
, 
3
 

a
c
tu

a
l

c
a
u
s
a
lit

ie

s

3
.3

3

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

4
 a

c
tu

a
l 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

4
.1

6

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
5
 

a
c
tu

a
l

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

6
.6

6

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

8
 a

c
tu

a
l 

c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s

G
R

E
E

N
-

R
a
n
k
e
d

6
th

(l
o
w

e
s
t

) 
o
u
t 
o
f 
6
 

in B
e
rk

s
h
ir
e

0
8
/0

9

N
I 
5
0

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

E
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 o

f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 P
S

A
 1

2
  T

h
e
 

fo
u
r 

s
u
rv

e
y
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s

u
s
e
d
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

a
re

:•
 I
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 

g
o
o
d
 f
ri
e
n
d
s
.•

 W
h
e
n
 I
’m

 

w
o
rr

ie
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
s
o
m

e
th

in
g
 

I 
c
a
n
 t
a
lk

 t
o
 m

y
 m

u
m

 o
r 

d
a
d
. 
• 

W
h
e
n
 I
’m

 w
o
rr

ie
d
 

a
b
o
u
t 
s
o
m

e
th

in
g
 I
 c

a
n
 

ta
lk

 t
o
 m

y
 f
ri
e
n
d
s
. 
• 

W
h
e
n
 

I’
m

 w
o
rr

ie
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

s
o
m

e
th

in
g

 I
 c

a
n
 t
a
lk

 t
o
 a

n
 

a
d
u
lt
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 m

y
 m

u
m

 

o
r 

d
a
d
. 

6
0
.9

%
6
4
.9

%
6
9
.0

%
6
1
.4

%
a
n
n
u
a
l 

s
u
rv

e
y

a
n
n
u
a
l

s
u
rv

e
y

a
n
n
u
a
l

s
u
rv

e
y

5
5
.2

%
R

e
d

3
rd

 Q
u
a
rt

ile
6
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 

1
1
 S

N
 

G
ro

u
p

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 T
e
llu

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o
w

s
 S

lo
u
g
h
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

ro
p
 b

y
 6

.2
%

 f
ro

m
 

6
1
.4

%
 (

T
e
llu

s
3
 n

e
w

 w
e
ig

h
ti
n
g
) 

to
 5

5
.2

%
 (

T
e
llu

s
4
).

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n
lin

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ic

tu
re

 w
h
ic

h
 d

e
c
lin

e
d
 b

y
 6

.6
%

 a
n
d
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 

o
u
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 r
a
n
g
in

g
 f
ro

m
 a

 d
e
c
lin

e
 o

f 
4
.5

%
 t
o
 

1
0
.1

%
. 
 T

h
is

 p
la

c
e
s
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 3

rd
 q

u
a
rt

ile
, 
ra

n
k
e
d
 9

8
th

 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 (
o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
2
 L

A
s
) 

a
n
d
 6

th
 (

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
) 

in
 o

u
r 

S
N

 g
ro

u
p
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 9

.7
%

 b
e
lo

w
 o

u
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
6
4
.9

%
.

0

P
a
g
e
2
5
o
f
3
4

Page 31



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I 
5
6

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

O
b
e
s
it
y
 a

m
o
n
g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 

Y
e
a
r 

6
 D

C
S

F
 D

S
O

2
2
.1

%

0
6
/0

7

1
9
.4

%
1
8
.8

%
1
9
.4

%
a
n
n
u
a
l 
0
8
/ -

9
 d

a
ta

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

J
a
n
 2

0
1
0

-
-

P
u
b
lis

h
e
d

d
a
ta

 n
o
t 

re
le

a
s
e
d

u
n
ti
l 
F

e
b
 

2
0
1
1

-
-

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 L

O
W

: 
D

a
ta

 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
, 
a
n
a
ly

s
e
d
 b

y
 P

C
T

, 
w

it
h
 

c
o
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
It
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 h

e
a
lt
h
 v

it
a
l 
s
ig

n
s
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 
c
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 s

a
tu

ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 h

e
ig

h
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
s
s
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 w

a
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 F

e
b
 2

0
1
0
 a

s
 1

9
.4

%
 t
h
u
s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n

g
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
0
.8

%
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 1

8
.6

%
 i
n
 

0
7
/0

8
. 
T

h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 F

e
b
 2

0
1
1
. 

N
I 
5
7

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

’s
(5

-1
6
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
) 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 h

ig
h
-

q
u
a
lit

y
 P

E
 a

n
d
 s

p
o
rt

 

(S
c
h
o
o
l 
s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 c

lu
b
 

lin
k
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
)

7
5
.0

%
8
7
.0

%
9
0
.0

%
8
2
.0

%
a
n
n
u
a
l 

o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

P
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

d
a
ta

 n
o
t 

re
le

a
s
e
d

u
n
ti
l 
N

o
v
 

2
0
1
1

-
-

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
D

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
.

N
I 
5
9
 

lo
c
a
l

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

In
it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
w

it
h
in

 7
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l 

7
8
.7

%

2
0
0
7
/0

8

8
0
.0

%
8
0
.0

%
7
3
.1

%
7
2
.7

%
7
3
.1

%
7
4
.1

%
-

R
E

D
(0

8
/0

9
)

T
h
ir
d

Q
u
a
rt

ile

(0
8
/0

9
)

S
N

 v
a
lu

e
 

is
 7

3
.0

%
. 

E
n
g
 v

a
lu

e
 

is
 7

2
.9

%
.

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
h
ir
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

(7
4
.1

%
 -

 

D
e
c
 2

0
0
9
) 

re
m

a
in

e
d
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
(8

0
.0

%
).

 E
n
d
 o

f 

Y
e
a
r 

fi
g
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 

n
o
t 
b
e
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 3

0
th

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
 –

 t
h
e
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 d

a
te

 o
f 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 I
n
 N

e
e
d
 C

e
n
s
u
s
. 
W

h
ils

t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
 

s
in

c
e
 t
h
e
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 r
e
s
u
lt
 (

7
8
.7

%
),

 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 

th
a
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

(7
3
.0

%
 -

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
) 

a
n
d
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
 (

7
2
.9

%
 -

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
).

 T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
it
ia

l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 w

a
s
 1

,5
2
0
; 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 w

a
s
 2

2
1
6
 (

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
4
6
%

);
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 w

a
s
 1

8
2
2
 (

w
h
ile

 a
 s

lig
h
t 
d
ro

p
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

s
ti
ll 

a
 h

u
g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r)

. 
It
 i
s
 n

o
w

 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
8
0
%

 m
a
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
o
o
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 
a
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 r
a
is

e
d
 p

ro
fi
le

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
's

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
A

c
ti
o
n
(s

) 
to

 d
a
te

: 
 A

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

o
f 
th

e
 f
ro

n
t-

e
n
d
 d

u
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 d
u
ty

 w
o
rk

e
rs

 t
a
k
in

g
 n

e
w

 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 m

a
n
a

g
e
 w

o
rk

 c
o
m

N
I 
7
2

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 

7
8
 p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

g
e
 w

it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
6
 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
a
le

s
 i
n
 

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 

E
m

o
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 

L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 L

it
e
ra

c
y
 

P
S

A
 1

0

3
7
.1

%
4
5
.0

%
4
7
.0

%
3
3
.0

%
(S

u
m

m
e
r

2
0
0
8
)

a
n
n
u
a
l

o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

4
6
.3

%
 

(S
u
m

m
e
r

0
9
)

G
R

E
E

N
:

T
A

R
G

E
T

M
E

T

L
o
w

e
s
t

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d

0
8
/0

9

R
a
n
k
e
d

jo
in

t 
9
th

 

o
u
t 
1
1
 i
n
 

S
N

 g
ro

u
p
 

fo
r

2
0
0
8
/0

9

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
2
0
0
9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 o
f 
4
6
.3

%
 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
3
3
.0

%
. 
 E

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 o

u
r 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
5
%

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
e
lo

w
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
5
1
.2

%
 

a
n
d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
4
9
.4

%
. 
R

a
n
k
e
d
 1

1
8
th

 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
2
 L

A
's

. 
T

h
e
 R

a
is

in
g
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 a
re

 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
n
g
 o

n
 f
iv

e
 k

e
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
le

v
e
ls

. 
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 S

lo
u

g
h

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
h
e
ir
 W

o
rl
d
 C

la
s
s
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 P

la
n
 t
o
 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
in

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
.

P
a
g
e
2
6
o
f
3
4

Page 32



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I 
7
3

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
le

v
e
l 
4
 o

r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

M
a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 

(T
h
re

s
h
o
ld

) 
P

S
A

 1
0

-
7
5
.0

%
7
7
.0

%
6
9
%

(S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
8
)

a
n
n
u
a
l

o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

6
7
%

 

(S
u
m

m
e
r

0
9
)

R
E

D
:

T
A

R
G

E
T

N
O

T
 M

E
T

L
o
w

e
s
t

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 2

0
0
9

J
o
in

t 
1
1
th

 

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 

in
 S

N
 

g
ro

u
p
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d

2
0
0
9

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 o

n
c
e
 a

 y
e
a
r.

S
lo

u
g
h
’s

 2
0
0
9
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
6
7
%

 i
s
 2

%
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
rs

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
6
9
%

. 
 I
t 
is

 a
ls

o
 5

%
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

 

E
a
s
t 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
 o

f 
7
2
%

 a
n
d
 2

%
 b

e
lo

w
 o

u
r 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6
9
%

. 
 T

h
is

 p
la

c
e
s
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

q
u
a
rt

ile
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

, 
ra

n
k
e
d
 1

3
9
th

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
2
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 I
t 

s
it
s
 j
o
in

t 
1
1
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
1
 i
n
 i
ts

 S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 G
ro

u
p
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 w

e
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
7
4
%

. 
 T

h
e
 

R
a
is

in
g
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 a
re

 c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
n
g
 o

n
 f
iv

e
 k

e
y
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
le

v
e
ls

. 
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 S

lo
u
g
h
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
h
e
ir
 W

o
rl
d
 

C
la

s
s
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 P

la
n
 t
o
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
in

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
is

s
u
e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

N
I 
7
5

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 

A
*-

C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 o

r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 

(T
h
re

s
h
o
ld

) 
P

S
A

 1
0

-
6
2
.0

%
6
3
.2

%
5
9
.7

%
( 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
0
8
)

a
n
n
u
a
l

o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

5
9
.3

%
G

R
E

E
N

:

T
A

R
G

E
T

M
E

T

T
o
p

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d

0
8
/0

9

R
a
n
k
e
d

2
n
d
 o

u
t 
o
f 

1
1
 i
n
 S

N
 

g
ro

u
p
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
2
0
0
9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 o
f 
6
1
.7

%
 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
5
9
.7

%
 a

n
d
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
4
9
.7

%
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f

5
0
%

. 
R

a
n
k
e
d
 1

1
th

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
2
 L

A
's

. 

N
I 
8
7

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
te

 

D
C

S
F

 D
S

O

-
3
.7

%
T

o
 b

e
 s

e
t 

J
a
n
 2

0
1
0

3
.7

%
 (

2
0
0
7
/0

8

la
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

)

a
n
n
u
a
l

o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

3
.5

%

(2
0
0
8
/0

9
)

g
re

e
n

-
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

W
: 
S

lo
u
g
h
's

 2
0
0
9
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
3
.5

%
 i
s
 a

 

0
.2

%
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
3
.7

%
. 
 T

h
is

 p
la

c
e
s
 2

0
0
9
 

S
lo

u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
n
d
 i
s
 r

a
n
k
e
d
 

1
0
th

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
2
 L

A
's

. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
t 
o
u
r 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
.2

%
.

N
I 
9
9

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 r
e
a
c
h
in

g
 

le
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 P
S

A
 1

1

-
1
0
0
%

(1
 

p
u
p
il)

T
o
 b

e
 s

e
t 

J
a
n
 2

0
1
0

0
%

 (
S

e
p
 0

8
)

a
n
n
u
a
l 

o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

T
o
 b

e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

-
-

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
in

g
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

s
 (

e
.g

. 
O

N
E

 c
h
ild

 f
o
r 

K
S

2
, 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
) 

a
n
d
 a

re
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

L
A

C
 w

h
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 e

x
a
m

 y
e
a
r.

 O
u
r 

a
im

 i
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
o
p
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

th
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 c

h
ild

 m
a
k
e
s
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

tr
e
tc

h
in

g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 s
e
t 

in
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
w

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

in
 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
o
u
g
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

ill
 j
o
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 i
n
 a

 n
o
n
-

p
re

d
ic

ti
v
e
 f
a
s
h
io

n
.

N
I

1
0
0

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 r
e
a
c
h
in

g
 

le
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 P
S

A
 1

1

-
1
0
0
%

(1
 

p
u
p
il)

T
o
 b

e
 s

e
t 

J
a
n
 2

0
1
0

0
%

 (
S

e
p
 0

8
)

a
n
n
u
a
l 

o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
o
n
ly

T
o
 b

e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

-
-

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
in

g
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

s
 (

e
.g

. 
O

N
E

 c
h
ild

 f
o
r 

K
S

2
, 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
) 

a
n
d
 a

re
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

L
A

C
 w

h
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 e

x
a
m

 y
e
a
r.

 O
u
r 

a
im

 i
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
o
p
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

th
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 c

h
ild

 m
a
k
e
s
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

tr
e
tc

h
in

g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 s
e
t 

in
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
w

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

in
 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
o
u
g
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

ill
 j
o
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 i
n
 a

 n
o
n
-

p
re

d
ic

ti
v
e
 f
a
s
h
io

n
.

P
a
g
e
2
7
o
f
3
4

Page 33



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I

1
0
1

C
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 

(o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
 4

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
) 

P
S

A
 

1
1

-
5
3
.8

%
 (

7
 o

f 

1
3
 p

u
p
ils

)

to
 b

e
 s

e
t 

J
a
n
 2

0
1
0

2
8
.6

%
 (

2
 o

f 
7
 

p
u
p
ils

)

a
n
n
u
a
l

o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l

o
n
ly

a
n
n
u
a
l 
 o

n
ly

T
o
 b

e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 

D
e
c
 2

0
0
9

-
-

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
0
9
/1

0
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 m
id

 2
0
1
0
. 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
in

g
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

s
 

(e
.g

. 
S

E
V

E
N

 c
h
ild

re
n
 f
o
r 

K
S

4
, 
2
0
0
8
/0

9
) 

a
n
d
 a

re
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 t
o
 

c
o
v
e
r 

L
A

C
 w

h
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 c

a
re

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

e
x
a
m

 y
e
a
r.

 O
u
r 

a
im

 i
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

to
p
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

th
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 c

h
ild

 m
a
k
e
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

tr
e
tc

h
in

g
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 s
e
t 
in

 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
re

d
ic

ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 
w

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
 c

a
re

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r,

 t
h
o
u
g
h
 b

y
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 t
h
e
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 c

o
m

e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 

c
a
re

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 l
e
ft
 c

a
re

 -
 s

o
 t
h
e
 t
a
r g

e
ts

 c
a
n
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 s

e
t 

in
 a

 n
o
n
-p

re
d
ic

ti
v
e
 f
a
s
h
io

n
. 
H

u
g
e
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ti
e
s
 a

re
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 

ta
rg

e
t 
s
e
tt
in

g
 a

t 
K

S
 4

, 
s
in

c
e
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

is
 c

o
h
o
rt

 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 a

rr
iv

e
d
 u

n
a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 a

s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e
k
e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

v
e
ry

 u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
is

it
e
 G

C
S

E
s
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 E

n
g
lis

h
. 

0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
t.

N
I

1
0
2

(a
)

 2
4
%

2
1
%

1
9
.5

%
K

S
2
: 
2
6
%

 

(D
C

S
F

R
e
le

a
s
e
)

-
-

-
2
7
.8

%
 

(S
u
m

m
e
r

0
9
)

-
-

N
I

1
0
2

(b
)

3
7
.0

%
3
3
.0

%
3
1
.0

%
K

S
4
: 
3
7
%

 

(D
C

S
F

 R
e
le

a
s
e

-
-

-
3
3
.5

%
 

(S
u
m

m
e
r

0
9
)

-
-

N
I

1
1
0

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 P

S
A

 1
4
 P

la
c
e
 

H
o
ld

e
r

7
3
.7

%

2
0
0
8
/0

9

7
8
.7

%
8
3
.7

%
7
1
.0

%
-

-
-

7
7
.7

%
R

e
d

T
o
p

Q
u
a
rt

ile

1
s
t 
o
f 
1
1
 

in
 i
ts

 S
N

 

g
ro

u
p

0
9
/1

0

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 T
e
llu

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o
w

s
 S

lo
u
g
h
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 6

.7
%

 

fr
o
m

 7
1
.0

%
 (

T
e
llu

s
3
 n

e
w

 w
e
ig

h
ti
n
g
) 

to
 7

7
.7

%
 (

T
e
llu

s
4
).

  
T

h
is

 

p
la

c
e
s
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
, 
ra

n
k
e
d
 7

th
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 (
o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
2
 

L
A

s
) 

a
n
d
 1

s
t 
(o

u
t 
o
f 
1
1
) 

in
 o

u
r 

S
N

 g
ro

u
p
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

1
%

 b
e
lo

w
 o

u
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
7
8
.7

%
. 
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

.

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 

fo
r 

fr
e
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 a
n
d
 

th
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
t 
K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e
s
 a

)2
 a

n
d
 b

)4
 P

S
A

 

1
1

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 L

O
W

: 
S

lo
u
g
h
’s

 2
0
0
9
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

t 
K

S
2
 o

f 

2
7
.8

%
 i
s
 m

a
rg

in
a
lly

 w
id

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
2
6
%

 i
n
 

n
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 w

id
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 g

a
p
 o

f 
2
2
.3

%
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 g
a
p
 o

f 
2
1
%

 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

is
 s

m
a
lle

r 
in

 c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 

g
a
p
 o

f 
2
9
.1

%
. 

L
A

's
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 a

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 a

t 
a
 f
a
s
te

r 

ra
te

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 
2
0
0
9
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 5

.3
%

 w
id

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 

n
a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 K

S
2
 g

a
p
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
2
2
.5

%
. 
 S

lo
u
g
h
’s

 2
0
0
9
 K

S
4
 g

a
p
 

fi
g
u
re

 o
f 
3
3
.5

%
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 3

.5
%

 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
rs

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
3
7
%

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 g

a
p
 i
s
 w

id
e
r 

th
a
n
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
f 
2
7
.8

%
. 
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
g
a
p
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
3
5
%

. 
 T

o
 

ra
is

e
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
le

v
e
l 
th

e
 R

a
is

in
g
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 b
e
lo

w
 

D
C

S
F

 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

IS
P

) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ti
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 S

IP
’s

 i
n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
ta

r g
e
t 
s
e
tt
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
. 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

1
-1

 t
u
it
io

n
, 
b
o
o
s
te

r 
c
la

s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

re
a
k
fa

s
t 
c
lu

b
 /
 a

ft
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
te

R
e
d

:

T
a
rg

e
t

N
o

t 
M

e
t

P
a
g
e
2
8
o
f
3
4

Page 34



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I

1
1
1

S
a
fe

r

S
lo

u
g
h

F
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

Y
o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

y
s
te

m
 

a
g
e
d
 1

0
 –

 1
7
 

2
0
4
0
 R

a
te

 

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

a
g
e
d
 1

0
-

1
7
 P

N
C

 

D
a
ta

 2
0
0
5

1
9
6
0
 R

a
te

 

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

1
9
2
0
 R

a
te

 

p
e
r

1
0
0
,0

0
0

O
v
e
ra

ll 
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 

2
2
0
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 

(a
p
p
ro

x
 1

8
1
4
.6

 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
)

5
6

e
n
tr

a
n
ts

3
8
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

1
6
.0

3
%

2
2
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

9
.2

8
%

O
v
e
ra

ll

2
0
0
9
/1

0

(p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l)

1
6
5
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 

(a
p
p
ro

x

1
3
6
0
.9

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
)

G
R

E
E

N
:

O
N

T
A

R
G

E
T

-
0

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 L
O

W
: 
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

is
 1

6
5
 f
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 
2
3
7
 o

r 
le

s
s
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

s
 

in
te

rn
a
l 
d
a
ta

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 d

if
fe

r 
to

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
fi
g
u
re

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

la
te

r 
in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 R
e
c
e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

n
a
m

e
ly

 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
Y

R
D

 (
Y

o
u
th

 R
e
s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 D

is
p
o
s
a
ls

),
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

a
il 

c
lin

ic
 s

y
s
te

m
 h

a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 

re
p
ri
m

a
n
d
 o

r 
fi
n
a
l 
w

a
rn

in
g
s
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 T

ri
a
g
e
 

w
o
rk

e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 Y

O
T

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
ri
m

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 w

ill
 

s
e
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

h
e
re

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 
a
 Y

R
D

 a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

a
im

e
d
 a

t 
fi
lt
e
ri
n

g
 t
h
e
m

 i
n
to

 d
iv

e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 a
c
ti
v
a
te

s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
Y

o
u
th

 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 y

o
u
th

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

IS
P

 

a
n
d
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ll 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
is

 

a
re

a
.

N
I

1
1
7

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
1
6
 t
o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 

a
re

 n
o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

(N
E

E
T

) 
P

S
A

 1
4

5
.3

%

F
e
b
 0

8

4
.4

%
4
.3

%
N

o
v
 5

.0
; 
 

D
e
c
 5

.4
;

J
a
n
 5

.6
;

A
n
n
u
a
l 
0
8
/0

9
 

o
u
tt
u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 

5
.3

%

A
p
r 

6
.5

;

M
a
y
 6

.1
;

J
u
n
e
 6

.3

Q
tr

 1
 

6
.3

%

J
u
ly

 7
.7

; 

A
u
g
 9

.2
; 

S
e
p
t 
9
.4

;

Q
tr

 2
 8

.8
%

O
c
t 
5
.9

;

N
o
v
 6

.6
; 

D
e
c
 6

.1
;

Q
tr

 3
 6

.2
%

N
o
v
 6

.6
%

D
e
c
 6

.1
%

J
a
n
 5

.2
%

O
v
e
ra

ll 
ra

te
 

fo
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0

6
.0

%

R
E

D
-

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 L

O
W

: 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
N

E
E

T
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

S
lo

u
g
h
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 i
s
 6

.0
%

 (
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
N

o
v
 6

.6
%

; 
D

e
c
 6

.1
%

 a
n
d
 J

a
n
 

5
.2

%
) 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 0

.7
%

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r'
s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
ra

te
 o

f 

5
.3

%
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
4
.4

%
.D

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

re
c
e
s
s
io

n
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 l
o
w

 r
a
te

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 

h
a
v
e
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
. 
S

lo
u
g
h
’s

 N
E

E
T

 r
a
te

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

o
u
r 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
rs

, 
o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
, 
to

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N

E
E

T
 r

a
te

 i
n
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
s
 

in
lin

e
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
tr

e
n
d
. 
It
 i
s
 s

p
e
c
u
la

te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

a
te

 h
a
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
. 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
u
d

g
e
t 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
.

N
I

1
2
1

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

M
o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 

c
ir
c
u
la

to
ry

 d
is

e
a
s
e
s
 a

t 

a
g
e
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

7
5
 

9
8
.5

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

a
g
e
d

b
e
lo

w
 7

5
 

1
9
9
5
 -

 9
7

-

F
o
r 

2
0
0
8
 

9
2
.8

3

7
3
.8

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

6
8
.7

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

L
a
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 

9
2
.6

8
 f
o
r 

C
Y

 

2
0
0
8
. 
 l
a
te

s
t 
3

y
r

d
a
ta

9
7
.1

3
(2

0
0
5
-

2
0
0
7
)

a
n
n
u
a
l

a
n
n
u
a
l

a
n
n
u
a
l

-
R

E
D

:

T
A

R
G

E
T

N
O

T
 M

E
T

 

b
a
s
e
d

 o
n

 

la
te

s
t 

3
 y

r 

d
a
ta

9
7
.1

3
(2

0
0

5
-2

0
0
7
),

9
2
.8

3
:

2
0
0
8

A
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
  
is

 

8
0
.7

3

A
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 

7
0
.8

8

L
O

W
 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
D

a
ta

 i
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 b
y
 t
h
e
 O

N
S

. 
 T

h
e
 

m
o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
5
-2

0
0
7
 i
s
 9

7
.1

3
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

m
o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

  
fo

r 
2
0
0
8
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 b
e
in

g
 9

2
.6

8
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 

a
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
1
1
7
.2

1
 a

n
d
 a

n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 3

 y
e
a
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

 a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
is

 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
. 
 A

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
re

n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 t
e
n
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
fl
u
c
tu

a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
  
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
ri
s
k
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 
a
ls

o
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 P

h
a
rm

a
c
ie

s
.

P
a
g
e
2
9
o
f
3
4

Page 35



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I

1
2
3

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

1
6
+

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 r

a
te

 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 P

S
A

 1
8
- 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
m

o
k
e
rs

 

q
u
it
ti
n
g

7
0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

6
7
4
 a

c
tu

a
l 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

o
f

s
m

o
k
e
rs

q
u
it
ti
n
g

7
0
7
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

7
7
2

a
b
s
o
lu

te

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

s
m

o
k
e
rs

q
u
it
ti
n
g

7
0
8
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

7
7
3

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
m

o
k
e
rs

q
u
it
ti
n
g

tb
c
  
  
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
, 

0
0
0
  
  
  
  
 7

3
1
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
b
s
o
lu

te

q
u
it
te

rs

(p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l)

tb
c
 P

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0

a
b
s
o
lu

te

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

q
u
it
te

rs

tb
c
 P

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0

3
7
5

a
b
s
o
lu

te

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

q
u
it
te

rs

tb
c
 P

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 4

6
5
 

a
b
s
o
lu

te

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

q
u
it
te

rs
(t

b
c
)

-
G

R
E

E
N

 :
 

O
N

T
A

R
G

E
T

-
R

a
n
k
e
d

3
rd

 o
u
t 
o
f 

1
6
 I
P

F
 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to

r 
g
ro

u
p
 f
o
r 

la
te

s
t

p
e
ri
o
d

(0
1
/1

0
/2

0
0

8
 -

 

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0

8
)

D
a
ta

 f
o
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

tw
o
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 w
e
 a

re
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 

ta
rg

e
t.
  
D

a
ta

 f
o
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

th
re

e
 i
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
  
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 r
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
h
e
s
e
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
ra

n
s
la

te
d
 t
o
 a

n
 a

b
s
o
lu

te
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
q
u
it
te

rs
. 
 G

o
o
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
y
p
if
ie

d
 b

y
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fo

u
r 

w
e
e
k
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 q

u
it
te

rs
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 N

H
S

 S
to

p
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
th

e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 2

0
0
4
/5

- 
2
0
0
6
/7

. 
 I
t 
a
p
p
e
a
rs

 o
ff
ic

ia
l 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 h

u
b
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

t 
P

C
T

 l
e
v
e
l 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 L

A
  
le

v
e
l.

N
I

1
2
4

lo
c
a
l

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
- 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 l
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 -

"%
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 a

 L
T

 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 w

h
o
 "

h
a
d
 

e
n
o
u
g
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
(s

)"

 0
7
/0

8
 

o
u
tt
u
rn

w
a
s

7
6
.1

9
%

a
w

a
it
in

g

0
8
/0

9
 d

a
ta

-
 0

7
/0

8
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 

w
a
s
 7

6
.1

9
%

 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

la
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
T

h
e
 

0
8
/0

9
 d

a
ta

 n
o
t 

y
e
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

a
n
n
u
a
l

a
n
n
u
a
l

a
n
n
u
a
l

s
ti
ll 

a
w

a
it
in

g

0
8
/0

9
 d

a
ta

-
A

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 f
o
r 

0
7
/0

8
 o

f 
7
5

B
e
lo

w

re
g
io

n
a
l

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 

7
8

R
a
n
k
e
d

4
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 

1
5
 I
P

F
 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to

r 
g
ro

u
p
 f
o
r 

la
te

s
t

p
e
ri
o
d

(0
1
/0

4
/2

0
0

7
 -

 

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
0

8
)

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
S

ti
ll 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 0

8
/0

9
 d

a
ta

.(
P

C
T

 P
a
ti
e
n
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
) 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 o
f 
7
6
.1

9
%

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 w

a
s
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
u
p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 

fi
g
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
is

 n
e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 S

lo
u
g
h
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
u
lly

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 

c
a
re

 a
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
n
g
 a

 p
ro

x
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
in

te
rm

e
d
ia

te
 c

a
re

 w
h
o
 h

a
d
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 m

a
n
a

g
e

th
e
ir
 l
o
n
g
te

rm
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 w

ill
 a

d
d
 v

a
lu

e
. 

N
I

1
3
0

(a
)

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 c
lie

n
ts

 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

(D
ir
e
c
t 
P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

a
n
d
 I
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
ts

) 

D
H

 D
S

O
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a
r 

p
lu

s
 c

a
re

rs
 o

n
 d

ir
e
c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n

ts

5
.3

4
%

0
7
/0

8

(a
c
c
o
rd

in
g

to
 n

e
w

 

d
e
fi
n
it
io

n

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 

fr
o
m

0
9
/1

0
)

4
5
0
 u

s
e
rs

 

o
r 

1
2
.5

%
 o

f 

c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

b
a
s
e
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
0
8
0
 u

s
e
rs

 

o
r 

3
0
%

 o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
a
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

b
a
s
e
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

3
5
8
 o

r 
1
1
%

 o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

b
a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(2
8
2
3
) 

p
lu

s
 

c
a
re

rs
(7

7
4
)

to
ta

lli
n
g
 3

5
9
7

2
4
4
 u

s
e
rs

 

o
r 

6
.7

%
 o

f 

c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f

c
o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 b

a
s
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

2
6
0
 u

s
e
rs

 

o
r 

7
.2

%
 

c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

b
a
s
e
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

4
1
0
 u

s
e
rs

 o
r 

1
1
.4

%

c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

b
a
s
e
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

5
4
3
 u

s
e
rs

 o
r 

1
2
.9

%
 o

f 

c
lie

n
ts

re
c
e
iv

in
g

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

b
a
s
e
d

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

(3
2
1
5
) 

a
n
d
 

p
lu

s
 9

9
9
 

c
a
re

rs

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 

s
e
rv

ic
e

to
ta

lli
n
g

4
2
1
4

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

G
R

E
E

N
T

o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 

0
8
/0

9

T
o
p

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 o

f 

IP
F

C
o
m

p
a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p
 

0
8
/ 
0
9

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

P
a
g
e
3
0
o
f
3
4

Page 36



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I

1
3
5

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
ll 

B
e
in

g

C
a
re

rs
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 n

e
e
d
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 

a
n
d
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
a
re

r’
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
o
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

2
1
%

 (
6
2
9
 

c
a
re

rs
)

(H
u
b

fi
g
u
re

 i
s
 

2
0
.3

2
)

2
5
%

(a
p
p
ro

x

7
0
8
 c

a
re

rs
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
)

2
8
%

(a
p
p
ro

x

8
0
0
 c

a
re

rs
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
)

2
7
.4

%

7
7
4
 C

a
re

rs
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 D

iv
id

e
d
 

b
y
 2

8
2
3
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

b
a
s
e
d
 u

s
e
rs

D
a
ta

a
v
a
ila

b
le

in
 O

c
to

b
e
r

2
7
1

(p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l

)

5
4
2
 c

a
re

rs
 

(p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l)

3
2
%

 :
 1

0
2
9
 

c
a
re

rs
 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

o
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 

d
iv

id
e
d
 b

y
 

3
2
1
5

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

b
a
s
e
d
 u

s
e
rs

G
R

E
E

N
T

o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 

0
8
/0

9

S
e
c
o
n
d

q
u
a
rt

ile
 o

f 

IP
F

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to

r 
g
ro

u
p
 

0
8
/0

9

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

N
I

1
4
0

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

c
o
h
e
s
io

n

F
a
ir
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 P

S
A

 1
5

6
1
.4

%
N

/A
6
5
.0

%
6
1
.4

%
b
ie

n
n
ia

l
b
ie

n
n
ia

l
b
ie

n
n
ia

l
b
ie

n
n
ia

l
N

/A
L
o
w

e
s
t

Q
u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 2

0
0
8

-

2
0
1
0

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
(P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
-t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 b
ie

n
n
ie

l 
s
u
rv

e
y
 s

o
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

0
9
/1

0
 w

ill
 r

e
m

a
in

 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 0

8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

) 

S
lo

u
g
h
's

 o
u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 6

1
.4

%
 w

h
ic

h
 p

la
c
e
s
 S

lo
u
g
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 
 T

h
e
 S

E
 R

e
g
io

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 v

a
lu

e
 i
s
 

7
5
.8

%
 w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 v

a
lu

e
 i
s
 7

2
.4

%
. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
h
e
s
io

n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
: 
E

a
c
h
 P

D
G

 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 k

e
y
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
; 
 T

o
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 2

0
0
8
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 b

y
 R

a
c
e
, 
R

e
lig

io
n
, 
A

g
e
, 
D

is
a
b
ili

ty
, 
G

e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 W

a
rd

 ;
 T

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
; 
S

B
C

 h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 o

f 
th

e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
 a

n
d
 w

ill
  
id

e
n
ti
fy

 e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 p

e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
fr

o
m

 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
re

 b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

; 
S

B
C

  
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
ta

ff
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
; 
  
D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 9

 J
u
ly

, 
th

e
m

e
 a

ro
u
n
d
  
“m

y

N
I

1
4
4

S
a
fe

r

S
lo

u
g
h

O
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 u
n
d
e
r 

p
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 i
n
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

th
e
ir
 o

rd
e
r 

o
r 

lic
e
n
c
e
 P

S
A

 

1
6

3
9
.0

%
4
3
%

 o
f 
th

e
 

to
ta

l

4
5
%

 o
f 
th

e
 

to
ta

l

3
8
.2

%
4
4
.5

%
4
1
.7

%
6
2
.5

%
R

e
s
u
lt
 d

u
e
 

O
c
t 
2
0
1
0

0
-

-
G

O
O

D
 T

O
 B

E
 H

IG
H

: 
T

h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

fi
g
u
re

 e
q
u
a
te

s
 t
o
 3

5
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
u
t 
o
f 
a
 c

o
h
o
rt

 o
f 
5
6
. 
G

iv
e
n
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
lo

c
a
l 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 o

f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 o
b
ta

in
in

g
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
6
2
.5

%
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 h
ig

h
. 
T

h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

O
ff
e
n
d
e
r 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 (

N
O

M
S

) 
is

 t
o
 r

e
-r

u
n
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 

c
h
e
c
k
 v

e
ra

c
it
y
 o

f 
re

s
u
lt
s
. 
T

h
is

 t
h
ir
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

d
a
ta

 r
e
s
u
lt
 m

u
s
t 

th
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 w

it
h
 d

o
u
b
t.

P
a
g
e
3
1
o
f
3
4

Page 37



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I

1
5
2

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
W

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
n
 

o
u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 P
S

A
 

8

1
1
.5

%

0
6
/0

7

1
1
%

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic

in
d
ic

a
to

r

T
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 

b
e

re
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d

In
d
ic

a
to

r

1
0
.5

%

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic

in
d
ic

a
to

r

T
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 

b
e

re
a
s
s
e
s
s
e

d

1
1
%

(2
0
0
8

C
a
le

n
d
a
r 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
in

g
Q

tr
 4

 O
c
t-

D
e
c
)

1
1
.4

 J
a
n
-

M
a
rc

h

2
0
0
9
 i
s
 

th
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

d
a
ta

-
-

-
A

M
B

E
R

-
-

L
O

W
 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
T

h
e
 d

a
ta

 s
o
u
rc

e
 i
s
 D

W
P

-r
e
le

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

n
 8

 m
o
n
th

 t
im

e
 l
a
g
. 
D

a
ta

 i
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 a

s
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
4
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 b
u
t 
w

it
h
 a

 t
im

e
 l
a
g
. 
 F

ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

J
a
n
-M

a
r 

2
0
0
9
 w

a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 e

n
d
 o

f 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 

s
h
o
w

s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
d
ro

p
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 0

8
/0

9
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

N
I

1
5
5

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 

h
o
m

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 (

g
ro

s
s
) 

P
S

A
 2

0

0
(G

o
s
e

h
a
v
e

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d

b
a
s
e
lin

e

a
s
 0

)

2
0
4

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

1
2
8

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

a
c
c
u
m

u
la

ti

v
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 

4
8
4

2
7
2

a
c
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

7
8

9
9
 

(a
c
c
u
m

u
la

ti

v
e
)

1
2
2

(a
c
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
)

2
2
0

(a
c
c
u
m

u
la

ti

v
e
)

G
R

E
E

N
-

-
H

IG
H

 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
D

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 4

th
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 9
8
 u

n
it
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

O
f 
th

e
s
e
 7

8
 w

e
re

 a
t 
th

e
 1

-7
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
S

lo
u
g
h
 s

it
e
 (

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 

th
e
 S

lo
u
g
h
 -

 W
in

d
s
o
r 

C
e
n
tr

e
 r

a
ilw

a
y
),

 a
n
d
 1

1
 a

t 
th

e
 G

ra
n
v
ill

e
 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 s

it
e
.O

v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

w
a
s
 2

2
0
, 
th

is
 w

a
s
 6

 u
n
it
s
 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
2
1
4
.

N
I

1
6
3

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
W

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 t
o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 

2
 o

r 
h
ig

h
e
r 

P
S

A
 2

6
0
.5

%

A
P

S
 2

0
0
6
 

(u
p
d
a
te

d

2
2
.0

1
.0

9
)

6
2
.2

%

1
.7

%

in
c
re

a
s
e

o
v
e
r

b
a
s
e
lin

e

6
4
.2

%

3
.7

%

in
c
re

a
s
e

o
v
e
r

b
a
s
e
lin

e

6
7
.0

9
%

 (
2
0
0
8
)

la
te

s
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 

d
a
ta

A
n
n
u
a
l

re
p
o
rt

in
g

A
n
n
u
a
l

re
p
o
rt

in
g

A
n
n
u
a
l

re
p
o
rt

in
g

2
0
0
9
 d

a
ta

 

n
o
t 
y
e
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

-
-

-
H

IG
H

 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
2
0
0
9
 d

a
ta

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
 L

a
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 d

a
ta

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
 (

6
7
.0

9
%

) 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
6
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
6
0
.5

%
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 n

e
a
rl
y
 6

%
. 
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
a
c
to

rs
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 m

ig
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 i
n
to

 S
lo

u
g
h
 a

tt
ra

c
te

d
 b

y
 n

e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

N
I

1
6
4

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
W

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 t
o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
L
e
v
e
l 

3
 o

r 
h
ig

h
e
r 

P
S

A
 2

3
7
%

 A
P

S
 

2
0
0
6

(u
p
d
a
te

d

2
2
.0

1
.0

9
)

3
9
.2

%

2
.2

%

in
c
re

a
s
e

o
v
e
r

b
a
s
e
lin

e

4
0
.2

%

3
.2

%

in
c
re

a
s
e

o
v
e
r

b
a
s
e
lin

e

4
4
.5

%
 (

2
0
0
8
)

la
te

s
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 

d
a
ta

A
n
n
u
a
l

re
p
o
rt

in
g

A
n
n
u
a
l

re
p
o
rt

in
g

A
n
n
u
a
l

re
p
o
rt

in
g

2
0
0
9
 d

a
ta

 

n
o
t 
y
e
t 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d

-
-

-
H

IG
H

 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
 2

0
0
9
 d

a
ta

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
 L

a
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 d

a
ta

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

(4
4
.5

%
) 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
6
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
3
6
.8

%
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 0

8
/0

9
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 6

.3
%

. 
 P

o
s
s
ib

le
 f
a
c
to

rs
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 m

ig
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 i
n
to

 S
lo

u
g
h
 a

tt
ra

c
te

d
 b

y
 n

e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

-
E

c
o
n
o
m

y
-

a
n
n
u
a
l

s
u
rv

e
y

a
n
n
u
a
l

s
u
rv

e
y

a
n
n
u
a
l

s
u
rv

e
y

1
0
%

(1
1
/1

0
3
) 

in
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h
 

s
a
p
 r

a
ti
n
g
 

b
e
lo

w
 3

5
%

, 

3
0
%

(3
1
/1

0
3
) 

in
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h
 

S
A

P
 r

a
ti
n
g
 

a
b
o
v
e
 6

5
%

-
-

T
a
c
k
lin

g
 f
u
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 –

 

p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 

h
o
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 l
o
w

 e
n
e
rg

y
 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 r

a
ti
n
g
 D

e
fr

a
 

D
a
ta

 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

to
c
k
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 f
o
r 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 

h
o
u
s
in

g
. 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

to
c
k
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 s

h
o
w

e
d
 

7
%

 i
n
 f
u
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
.e

. 
in

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 w

it
h
 a

 S
A

P
 r

a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
u
n
d
e
r 

3
5
%

 

(l
o
w

 e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
) 

a
n
d
 4

1
%

 i
n
 a

 S
A

P
 r

a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
o
v
e
r 

6
5
%

 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 g
o
o
d
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
. 
 T

h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 a

n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
e
n
 1

0
%

 o
f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 h

a
d
 a

 S
A

P
 r

a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
le

s
s
 t
h
a
n
 3

5
, 
w

h
ile

 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 b

e
tt
e
r 

in
s
u
la

te
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 f
ro

m
 3

0
%

 t
o
 

4
1
%

.

N
I

1
8
7

<
3
5
 =

 7
%

>
6
5
 =

 4
1
%

-
-

P
a
g
e
3
2
o
f
3
4

Page 38



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I

1
7
1

E
c
o
n
o
m

y
V

A
T

 r
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 -
 

n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

re
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 1

6
 y

e
a
rs

 

a
n
d
 o

v
e
r

6
1
.3

%

a
v
e
ra

g
e

2
0
0
5
 -

 

2
0
0
7
 i
n
 

e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

b
ir
th

s

d
iv

id
e
d
 b

y
 

1
0
 0

0
0
 

p
o
p

6
6
.7

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

6
6
.7

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

6
9
.1

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
 

o
n
ly

(l
a
te

s
t

d
a
ta

)0
8
/0

9
 d

a
ta

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 J
a
n
 

2
0
1
0

a
v
a
ila

b
le

J
a
n
 2

0
1
0

-
-

-
-

-
R

a
n
k
e
d

2
n
d
 o

u
t 
o
f 

1
6
 I
P

F
 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to

r 
g
ro

u
p
 f
o
r 

la
te

s
t

p
e
ri
o
d

(0
1
/0

1
/2

0
0

7
 -

 

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0

7
)

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
 D

a
ta

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

B
E

R
R

 w
e
b
s
it
e
. 
 D

a
ta

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

2
0
0
7
 

d
a
ta

 w
a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
r y

 0
9
 s

h
o
w

in
g

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

s
  
6
9
.1

n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 1

6
 y

e
a
rs

 

a
n
d
 o

v
e
r.

  
T

h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6
1
.3

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 2

0
0
5
-2

0
0
7
.

N
I

1
7
5

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e

n
t

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 b

y
 p

u
b
lic

 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

, 
w

a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d
 

c
y
c
lin

g

a
) 

6
1
%

2
0
0
6
/7

b
)

1
,7

7
0
,8

1
8

2
0
0
6
/0

7

a
) 

  
6
5
%

 

b
)2

,4
8
9
,4

8

7

a
) 

6
7
%

 -
a
)7

7
%

 

b
)2

,6
8
7
,6

2
4

a
) 

7
7
%

b
)

6
2
6
,1

2
9

(E
O

Y

p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n

is 2
,5

0
4
,5

1
6

a
) 

7
7
%

b
)

1
,5

0
7
,1

7
1

a
) 

7
7
%

b
) 

1
,9

8
0
,4

8
4

-
G

R
E

E
N

-
-

H
IG

H
 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
 S

B
C

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 a
re

 f
o
re

c
a
s
ti
n

g
 a

 5
%

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 

in
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 H

e
a
th

ro
w

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 b

la
m

e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
.

N
I

1
7
7

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e

n
t

L
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
 p

a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

jo
u
rn

e
y
s
 o

ri
g

in
a
ti
n

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
 

4
,3

2
6
,2

0
0

tr
ip

s

2
0
0
6
/0

7

4
,6

1
4
,1

3
3

tr
ip

s

4
,7

0
1
,8

9
5

tr
ip

s

4
,7

8
4
,4

5
9
 t
ri
p
s

1
,1

5
9
,4

9
3

(E
O

Y

p
ro

je
c
ti
o
n

is 4
,6

3
7
,9

7
2

2
,2

8
1
,6

8
8

(c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

)

3
5
3
5
4
4
4

-
G

R
E

E
N

-
-

H
IG

H
 I
S

 G
O

O
D

: 
S

B
C

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 a
re

 f
o
re

c
a
s
ti
n
g
 a

 3
%

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 

in
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 b

la
m

e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
.

N
I

1
8
6

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e

n
t

P
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 C

O
2
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

A
 a

re
a
 

P
S

A
 2

7

la
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 

1
.5

9
%

in
c
re

a
s
e

(2
0
0
6
 o

v
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 )

2
0
0
7
 d

a
ta

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

in
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
0
9

4
%

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

5
.5

t 
C

O
2
 

p
e
r 

h
e
a
d

9
%

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

5
.2

1
t 
C

O
2
 

p
e
r 

h
e
a
d

la
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 

1
.5

9
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

(2
0
0
6
 o

v
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 )

  
 2

0
0
7
 

d
a
ta

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 

in
 S

e
p
t 
2
0
0
9
, 

2
0
0
8
 d

a
ta

 t
b
c

A
n
n
u
a
l

re
p
o
rt

A
n
n
u
a
l

re
p
o
rt

A
n
n
u
a
l

re
p
o
rt

2
0
0
8
 d

a
ta

 

n
o
t 
y
e
t 

re
le

a
s
e
d

-
-

H
ig

h
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 G

o
o
d
: 
D

a
ta

 r
e
le

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 D

E
C

C
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

fo
r 

2
0
0
7
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 o

f 
a
b
o
u
t 
1
%

 a
 y

e
a
r 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

 2
0
0
5
-2

0
0
7
.F

a
ilu

re
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

re
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

 s
h
o
rt

fa
ll 

o
f 
2
.5

%
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 2

0
1
1
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
9
%

. 

C
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

L
A

’s
 s

h
o
w

 S
B

C
 2

6
7
th

 b
e
s
t 
o
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

p
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
);

 1
3
th

 b
e
s
t 
o
n
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 (

p
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
);

 1
1
th

 b
e
s
t 
o
n
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

p
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
);

a
n
d
 8

7
th

 

b
e
s
t 
fo

r 
T

o
ta

l 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

p
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
).

S
e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
rb

o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

 &
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 o

u
r 

C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

h
a
v
e

y
e
t 
to

 f
e
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 i
n
to

 d
a
ta

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

th
e
 s

ig
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 N

o
tt
in

g
h
a
m

 D
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

n
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t;
 s

ig
n
in

g
 u

p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1

0
:1

0
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 1

0
%

 i
n
 a

 y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 “

S
w

it
c
h
 O

ff
” 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 f
o
r 

C
iv

ic
 o

ff
ic

e
s
..

P
a
g
e
3
3
o
f
3
4

Page 39



B
a
s
e
li
n

e

y
e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

v
a
lu

e

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
IS

R
e
f

0
8
/0

9
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 

(R
A

G
 s

ta
tu

s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
8
/0

9
 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
h

e
re

 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
)

T
a
rg

e
ts

P
ri

o
ri

ty
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r

2
n

d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

re
s
u

lt
s

J
u

ly
-S

e
p

t

0
9
/1

0

1
s
t

q
u

a
rt

e
r

R
e
s
u

lt
s

A
p

ri
l-

J
u

n
e

0
9
/1

0

3
rd

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s

O
c
t-

D
e
c

0
9
/1

0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 i
f 

re
d

 

S
ta

tu
s

E
n

d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

o
u

tt
u

rn

0
9
/1

0

L
a
te

s
t

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

P
o

s
it

io
n

W
h
e
re

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

P
W

C

ra
n
k
in

g
s

u
s
e
d

L
a
te

s
t

C
o

m
p

a
ra

t

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 

P
o

s
it

io
n

(L
o
w

e
s
t

IP
F

 f
ig

u
re

 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 

b
e
s
t

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

L
a
te

s
t

P
e
rf

o
rm

a

n
c
e

S
ta

tu
s

a
g

a
in

s
t

T
a
rg

e
t:

R
A

G

S
L

O
U

G
H

 L
S

P
 L

A
A

 2
0

0
9

 -
 1

0
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 A
N

D
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

  
  

  
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 E

N
I

1
9
2

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e

n
t

H
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 

re
c
y
c
le

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
te

d
 

D
e
fr

a
 D

S
O

-
2
8
.0

%
2
9
.0

%
2
6
.1

9
%

 

p
ro

je
c
te

d

3
2
.0

%
N

o
 d

a
ta

-
-

-
-

G
O

O
D

 T
O

 B
E

 H
IG

H
: 
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 r
e
d
 b

in
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 

w
id

e
n
e
d
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
, 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

 

o
f 
3
2
%

. 
T

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 f
u
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 f
la

ts
. 

T
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

r y
g

re
e
n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 n

o
w

 h
a
s
 o

v
e
r 

2
0
,0

0
0
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
p
lo

y
e
d
 a

t 

th
e
 C

h
a
lv

e
y
 C

iv
ic

 A
m

e
n
it
y
 S

it
e
 t
o
 s

o
rt

 a
n
d
 d

iv
e
rt

 w
a
s
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
rs

. 
R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 

s
tr

o
n
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 a

d
a
p
ti
n
g
 t
o
 n

e
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

m
in

im
is

in
g
 w

a
s
te

 t
o
 f
in

a
l 
d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
w

h
e
re

v
e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
.

N
I

1
9
8

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e

n
t

C
h
ild

re
n
 t
ra

v
e
lli

n
g
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
–
 m

o
d
e
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 

u
s
u
a
lly

 u
s
e
d
 .
  
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

in
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
ra

v
e
lli

n
g
 t
o
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
y
 c

a
r

3
9
%

S
e
c
o
n
d

L
o
c
a
l

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

P
la

n
  
-

2
0
0
6
/0

7

3
6
.0

%
3
5
.0

%
A

g
e
  
  
 5

-1
0
  
 

A
g

e
 1

1
-1

6
  
 C

a
r 

4
2
%

  
  
3
3
.9

%

C
a
r 

s
h
a
re

2
.8

%
  
9
.9

%

P
u
b
 T

ra
n
s

1
.9

%
  
1
6
.2

%

W
a
lk

in
g
  
5
2
%

3
0
.7

%
  
C

y
c
lin

g

0
.9

%
  
2
.9

%

O
th

e
r 

 0
.4

%

6
.4

%
 C

a
r 

S
h
a
re

 

fo
r 

5
 -

1
6
 a

g
e
 

g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 3

9
.5

%

a
n
n
u
a
l

0
9
/1

0

d
a
ta

a
v
a
ila

b
le

s
e
p
t 
2
0
1
0

-
S

c
h
o
o
l

c
e
n
s
u
s
 d

u
e
 

to
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 

in
 F

e
b
 2

0
1
0
.

A
g

e
  
  
 5

-1
0

A
g
e
 1

1
-1

6

C
a
r 

  
  
 3

9
%

2
9
%

  
  
  
C

a
r 

s
h
a
re

  
3
.2

%

6
.9

%

P
u
b
 T

ra
n
s

1
.6

%
  
1
6
%

W
a
lk

in
g

5
5
.2

%
  
4
3
%

C
y
c
lin

g

0
.6

%
  
3
%

O
th

e
r 

 0
.4

%

2
.1

%
 C

a
r 

S
h
a
re

 f
o
r 

5
 -

1
6
 a

g
e
 

g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 

3
5
.1

%

G
R

E
E

N
-

-
T

h
e
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

re
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
e
n
s
u
s
 (

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 F

e
b
 2

0
1
0
).

 T
h
is

 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 m
u
c
h
 b

e
tt
e
r 

re
fl
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
tr

a
v
e
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 g

e
tt
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 t
o
 u

s
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

m
o
d
e
s
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

. 
S

B
C

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 h

a
rd

 i
n
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
tr

a
v
e
l 
p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 o

r 
a
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t
ra

v
e
l 
p
la

n
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
s
 (

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 S

T
A

R
S

) 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

y
e
a
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 c

h
o
o
s
in

g
 t
o
 w

a
lk

/c
y
c
le

o
r 

ta
k
e
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 

c
e
n
s
u
s
 r

e
tu

rn
.

O
v
e
ra

ll 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 l
if
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
L
T

P
 t
o
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

o
n
-c

a
r 

m
o
d
e
 s

h
a
re

 f
ro

m
 3

9
%

 i
n
 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 t
o
 3

5
%

 b
y
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
tr

a
v
e
l 
p
la

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
th

re
e
 y

e
a
rs

 w
ill

 a
s
s
is

t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
fo

r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 o

u
r 

L
A

A
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 

a
g
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
.

P
a
g
e
3
4
o
f
3
4

Page 40



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 

REPORT TO:    Overview and Scrutiny Committee   DATE:  1st July 2010 
 
FROM:  Rafiq Chohan, Assistant Director, Economic Development and 

Inclusion, Improvement and Development 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: Rafiq Chohan 
(01753) 875847 - rafiq.chohan@slough.gov.uk 

 
WARD(S):   All 
 

PART I 
 

FOR INFORMATION 
 

UNEMPLOYMENT AND RESPONSE TO THE ECONOMIC DOWNTURN 
 
 

1 Purpose of Report 
 
 This report provides an update on the Council’s response to the economic downturn. 

The main focus of the report relates to the employment support provided for the 
unemployed. 

 
2 Recommendation 
 
 The Economic Development and Inclusion unit is endeavouring to maintain support 

for all services in the current economic climate despite the threat of budget cuts.  Full 
details are enclosed and attached to this Report.  However, we welcome advice and 
input from the Committee on the following key points: 

 
 A How best we maximise resources to support the existing unemployed? 
 
 B How we increase resources to cope with the expected uplift in 

unemployment and whether any funds are likely to be diverted from 
elsewhere (expecting none or very limited from Central Government)? 

 
 C Consider the implications for society as a whole and the specific implications 

for community cohesion as the economic climate deteriorate. 
 
3 Report 
 
 Introduction 
 
 At the start of the recession the Council was one of the few authorities in the country 

that established an economic task force in response to the “credit crunch” and the 
consequential economic downturn. This was made up of Directors of the Council and 
Chaired by the Chief Executive. The terms of reference for the group were to assess 
trends in the town and to respond in a proportionate and co-ordinated manner.  A 
number of key data sets were monitored which included: 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 41



 

• Unemployment 

• Housing 

• Benefits demand 

• Debt 

• Impact on businesses 
 

Economic Development and Inclusion response to unemployment 
 
3.1 A key priority of the response was to mitigate the wider consequential impacts of the 

credit crunch by increasing support for the unemployed. In Slough we have provided 
support to the unemployed by working in partnership with Job Centre Plus who has 
the primary statutory responsibility for the unemployed. In addition, we secured 
funding from the LSP Performance Reward Grant to set up the Steps2Employment 
programme and secured money from GOSE for an Exemplar project focused on 
supporting 18 to 24 year olds and Black and Minority Ethnic communities.  We were 
also successful in securing funding from the Department of Work and Pensions 
Future Jobs Fund for 18 to 24 year olds as part of a Berkshire wide bid. We 
successfully recruited 10 young people aged between 18 to 24 year olds for a six 
month period. We had bid to extend this to another 10 young people but this has 
been discontinued by the new coalition government. 

 
3.2 We have continued to support lone parents and this previously short term funded 

post has now been mainstreamed. A work placement officer is in the process of 
being recruited to enable more opportunities for placements both within Slough 
Borough Council but also to encourage other employers to place more local people. 
This would include undergraduates, newly qualified graduates, long term 
unemployed, returners to work, people previously on incapacity benefit returning to 
work and lone parents and summer placements. As the largest employer in the town 
we are seeking to set an example to other employers so that they too will recruit 
more local people. 

 
3.3 We have also continued to provide accredited Information, Advice and Guidance 

(IAG) for the unemployed and low skilled. A contract to provide the new Adult 
Careers IAG has been secured for a further 3 years from VT who is prime contractor.  
A recent Matrix Assessment Inspection of our provision was highly regarded and a 
number of elements of our provision were assessed as being exemplary. 

 
 Highlights of the key strengths of our service are detailed below.  The numbers and 

letters in brackets refer to the relevant elements and criteria in the Matrix Standard. 
 

• All staff interviewed from the senior manager to those delivering the service 
demonstrated a very thorough understanding of the local context in which 
services are delivered.  Staff were able to quote both formal statistics on levels 
of unemployment, child poverty, demographics, as well as anecdotal evidence.  
They were also able to describe in detail how this ‘local intelligence’ is used to 
identify areas of need; plan useful and appropriate interventions; and evaluate 
effectiveness and impact (5a and 8a and d). 

 

• As identified at the last Review, relationships with clients are particularly strong. 
Evidence from focus groups demonstrated that the Employment & Enterprise 
Group is reaching the target client groups and successfully engaging them in 

Page 42



services by investing in a wide range of outreach activities and ‘taking services 
to clients’.  Clients report consistently high satisfaction levels.  Clients report that 
they feel they have moved on substantially as a direct result of the IAG services 
received.  Clients also express tremendous gratitude to individual advisors.  A 
significant number of clients access the services because they have been 
recommended by previous and existing service users (1c & d). 

 

• There is a substantial investment in staff support and development.  
Management practice is governed by Slough Borough Council’s personnel 
policies and practices – these include regular (monthly) one to one supervision 
sessions and a formal twice yearly performance appraisal process.  All staff 
confirmed that these practices were implemented.  Additionally staff described 
how they are fully involved in target setting and the design of new initiatives, and 
how they had access to and had engaged with a comprehensive range of 
development opportunities including qualifications and short courses.  This 
results in high levels of competence, job satisfaction and staff retention (6B, e & 
f and 5c). 

 

• Relationships with partners are also a key strength of the Employment & 
Enterprise Group.  All partners interviewed by the Assessor spoke highly of the 
Group, reporting regular and effective communications.  Partners also described 
how the Group had worked with them to ensure that services which could have 
become competitive were, through careful joint planning, complementary.  One 
partner commented that the Group was significantly more successful at 
engaging employers than their own organisation (5g). 

 

• Also significant is the work of the Employment & Enterprise Manager in re-
establishing the local IAG Officers Group – a useful forum for all advisors in 
Slough, regardless of employer, to come together to share best practice and 
hear from invited speakers in order to keep up to date with changes and 
developments.  All of the Group’s IAG staff attend this forum and described how 
doing so contributed to their knowledge and understanding (6b). 

 
3.4 Slough’s unemployment, as measured by Job Seeker Allowance benefit claimants, 

has continued to fall each month for the last 5 months. 
 

• It was 3,553 in January and is now 3,295 (4.2%).  Of these 2,170 have been 
unemployed for 6 months or less which represents 65.5% of all those claiming 
benefit.  This compares favourably with the South East and the UK as a whole 
who have 62% and 60.6% respectively. 
 

• So even though unemployment overall in Slough is marginally higher, long term 
unemployment is lower. There are just 440 people who have been unemployed 
for over 12 months.  This represents 13.3% of our total unemployed which again 
is lower than the South East 16.8% and the UK 17.5%.  This suggests early 
intervention may be contributing to minimising the risk of longer term and more 
damaging structural unemployment. 
 

• Chalvey has the highest level of JSA benefit claimants at 395 and Langley St. 
Marys the lowest at 135. However, overall unemployment is still considerably 
higher than the 2,260 in January of 2009. 
 

Page 43



• A particular concern had been the increased unemployment levels of 18 to 24 
year olds. In Slough we have continued to see a reduction in unemployment 
amongst this group in recent months. However, there is concern that many 
newly qualified Slough graduates are unemployed or doing jobs that do not 
reflect their ability. In May there were 765 18 to 24 year olds claiming JSA 
benefit the lowest since February of 2009. This represents just 23.1 of our total 
unemployed which is lower than the South East’s 25.8% and the UK’s 27.7%. A 
Graduate Network is being established to support new graduates into 
employment. 

 
3.5 There is a growing concern over the steady increase of ESA and Incapacity Benefit 

claimants which was 4,800 in November 2009 and is the most recent data available. 
Plans to reassess such claimants may result in at least 50% being reassessed and 
not entitled to claim ESA. In this regard we are working with partners to see how we 
could develop services further to support this group and implement the concept of a 
work health trainer which is a unique initiative developed jointly with the PCT, TVU 
and Dynamic Training. This approach could deliver significant potential 
improvements in job and health prospects and could save taxpayers many millions of 
pounds. Initial case study reviews of 50 such individuals show a very positive 
response towards job related outcomes. 

 
3.6 Unemployment, as defined by JSA claimants, does not fully reflect the total 

unemployed cohort and there are many people who cannot claim benefit or choose 
not to. It is estimated that true unemployment is around 8%. The support provided by 
Slough Borough Council does not distinguish between benefit claimants and other 
unemployed as both groups have a need to secure employment. Some early 
intervention with those newly unemployed helps to ensure that they do not get to the 
point of having to claim benefit. 

 
3.7 Job Centre vacancies have increased from 289 in January to 512 which is 

encouraging. However, that still represents JSA claimants to vacancies ratio of 6.5.  
Vacancy levels have not increased significantly and are at similar level to that of a 
year ago. These vacancies are largely lower order jobs and do not reflect the full 
spectrum of job vacancies in the market.  Anecdotal evidence suggests that some 
companies in telecommunications and R&D are recruiting. On the horizon it is 
thought that Sainsbury will provide an additional 400 new jobs. 

 
3.8 There is considerable concern about the impact of forecast public sector jobs on the 

local economy. The Wexham and Heatherwood Trust have already announced 
significant job losses. Slough has around 10% less public sector jobs than the South 
East or the UK as a whole and this may provide some protection but the public 
sector across the board are expected to bear the brunt of the new coalition 
governments proposed cuts. This is likely to have an affect on economic growth and 
private sector jobs in the short term. 

 
3.9 There has been a slowing down of inward investment and indeed a contraction of 

companies over the last few years and this represents the biggest challenge since 
the recession of the 1990’s. Inward investment policy and activity since the mid 90’s 
has largely been reactive partly due to the considerable growth of the economy and 
a tight labour market where it was difficult to justify spending significant council 
taxpayer’s money. However, a more proactive approach is currently recommended 
to ensure we are able to maintain the number of jobs for the economically active 

Page 44



population we have and to deliver the sustainable prosperity sought in the Slough 
Community Strategy vision. 

 
3.10 The town centre in common with most other town centres is suffering from declining 

revenues and in some cases footfall. An inevitable increase in voids has resulted and 
a clear strategy will need to be developed to retain the vitality of the town centre. 
This is partly due to the credit crunch but it is also due to an increasing trend to 
purchase online and all the forecasts suggest that this trend will continue. The move 
to Reading of Yell and the impending consolidation of 02 into its new Bath Road 
Headquarters will have an additional affect on footfall and revenues for town centre 
retailers. 

 
4 Summary  
 
 The UK, and indeed the Slough economy, faces the most difficult period for many 

decades. Whilst unemployment has not increased to the levels feared a year ago 
commentators are suggesting that proposed new cuts in the public sector will mean 
that a double dip recession is almost inevitable. Support for the unemployed is 
limited to current resources and opportunities to provide additional support using 
grant funding in a very tight funding environment are limited. We will continue to 
influence Job Centre Plus as best we can and utilise all of the resources available. If 
unemployment increases again it will have the consequential impacts of increased 
indebtedness, housing repossessions, increased benefits claimants and a 
considerable impact on the prosperity of our most disadvantaged communities. 
Increasing the availability of jobs and improving job prospects in a very difficult 
climate should continue to be a priority of this Council. This is a key consideration if 
we are to prevent relative short term unemployment from becoming long term 
structural unemployment with all of the negative societal impacts that will have. 
Community Cohesion in Slough has been good for many years largely due to the 
high levels of employment. This could be at risk if the impacts are not mitigated and 
appropriate support not provided. 

 
5 Appendices 

 
Appendix 1-  Claimant Count 
Appendix 2a - 2g -Data by Occupation 
Appendix 3a - 3f -Data by Qualifications 

 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



2
0

0
3

 C
A

S
 w

a
rd

J
a

n
-1

0
F

e
b

-1
0

M
a

r-
1

0
A

p
r-

1
0

M
a

y
-1

0
J

u
n

-1
0

J
u

l-
1

0
A

u
g

-1
0

S
e

p
-1

0
O

c
t-

1
0

N
o

v
-1

0
D

e
c

-1
0

0
0

M
D

M
Q

 :
 B

a
y
lis

 a
n

d
 S

to
k
e

3
1
0

3
0
7

2
9
8

3
0
3

2
7
9

0
0

M
D

M
R

 :
 B

ri
tw

e
ll

2
9
5

2
9
0

2
9
3

3
0
0

2
7
4

0
0

M
D

M
S

 :
 C

e
n

tr
a
l

3
4
1

3
5
0

3
3
6

3
3
9

3
4
4

0
0

M
D

M
T

 :
 C

h
a
lv

e
y

4
0
5

4
3
3

4
0
9

4
1
4

3
9
5

0
0

M
D

M
U

 :
 C

ip
p
e
n

h
a
m

 G
re

e
n

1
7
7

1
8
8

2
0
5

2
0
0

1
8
8

0
0

M
D

M
W

 :
 C

ip
p
e
n

h
a
m

 M
e
a
d
o
w

s
3
0
2

2
7
7

2
9
7

2
7
0

2
5
8

0
0

M
D

M
X

 :
 C

o
ln

b
ro

o
k
 w

ith
 P

o
y
le

1
6
5

1
6
2

1
5
4

1
4
9

1
5
1

0
0

M
D

M
Y

 :
 F

a
rn

h
a
m

2
6
7

2
7
2

2
7
2

2
6
1

2
3
8

0
0

M
D

M
Z

 :
 F

o
xb

o
ro

u
g
h

1
7
0

1
6
5

1
7
5

1
8
6

1
6
5

0
0

M
D

N
A

 :
 H

a
y
m

ill
2
2
8

2
3
6

2
3
2

2
3
3

2
0
8

0
0

M
D

N
B

 :
 K

e
d
e
rm

is
te

r
2
1
9

2
1
4

2
1
3

2
0
4

1
9
0

0
0

M
D

N
C

 :
 L

a
n

g
le

y
 S

t 
M

a
ry

's
1
6
2

1
5
1

1
5
0

1
3
6

1
3
5

0
0

M
D

N
D

 :
 U

p
to

n
2
3
1

2
2
7

2
1
2

2
0
4

2
1
0

0
0

M
D

N
E

 :
 W

e
xh

a
m

 L
e
a

2
8
1

2
7
1

2
7
3

2
8
6

2
6
0

T
o
ta

l
3
,5

5
3

3
,5

4
3

3
,5

1
9

3
,4

8
5

3
,2

9
5

2
0

0
9

 F
ig

u
re

s
2
,2

6
0

2
,7

9
1

3
,0

1
9

3
,2

2
7

3
,3

1
3

3
,4

1
8

3
,4

6
4

3
,4

5
4

3
,4

1
5

3
,5

1
5

3
,3

5
0

3
,2

5
3

R
e

d
 =

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 i
n

c
re

a
s

e
d

B
lu

e
 =

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 d
e

c
re

a
s

e
d

C
la

im
a
n

t 
C

o
u

n
t 

S
lo

u
g

h
 -

 2
0
1
0

Page 47



0

5
0

1
0

0

1
5

0

2
0

0

2
5

0

3
0

0

3
5

0

4
0

0

4
5

0

0
0
M

D
M

Q
 :

B
a
yl

is
 a

n
d

S
to

k
e

0
0
M

D
M

R
 :

B
ri

tw
e
ll

0
0
M

D
M

S
 :

C
e
n
tr

a
l

0
0
M

D
M

T
 :

C
h
a
lv

e
y

0
0
M

D
M

U
 :

C
ip

p
e
n
h
a
m

G
re

e
n

0
0
M

D
M

W
 :

C
ip

p
e
n
h
a
m

M
e
a
d

o
w

s

0
0
M

D
M

X
 :

C
o
ln

b
ro

o
k

w
it
h
 P

o
yl

e

0
0
M

D
M

Y
 :

F
a
rn

h
a
m

0
0
M

D
M

Z
 :

F
o
xb

o
ro

u
g

h

0
0
M

D
N

A
 :

H
a
ym

ill

0
0
M

D
N

B
 :

K
e
d

e
rm

is
te

r

0
0
M

D
N

C
 :

L
a
n
g

le
y 

S
t

M
a
ry

's

0
0
M

D
N

D
 :

U
p

to
n

0
0
M

D
N

E
 :

W
e
xh

a
m

 L
e
a

S
lo

u
g

h
 C

la
im

a
n

t 
C

o
u

n
t 

- 
2
0
1
0

J
a
n

-1
0

F
e
b

-1
0

M
a
r-

1
0

A
p

r-
1

0
M

a
y-

1
0

J
u

n
-1

0
J
u

l-
1

0
A

u
g

-1
0

S
e
p

-1
0

O
c
t-

1
0

N
o

v-
1

0
D

e
c
-1

0

Page 48



Source: ONS annual population survey

1 Managers and senior officials 
Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 - - - -

Mar 00-Feb 01 - - - -

Mar 01-Feb 02 8,000 13.3 16.3 13.8

Mar 02-Feb 03 8,000 13.6 17.4 14.4

Mar 03-Feb 04 7,700 13.4 17.3 14.6

Jan 04-Dec 04 7,900 13.1 17.0 14.9

Apr 04-Mar 05 8,200 13.6 16.8 14.9

Oct 04-Sep 05 7,800 13.0 17.2 14.9

Jan 05-Dec 05 7,600 12.8 17.0 14.9

Apr 05-Mar 06 7,300 12.3 17.1 14.9

Jul 05-Jun 06 7,300 12.5 17.1 15.0

Oct 05-Sep 06 8,000 13.5 16.9 14.9

Jan 06-Dec 06 8,100 13.5 17.2 14.9

Apr 06-Mar 07 7,900 13.3 17.5 15.1

Jul 06-Jun 07 7,800 13.2 17.5 15.2

Oct 06-Sep 07 7,200 12.4 17.5 15.3

Jan 07-Dec 07 7,700 13.3 17.5 15.3

Apr 07-Mar 08 7,900 13.7 17.4 15.3

Jul 07-Jun 08 8,600 14.8 17.3 15.4

Oct 07-Sep 08 8,400 14.2 17.3 15.5

Jan 08-Dec 08 8,700 14.9 17.5 15.7

Apr 08-Mar 09 8,700 14.8 17.3 15.6

Jul 08-Jun 09 8,600 14.9 17.3 15.6

 
- The sample size is too small to allow Labour Force Survey data to be produced

Notes: Numbers and % are for those of 16+

Page 1 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 49



% is a proportion of all persons in employment

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-

use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 2 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 50



Source: ONS annual population survey

2 Professional occupations 
Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 - - - -

Mar 00-Feb 01 - - - -

Mar 01-Feb 02 8,000 12.8 12.9 11.7

Mar 02-Feb 03 7,000 12.1 13.6 11.7

Mar 03-Feb 04 6,300 10.9 13.9 12.1

Jan 04-Dec 04 6,400 10.7 13.9 12.4

Apr 04-Mar 05 6,500 10.8 14.0 12.5

Oct 04-Sep 05 6,200 10.3 13.5 12.4

Jan 05-Dec 05 6,800 11.4 13.7 12.5

Apr 05-Mar 06 7,300 12.3 13.9 12.7

Jul 05-Jun 06 6,800 11.5 14.0 12.8

Oct 05-Sep 06 6,700 11.2 14.0 12.9

Jan 06-Dec 06 5,800 9.7 13.9 13.0

Apr 06-Mar 07 4,900 8.3 14.0 13.0

Jul 06-Jun 07 5,700 9.5 14.0 13.0

Oct 06-Sep 07 5,500 9.4 14.4 13.1

Jan 07-Dec 07 5,800 10.0 14.5 13.0

Apr 07-Mar 08 6,000 10.3 14.8 13.1

Jul 07-Jun 08 5,800 9.9 14.8 12.9

Oct 07-Sep 08 5,700 9.6 14.7 13.0

Jan 08-Dec 08 6,200 10.7 14.5 13.0

Apr 08-Mar 09 6,400 10.9 14.3 13.1

Jul 08-Jun 09 6,800 11.7 14.6 13.4

 
- The sample size is too small to allow Labour Force Survey data to be produced

Notes: Numbers and % are for those of 16+

Page 1 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 51



% is a proportion of all persons in employment

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-

use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 2 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 52



Source: ONS annual population survey

3 Associate professional & technical 
Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 - - - -

Mar 00-Feb 01 - - - -

Mar 01-Feb 02 8,000 12.4 14.0 13.5

Mar 02-Feb 03 8,000 12.9 14.3 13.6

Mar 03-Feb 04 7,600 13.1 14.7 13.8

Jan 04-Dec 04 7,700 12.9 14.7 13.9

Apr 04-Mar 05 7,500 12.4 15.0 14.0

Oct 04-Sep 05 7,500 12.5 15.3 14.1

Jan 05-Dec 05 7,300 12.3 15.0 14.2

Apr 05-Mar 06 7,200 12.2 15.0 14.3

Jul 05-Jun 06 6,500 11.1 14.9 14.4

Oct 05-Sep 06 6,400 10.8 15.2 14.4

Jan 06-Dec 06 7,000 11.7 15.4 14.3

Apr 06-Mar 07 7,300 12.3 15.4 14.3

Jul 06-Jun 07 7,900 13.2 15.2 14.3

Oct 06-Sep 07 7,400 12.7 15.0 14.3

Jan 07-Dec 07 6,700 11.6 15.4 14.6

Apr 07-Mar 08 6,600 11.5 15.4 14.6

Jul 07-Jun 08 7,300 12.6 15.4 14.6

Oct 07-Sep 08 8,600 14.5 15.5 14.6

Jan 08-Dec 08 8,700 14.8 15.6 14.5

Apr 08-Mar 09 9,200 15.7 15.5 14.6

Jul 08-Jun 09 8,300 14.3 16.0 14.7

 
- The sample size is too small to allow Labour Force Survey data to be produced

Notes: Numbers and % are for those of 16+

Page 1 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 53



% is a proportion of all persons in employment

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-

use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 2 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 54



Source: ONS annual population survey

4 Administrative & secretarial 

Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 - - - -

Mar 00-Feb 01 - - - -

Mar 01-Feb 02 9,000 15.4 13.8 13.5

Mar 02-Feb 03 8,000 13.9 13.4 13.2

Mar 03-Feb 04 8,000 13.9 12.7 13.0

Jan 04-Dec 04 8,100 13.6 13.2 12.7

Apr 04-Mar 05 7,900 13.2 13.0 12.6

Oct 04-Sep 05 8,200 13.6 13.0 12.6

Jan 05-Dec 05 7,800 13.1 13.0 12.5

Apr 05-Mar 06 7,200 12.3 12.8 12.4

Jul 05-Jun 06 7,200 12.2 12.8 12.3

Oct 05-Sep 06 7,400 12.4 12.7 12.1

Jan 06-Dec 06 8,000 13.4 12.4 12.0

Apr 06-Mar 07 7,800 13.2 12.4 12.0

Jul 06-Jun 07 7,400 12.4 12.4 11.9

Oct 06-Sep 07 7,200 12.3 12.5 11.8

Jan 07-Dec 07 6,800 11.7 12.1 11.7

Apr 07-Mar 08 6,800 11.8 11.6 11.6

Jul 07-Jun 08 6,600 11.3 11.4 11.6

Oct 07-Sep 08 6,600 11.2 11.3 11.4

Jan 08-Dec 08 7,000 12.0 11.2 11.4

Apr 08-Mar 09 8,000 13.6 11.6 11.4

Jul 08-Jun 09 8,300 14.4 11.5 11.3

 
- The sample size is too small to allow Labour Force Survey data to be produced

Notes: Numbers and % are for those of 16+

Page 1 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 55



% is a proportion of all persons in employment

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-

use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 2 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 56



Source: ONS annual population survey

7 Sales and customer service occs 

Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 - - - -

Mar 00-Feb 01 - - - -

Mar 01-Feb 02 6,000 9.3 7.5 8.0

Mar 02-Feb 03 6,000 9.7 7.3 8.0

Mar 03-Feb 04 4,700 8.1 7.7 8.0

Jan 04-Dec 04 5,500 9.3 7.2 7.8

Apr 04-Mar 05 5,500 9.2 7.2 7.8

Oct 04-Sep 05 5,700 9.5 7.1 7.9

Jan 05-Dec 05 5,200 8.9 7.1 7.7

Apr 05-Mar 06 5,500 9.4 7.1 7.7

Jul 05-Jun 06 5,200 8.8 7.1 7.6

Oct 05-Sep 06 4,800 8.1 7.3 7.6

Jan 06-Dec 06 4,200 6.9 7.3 7.7

Apr 06-Mar 07 4,100 6.9 7.3 7.7

Jul 06-Jun 07 4,200 7.1 7.3 7.7

Oct 06-Sep 07 4,600 8.0 7.1 7.6

Jan 07-Dec 07 5,000 8.7 7.1 7.6

Apr 07-Mar 08 4,900 8.6 6.9 7.6

Jul 07-Jun 08 4,900 8.4 7.2 7.6

Oct 07-Sep 08 4,500 7.6 7.2 7.5

Jan 08-Dec 08 3,700 6.4 7.4 7.6

Apr 08-Mar 09 3,300 5.5 7.3 7.5

Jul 08-Jun 09 3,100 5.4 7.0 7.5

 
- The sample size is too small to allow Labour Force Survey data to be produced

Notes: Numbers and % are for those of 16+

Page 1 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 57



% is a proportion of all persons in employment

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-

use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 2 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 58



Source: ONS annual population survey

8 Process plant & machine operatives 

Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 - - - -

Mar 00-Feb 01 - - - -

Mar 01-Feb 02 6,000 9.2 6.1 8.3

Mar 02-Feb 03 6,000 9.6 5.9 8.2

Mar 03-Feb 04 6,300 10.9 5.6 7.7

Jan 04-Dec 04 6,200 10.5 5.3 7.5

Apr 04-Mar 05 6,000 10.0 5.3 7.5

Oct 04-Sep 05 6,800 11.3 5.2 7.5

Jan 05-Dec 05 6,200 10.5 5.4 7.5

Apr 05-Mar 06 6,100 10.3 5.4 7.5

Jul 05-Jun 06 6,000 10.1 5.4 7.5

Oct 05-Sep 06 5,400 9.0 5.5 7.4

Jan 06-Dec 06 5,800 9.6 5.2 7.3

Apr 06-Mar 07 5,700 9.6 5.2 7.2

Jul 06-Jun 07 5,500 9.3 5.2 7.2

Oct 06-Sep 07 6,100 10.4 5.2 7.2

Jan 07-Dec 07 5,900 10.2 5.2 7.2

Apr 07-Mar 08 6,200 10.7 5.3 7.2

Jul 07-Jun 08 6,400 10.9 5.3 7.2

Oct 07-Sep 08 6,200 10.5 5.4 7.1

Jan 08-Dec 08 6,400 11.0 5.4 7.1

Apr 08-Mar 09 6,100 10.3 5.2 7.0

Jul 08-Jun 09 5,400 9.4 5.0 6.9

 
- The sample size is too small to allow Labour Force Survey data to be produced

Notes: Numbers and % are for those of 16+

Page 1 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 59



% is a proportion of all persons in employment

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-

use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 2 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 60



Source: ONS annual population survey

9 Elementary occupations 

Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 - - - -

Mar 00-Feb 01 - - - -

Mar 01-Feb 02 7,000 12.2 11.1 12.0

Mar 02-Feb 03 7,000 11.8 10.8 12.2

Mar 03-Feb 04 7,900 13.7 10.1 11.8

Jan 04-Dec 04 8,100 13.6 10.0 11.6

Apr 04-Mar 05 8,600 14.2 9.8 11.5

Oct 04-Sep 05 8,300 13.8 10.0 11.4

Jan 05-Dec 05 9,000 15.2 10.2 11.4

Apr 05-Mar 06 8,900 15.1 10.4 11.4

Jul 05-Jun 06 9,900 16.8 10.1 11.3

Oct 05-Sep 06 10,100 16.9 10.1 11.4

Jan 06-Dec 06 10,100 16.8 10.2 11.5

Apr 06-Mar 07 10,000 17.0 10.2 11.5

Jul 06-Jun 07 9,500 16.0 10.2 11.4

Oct 06-Sep 07 9,300 16.0 10.2 11.5

Jan 07-Dec 07 9,300 16.1 10.2 11.4

Apr 07-Mar 08 9,000 15.6 10.2 11.4

Jul 07-Jun 08 9,000 15.4 10.4 11.5

Oct 07-Sep 08 9,000 15.3 10.7 11.5

Jan 08-Dec 08 8,000 13.7 10.5 11.4

Apr 08-Mar 09 7,900 13.5 10.5 11.3

Jul 08-Jun 09 7,700 13.3 10.1 11.3

 
- The sample size is too small to allow Labour Force Survey data to be produced

Notes: Numbers and % are for those of 16+

Page 1 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 61



% is a proportion of all persons in employment

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-

use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 2 of 2Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/empocc_time_se...

Page 62



Source: ONS annual population survey

No Qualifications 
Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 14,000 19.0 12.0 16.8

Mar 00-Feb 01 13,000 17.7 11.9 16.7

Mar 01-Feb 02 13,000 16.6 12.1 16.5

Mar 02-Feb 03 10,000 13.5 11.3 15.6

Mar 03-Feb 04 13,400 17.4 10.8 15.1

Jan 05-Dec 05 10,200 13.2 10.1 14.2

Jan 06-Dec 06 11,100 14.3 9.7 13.7

Jan 07-Dec 07 10,400 13.4 9.6 13.1

Jan 08-Dec 08 8,600 11.0 8.9 12.4

 
Notes: Numbers and % are for those of working age

% is a proportion of resident working age population of area

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-
use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 1 of 1Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/quals_time_serie...

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Source: ONS annual population survey

NVQ1 and above 
Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 43,000 58.5 79.2 73.5

Mar 00-Feb 01 50,000 65.5 79.6 74.0

Mar 01-Feb 02 52,000 67.4 79.7 74.6

Mar 02-Feb 03 52,000 67.5 80.6 75.4

Mar 03-Feb 04 50,400 65.6 81.1 76.0

Jan 05-Dec 05 54,200 70.2 82.5 77.4

Jan 06-Dec 06 51,000 65.5 82.7 77.8

Jan 07-Dec 07 52,300 67.1 82.3 78.1

Jan 08-Dec 08 54,000 69.4 83.4 78.9

 
Notes: Numbers and % are for those of working age

% is a proportion of resident working age population of area

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-

use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 1 of 1Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/quals_time_serie...

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Source: ONS annual population survey

NVQ2 and above 
Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 31,000 43.0 63.0 57.9

Mar 00-Feb 01 38,000 50.6 63.5 58.8

Mar 01-Feb 02 41,000 53.3 63.7 59.5

Mar 02-Feb 03 41,000 53.1 65.3 60.6

Mar 03-Feb 04 39,600 51.5 66.0 61.5

Jan 05-Dec 05 41,400 53.7 67.5 63.1

Jan 06-Dec 06 39,600 50.8 68.0 63.9

Jan 07-Dec 07 41,700 53.5 68.2 64.5

Jan 08-Dec 08 44,600 57.3 68.9 65.2

 
Notes: Numbers and % are for those of working age

% is a proportion of resident working age population of area

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-

use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 1 of 1Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/quals_time_serie...

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Source: ONS annual population survey

NVQ3 and above 
Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 22,000 29.7 43.6 39.3

Mar 00-Feb 01 25,000 33.2 44.1 40.3

Mar 01-Feb 02 27,000 35.8 44.2 41.0

Mar 02-Feb 03 28,000 36.1 46.4 42.0

Mar 03-Feb 04 26,400 34.3 46.9 43.1

Jan 05-Dec 05 29,000 37.6 48.6 44.6

Jan 06-Dec 06 25,900 33.3 49.4 45.5

Jan 07-Dec 07 27,500 35.3 49.6 46.4

Jan 08-Dec 08 30,900 39.7 50.8 47.0

 
Notes: Numbers and % are for those of working age

% is a proportion of resident working age population of area

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-

use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 1 of 1Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/quals_time_serie...

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Source: ONS annual population survey

NVQ4 and above 
Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 13,000 17.3 25.9 22.5

Mar 00-Feb 01 14,000 18.2 25.8 23.3

Mar 01-Feb 02 16,000 21.3 26.2 23.6

Mar 02-Feb 03 16,000 20.7 27.7 24.2

Mar 03-Feb 04 15,800 20.5 28.5 25.2

Jan 05-Dec 05 16,500 21.4 29.4 26.6

Jan 06-Dec 06 14,700 18.9 30.4 27.5

Jan 07-Dec 07 15,900 20.5 30.8 28.6

Jan 08-Dec 08 18,900 24.2 31.5 29.0

 
Notes: Numbers and % are for those of working age

% is a proportion of resident working age population of area

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-

use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 1 of 1Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/quals_time_serie...

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Source: ONS annual population survey

Other Qualifications 
Slough

 

 

Date Slough Slough  
(%)

South East  
(%)

Great Britain 
(%)

Mar 99-Feb 00 16,000 22.5 8.8 9.7

Mar 00-Feb 01 11,000 14.2 7.8 8.6

Mar 01-Feb 02 12,000 16.0 8.1 8.9

Mar 02-Feb 03 15,000 19.1 8.0 9.0

Mar 03-Feb 04 13,100 17.0 8.0 8.8

Jan 05-Dec 05 12,800 16.6 7.4 8.4

Jan 06-Dec 06 15,700 20.2 7.7 8.5

Jan 07-Dec 07 15,100 19.4 8.1 8.8

Jan 08-Dec 08 15,200 19.6 7.7 8.7

 
Notes: Numbers and % are for those of working age

% is a proportion of resident working age population of area

Data prior to the period Jan 05 - Dec 05 has not been reweighted in line with the latest ONS estimates. This will be done as soon as 
possible. For further details goto https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/articles/424.aspx

 

Copyright

This material is Crown Copyright. Users are granted permission to reproduce Crown Copyright material provided that 
a Click-Use Licence has been obtained from HMSO. The Click-Use Licence can be obtained from www.click-
use.hmso.gov.uk . When reproducing this material, copyright and source should be acknowledged. 

Page 1 of 1Nomis

09/04/2010https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/2038431751/subreports/quals_time_serie...

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Report title: Census 2011 Update 
 
Report to:    Overview and Scrutiny  
From:     Kevin Gordon 
Date:     1st July 2010 
 
Focus: Progress report on preparations for the Census 2011 
 

 

1. Purpose 
 
This paper provides an update on planned preparations for the Census in 2011 and progress to 
date.  
 
2. Recommendations 
 

§ Members asked to note the contents of the report 

§ Members are asked to consider ways to further engage Overview and Scrutiny in the work 
for preparing for the Census.  

 

3. Background 
 
Preparations for the Census have started at both the local and national level. Initial calculations 
suggest that cumulatively the public services in Slough will receive approximately £22 million 
over ten years for every 1000 additional people that complete the Census. Given the substantial 
undercount of local population numbers,  Slough as a whole could gain in excess of £150 million 
over the next 10 years. 
 
The paper below provides both a short review of the work planned by the Office for National 
Statistics  ONS and an outline of how  this is to be driven locally in the council . The latter 
includes a summary of the estimated costs, the potential benefits, proposed governance 
arrangements, terms of reference for the project Board and details of the delivery teams.  
 
4. Outline and Projected work plan 
 
Summary of the project 
 
The purpose of the project is to prepare Slough for the Census in 2011. The Census Rehearsal 
in October 2009 achieved a lower than normal response rate in Slough. The ONS have begun 
their work and require some support from us. This project brings this work together with 
additional activity to assist the ONS to increase the response rate in Slough.  
There are 3 main strands of work – designing how we support and inform the delivery of the 
census, increasing engagement with the census and implementing that support when the census 
is being carried out.  
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 75



 
Costs and Benefits 
  
Benefits 
We anticipate that Slough will receive about £22 million pounds over 10 years for every 1000 
additional people that complete the census. Slough’s current population is about 7000 more than 
official estimates meaning that there is the potential to gain over £150 million over the 10 year 
period. 
 
Figures for revenue spending by Berkshire LSP public sector partners (excluding spending on 
schools) in 09/10 show that councils are responsible for 35% of spending, the PCT for 61%, the 
Police for 3% and the Fire Service 1%.  
 
Based on the above figures, this means that the council could receive an additional £40million, 
the PCT an additional £72million, the Police an additional £3million and the Fire Service an 
additional £1million.   
 
Costs 
Total costs are estimated at just under £250,000.  
 
 

Activity Details Estimated Cost 

Census Project 
Manager 

Until end July 2011 
 

£60,000   
  

Marketing and 
lobbying   

Specific expertise to supplement 
expertise that we currently have is 
required to design an effective 
marketing campaign and provide advice 
about lobbying.  
 
Estimate of activity based on scaling up 
previous campaigns   

£5,000 
 
 
 
 
 
£90,000 

Community 
Engagement  

To host workshops and other 
confidence raising activities to build 
strong relationships with key 
communities 

£20,000  
  

Secondee to 
Census Area 
Manager 

Secondment of a staff member into the 
role of Area Manager working directly 
for ONS. We have agreed this option 
with the ONS to allow Slough to benefit 
from an Area Manager who is familiar 
with the town and understands existing 
issues/challenges.  

Top up to ONS salary of 
£28,000  if we seconded a 
post at grade 7 Policy officer 
equivalent 
 
£7,000  
 
 

Supporting local 
people to be 
recruited as ONS 
local field staff 

Advertising and recruitment campaign 
to help raise awareness of Census 
opportunities  
 
For the Economic Development unit to 

£5,000  
 
 
 
£5,000 

Page 76



host positive action workshops to raise 
skills levels to enable local residents to 
access jobs  

 
 

Providing 
supplementary 
support 

To supplement support being made 
available from the ONS – the local 
authority may wish to recruit into key 
roles. From the published list the roles 
of Address checker, census distributor, 
census collector and special 
enumerator would appear as critical for 
the success of the Census.  
 
Address Checker –  £10,596 
Census Distributor –  £6,859 
Census Collector – £6,859 
Special Enumerator –  £16,416  
 

A number of variables exist 
here which will influence the 
final cost of providing 
supplementary support. 
However using median wage 
levels and a staff ratio linked 
size of the challenge the 
following costs are suggested 
 
Total – £40,730 
 
      

Providing Local 
Intelligence 

To use external experts to prepare a 
detailed dossier of local evidence of 
population levels. Indicative costs of 
commissioning a rewrite of the 2006 
‘There’s No Accounting for Some 
People’ report  

£15,000   

 
Governance arrangements 
 
Project delivery is being managed through 3 supporting teams – communications and marketing, 
ensuring delivery and data collection. 
 
The project itself has 3 main phases: 
• Designing how we deliver the census:  
• Working with community organisations to increase engagement; and 
• Delivering the census effectively.  
 
The project teams have responsibility for tasks within each phase of the project and streams of 
work will not always be clearly separated – for example, engagement activity will run through the 
communications and marketing work and the delivery strand of the project.  It’s essential that the 
communication and marketing stream designs a robust and tactical social marketing plan  
 
Project Board  
 

Terms of Reference 
 

1. To provide a strategic steer for the planning and delivery of a successful Census for Slough.  
 
2. To ensure that sufficient resources as allocated as appropriate.  
 
3. To inform and oversee the design of all elements of the project paying particular attention to 

the level so engagement amongst local communities.  

Page 77



 
4. To ensure that appropriate lobbying activity is designed and implemented 

 
5. To ensure that we are working collaboratively with ONS and outside agencies in the run up 

to Census. 
 
6. To agree a coordinated future programme of work and responsibilities for the analysis and 

delivery of information from the 2011 Census.   
 
7. To ensure that the census project is aligned to and supported by the work of their agency 

they represent.   
 
8. To report progress to the LSP board and their own  management teams  
 

Membership 
 

Membership of the Project Board is drawn from across the key public sector organisations in the 
town with a further representation from the voluntary sector. Board members are to be in a 
position to undertake strategic decisions and commit/deploy resources accordingly.  They are 
also drawn from an appropriately senior level with sufficient accountability. The composition of 
the Board is still being developed but currently has/ is envisaged to have 
 

• Project Sponsor – Ruth Bagley Chief Executive, Slough Borough Council   
• Project Manager – to be appointed. The Project Manager will also be the Census Liaison 

Manager – the primary contact with the ONS. 
• Deputy LPA Commander, Thames Valley Police  – Kate Ford 
• Assistant Director PCT – Vicki Wadd 
• Area Manager, RBFRS – Gene Ashe 
• Representative from Slough Council for Voluntary Services – Ramesh Kukar 
• AD Transformational Change, Policy and Performance, Slough BC – Kevin Gordon  
 
Project Teams 
 
Communications and Marketing team - Role 
 
This team will be responsible for drawing up and coordinating an overarching communications 
plan. The focus of this activity will be about getting the message of the Census out in the 
community as far and wide as possible. Particular focus will be given to ensuring messages 
reach the hard to engage communities. This team will also continue to ensure the lobbying 
campaign for Slough continues and that the argument for additional resources into Slough 
continues to be made with the new coalition Government.  
 
Suggested Membership 
 
Membership of this team comprises communications leads across the LSP. Additional input will 
be provided by the two community advisors, Slough’s Census Project Manager and the Census 
Area Manager – once these posts have been recruited. Current communications activity is being 
led by the Corporate Communications Team at Slough BC.  

Page 78



 

External advice will be fed in to assist with the development of a marketing campaign and 
effective lobbying.  
 
Ensuring delivery team 
 
Whilst the Communications team manage the overall message – the most important aspect of 
our work in preparing for the Census is through the practical actions that all partners can take in 
assisting local people in completing the census. Some of this will be through the direct actions of 
the LSP partners whilst a significant proportion will be through utilising support networks in the 
Third sector.  
 
The focus for the Ensuring Delivery team is on developing the Community Mobilisation Plan – 
practical, on the ground steps to deliver the census in 2011. Much of the activity here will centre 
on  
• Organising and holding workshops with key communities 
• Working with the Third Sector to facilitate Census completion open days, language support 

and other advice drop in centres –  
• To organise door knocking initiatives to improve census completion rates 
• To actively assist the ONS in the recruitment of local field staff through providing 

advice/guidance on completing application forms 
• Working with the ONS to help develop and deliver the Partnership Plan. 
• Develop/deliver training to front-line staff within the appropriate partner organisations to 

ensure staff have sufficient knowledge of the Census, its requirements and how to complete 
the Census. 

 
In addition to this the Ensuring Delivery team will have routine liaison with frontline staff from 
across the main partnership organisations to ensure that all existing resources at the disposal of 
the partners including GP surgeries, community wardens, customer service staff, community and 
diversity officers etc are geared to providing appropriate advice/support over the next nine 
months.  
 
It is imperative that such ‘on the ground’ work will be carried out and that contact is made, as 
soon as is possible, with the people that matter – local residents. It is also important that links are 
made with organisations such as 
• CAB 
• Voluntary Organisations – PWA, Indian Welfare Society, Polish Club 
• Religious Centres – Polish Church, Kingsway, Slough Methodists, St Pauls Church, the two 

Sikh temples, the four mosques 
• Schools, libraries, MyCouncil, GP Surgeries 
• Local shops, cafes hairdressers 
 
Membership 
 
The Ensuring Delivery team is still to be developed however any members that do comprise the 
team will need to have detailed knowledge of local communities and networks that can be used 
to promote the census. They must be able to feed in local knowledge from across their 
organisation and currently work with local community leaders. This body of work will be led by 

Page 79



the Census Project Manager, will involve the close involvement of the ONS’ Census Area 
Manager and will have active contributions from front line officers from across the Partnership. 
 
Data collection team – Role 
 
This team will focus on the provision of robust data and intelligence about who to count and how 
to do it. The key activities will be: 
 

• Identify local hard to reach populations and groups. 
• Develop information from Council service departments and other external sources. 
• Quality assure and, if need be, challenge outputs from the Census. 
• To consider relevant technical matters relating to the use of Census statistics, and to share 

technical expertise and knowledge. 
• To consider ways in which local administrative datasets and other data sources may be 

combined with Census data to produce value-added statistical information for the Council 
both before and after the 2011 Census. 

 
Members of this group need to have detailed knowledge of data availability, analysis skills and 
use creative methods to build and quantify local intelligence. Members will need to have strong 
networks within their organisations to ensure that all available data and intelligence is brought to 
the project. The council will be nominating an officer who can feed in information that we have 
about customer access and information, the Local Land and Property Gazetteer and about  
HMOs.  The focus of the Data Collection team will primarily relate to producing the local 
intelligence dossier ready for submission in September/October. This dossier will act as a local 
reference point for both the Communications Team and the Delivery Team (to ensure activities 
are targeting the appropriate communities in the right places and using the correct formats) whilst 
also enabling the LSP to direct the efforts of the ONS and lobby for extra resources.  
 
Progress to date 
 
• Recruitment of a Project Manager 0 the advert for this post is out and due to close on the 

24th. Interviews are scheduled for the first week of July. The post has been advertised 
widely including The Guardian, Jobs Go Public and LGJobs.com. To maximise the number 
of applications received the job is also being advertised as a secondment opportunity within 
the LSP.  

 
• LSP Forum – 18th May 2010 – the LSP hosted the first major event in may attended by 

approximately 65 local people. With Peter Benton, Deputy Director for the Census for the 
Office of National Statistics, providing a presentation and with the ONS’ head of stakeholder 
relations also present, the event gave an excellent opportunity for local people to get a first 
hand view of the national picture relating to the Census and ask any questions.  

 
• Launch of marketing campaign – March 27th saw the launch of the marketing campaign in 

Slough. This was marked to coincide with the 12 month countdown for the Census. 
 
• Community workshops – following from the LSP Forum event – one of the 

recommendations by delegates was to have workshops for the community. The first of 
these working with the Polish community is planned for early July and will be held after 

Page 80



Sunday Mass at the Polish church to maximise turnout. A second workshop for Asian 
women is planned for July 24th.  Thereafter targeted work will cover the ‘hard to engage’ 
communities including young people, older people and key sections within the minority 
communities including Somali, other eastern European, Roma Gypsy and Traveller 
communities. 

 
• Members Workshop – preparations underway to book a briefing session for members to 

update members on the work of the Census and hot to involve Members in the work.  
 
• Steps have been taken to begin forming the three teams to deliver the work. The Project 

Board is in the process of being finalised. Composition of the data team will mainly 
comprise staff from the Council’s Performance team with additional membership being 
drawn from the data teams at the PCT and partners. The Ensuring Delivery team will be 
established once the ONS have recruited into key roles including the community advisors 
and the Area Manager. At present work is being delivered by the Policy team at Slough BC.  

 

Furthering Member Engagement 
 
A crucial element in the success of the Census Project is the active involvement and commitment 
of the communities. It is crucial that the LSP utilises all the possible networks that exist that will 
enable the partnership to build effective working relationships with communities. Not only will this 
improve awareness of the Census it could also go a long way in securing the commitment of 
communities.  
 
It is widely recognised that Members will have an important role to play in this respect given their 
position within the community and their understanding of the town.  
 
The LSP is particularly keen to engage members in the work of the Census and would welcome 
suggestions on the best way to achieve this. 
 
Conclusion 
 
This document sets out the broad action plan and progress to date for preparing for the Census 
in 2011. Given the historical inaccuracies associated with population counts for Slough, it is 
crucial that the Census in 2011 establishes a more accurate figure for population levels. Not only 
is this crucial in terms of statutory partners being able to provide the right services to the right 
people at the right time but there is up to £150 million at stake over the course of the next 
decade. 
 
Crucial to the whole project is the active commitment and involvement of all our communities. It 
is imperative that that LSP is able to deliver an effective mobilisation strategy that reaches into 
the heart of all communities – especially those that are harder to engage – younger, older and 
members of the minority communities.  
 
 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 

UPDATE REPORT TO:   Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 
DATE:    1 July 2010 
 
FROM:   Roger Parkin, Strategic Director of Improvement & Development 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Amanda Renn (Policy Officer, Improvement & Development)  
(For all enquiries)   (01753) 875560 amanda.renn@slough.gov.uk 
 
WARD(S):   All 

PART I 
 

FOR INFORMATION 
 

CARBON MANAGEMENT PLAN 2009 - 2014 
 

1 Purpose of Report 
 

At the 25 February 2010 meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, officers 
provided a report on the development of the Council’s Carbon Management Plan for 
2009 - 2014.  At that meeting the Committee raised a number of questions on the draft 
(see section 3 below). Officers advised they anticipated to be in a position to answer 
those and any other questions plus present a final copy of the Plan (see appendix A) 
for Members of the Committee at the next meeting on 1 July 2010. 
 
The Committee should be advised that Cabinet subsequently: 
 
a) considered the  final draft of the Carbon Management Plan on 14 June 2010 and 

resolved to approve it;   
b) adopted the Plan’s target to reduce CO2 emissions from the Council’s own 

operations by 40% from a 2008/09 baseline by 2014; and 
c) supported the activities listed in Section 4 of Appendix A of this report.  

 
2 Recommendation 
 
 The Committee is therefore requested to:  
 

a) support the Cabinet’s decision to resolve the Plan; and  
b) accept the responses made herein by officers to the questions raised on 25 

February; and 
c) make any other recommendations the Committee sees fit to ensure the Council 

achieves the Carbon Management Plan’s targets. 
 

3 Summary  
 

At the meeting on 25 February 2010, Members raised the following questions in 
relation the draft Carbon Management Plan, all of which have been circulated 
previously:- 
 

a) Question:  
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 83



 

 

How much carbon emission would be saved in the Heart of Slough scheme?  
 

Answer: At present, Officers are unable to give an accurate figure. However, work has 
begun identifying a number of potential project opportunities within the Heart of Slough 
Redevelopment which it is felt would contribute significantly towards the Council 
achieving its full carbon reduction target by 2014. The projects being quantified and 
prioritised are: 
 

• Redevelopment of the Brunel car park & Brunel bus station site   

• Redevelopment of Slough Central Library site  

• Redevelopment of Thames Valley university site 

• Possible CHP plant and/or district heating installation scheme 

• Use of photovoltaic’s on the roof of the Learning Curve/energy efficiency saving within  
  the new build  
 
The Carbon Management Programme Board and relevant Project Team officers are 
working closely both with the Property Services and Finance teams and the contractors 
managing each element of the build to fully indentify and quantify the potential carbon 
and energy savings associated with each project. This information will be added to the 
Plan once the full impact of the development on the Council’s ability to deliver our 
carbon reduction target has been assessed. 
 
b) Question: 
 
In relation to the deficit in funding during the identified three year period, a 
Member asked how this would be achieved as, in their opinion, this was a 
difficult task.  The Officer advised that the administration would need to identify 
funds for this purpose and a comprehensive reply would be brought back.  
 
Answer: Since the Committee met on 25 February 2010, work has been undertaken to 
try and clarify the extent of the shortall across the organisation and for each year of the 
Plan. As a result, officers are now able to advise that the total provisional amount of 
capital, revenue and external investment believe to be needed to realise the Plan’s 
carbon and financial savings is : 

 
Provisional Funding Schedule for the Programme 

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 Total 

Estimated 
capital cost 

£747,416 £439,301 £672,485 £1,145,677 £954,366 £3,959,245 

Estimated  
revenue cost 

£16,125 £35,627 £259,106 £7,000 £410,635 £719,493 

External 
funding secured 
to date 

£0 £5,000
1
 £0 £188,000

2
 £0 £193,000 

Total £763,541 £479,928 £931,591 £2,272,268 £1,364,971 £4,871,738 

 

All of the projects identified in section 4.1 and 4.2 of the Carbon Management Plan are 
existing projects and, as such, do not require any additional resources as they were 
and still are being serviced by existing departmental, schools, contractors and Slough 
Community Leisure’s capital and /or reserve budgets, where applicable. 

                                                           

1
 LSP Grant 

2
 LSP Grant 

Page 84



 

 

 
 

Funding profile for existing projects  

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 Total 

Estimated capital 
cost to date  

£747,416 £68,531 0 0 0 £815,947 

Estimated 
revenue cost to 
date 

£16,125 £17,355 £12,375 £0 £0 £45,875 

External funding 
secured to date 

£0 £5,000
3
 £0 £188,000

4
 £0 £193,000 

 

Provisional estimates of the outstanding amounts of capital and reserve funding 
needed to implement the remainder of the Plan’s projects (i.e. those in sections 4.3 
and 4.4) are: 

 
Provisional costs and sources of funding required for the remainder of the Plan

5
  

 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 Total 

Estimated 
provisional  
capital cost 

£0 £370,770 £672,485 £1,145,677 £954,366 £3,143,298 

Estimated 
provisional 
revenue cost 

£0 £18,252 £237,731 £7,000 £410,635 £673,618 

 
It should be noted that all of the figures outlined in the above tables are still indicative 
and will ultimately depend on each project’s actual costs and the relevant discreet 
funding streams indentified for each, prioritised and secured by Directorates, schools 
and contracted out service providers6 from the following sources, and over the life of 
the Programme7: 
 

• Directorate’s existing capital and reserve budgets  

• The Council’s routine planned maintenance and repair budgets  

• The Council’s Capital and Assets Programme (where the project has successfully 
bid for and secured funds)  

• External grant aid where applicable 

• Dedicated schools grants 

• Schools budgets 

• Capital Primary Programme where applicable 
 
This work is continuing and a more detailed report will be complied for Member’s 
consideration at the next Committee meeting.  
 
It should also be noted that the above figures take no account of the projects listed in 
section 4.5 of the Plan (potential projects for the future) and for which no details on 
costs/savings are currently available.   
 

                                                           

3
 LSP Grant 

4
 LSP Grant 

5
 the full cost of the Programme can not be determined until each of the project listed at sections  4.3 and 4.4 of the Plan  are confirmed 
and the monies needed to finance them have been quantified,  prioritised and secured form Directorates, schools and contractors budgets. 
6
 Contracted out service providers (including Slough Community Leisure) will be expected to finance their projects from within their 
delegated budgets.

 
 

7
  If funding for a particular project cannot be found in the year specified, it may be necessary to postpone delay the provisional start date of 
the project until a later point in the Programme and until sufficient resources can be found to fund it.  

Page 85



 

 

 

d) Question:  
 

The subject of creating fuel from household waste was of particular interest to a 
Member who asked whether any progress had been made within the Council in 
examining this source of energy.  The Officer was unable to comment on this 
but advised that the question would be referred to the relevant Director. 
 
Answer: Yes. The Lakeside Energy from Waste (EfW) plant at Colnbrook is now on 
line and generating approx 37 MW of electricity from over 410,000 tonnes of residual 
waste per year from local authorities and businesses. Only a small amount of this 
recovered energy from waste is used to power the plant itself while the vast majority is 
exported to the local electricity grid - enough to meet the domestic needs of c.16,000 
homes. 
 

e) Question: 
 

A Member noted that schools represented 41% of the carbon emissions and 
asked what could be done to rectify this.  The Member also commented that it 
appeared that only the Grammar Schools in the town were receiving funding for 
works and it appeared that other community schools were not receiving this and 
why was this so?   The Officer advised that he was unable to respond to this 
particular query and would refer the question to the relevant Director.  
 
Answer: Schools account for approx. 41% of the Council’s buildings footprint in 
2008/09 (i.e. 8,442 tonnes being 41% x 20,592 tonnes) and not the Council’s total 
carbon footprint for 2008/09.  The schools projects currently identified in Section 4 of 
the Plan comes from three sources: 
 

• those identified as a result of the school in question benefiting from a free Carbon Trust 
walkabout and energy audit of their facilities in 2008/09 (Foxborough, Slough and 
Langley Grammar),  and  

• those that have been identified and prioritised by the Property Services team as a 
result of their detailed knowledge of the fabric and condition of the  school buildings 
and/or the entire schools estate, as part of the Councils routine repairs and 
maintenance programme; and  

• those that have been identified and prioritised as part of the Capital Primary 
Programme. 
 
Slough Borough Council does not propose to provide the funding for any of these 
projects over the life of the programme - this is expected to come from the respective 
schools budget’s and/or their dedicated schools grant and external grants monies 
where applicable.  We shall however continue to promote the availability of the Carbon 
Trust’s free energy walkabouts to those schools with an energy spend in excess of 
£50,000 per annum in order to continue to raise awareness of the issue and identify 
potential carbon reduction projects for the future.   Working with schools to reduce their 
emissions over the life of the Programme will however be one of the hardest areas for 
the Council to effect change, given that schools have delegated budgets and may not 
have the same carbon reduction priorities as the Council. 
 

f) Question: 
 

It was noted, in relation to short and medium term projects, that a high level of 
expenditure would be required for mechanical equipment, for example.  A 

Page 86



 

 

Member asked whether the replacement/ maintenance costs of such equipment 
was taken into account in the calculations.  The Officer replied that this was not 
the case and for example where a new boiler was fitted the costing would have 
been for the initial cost of the boiler.  The Member suggested that the 
calculations might be incorrect and, as a result, the Council might end-up paying 
significantly more costs to cover maintenance, where needed.  The Officer 
advised that he would take this comment back to the relevant Director. 
  
Answer: Officers would advise and confirm that the detailed quantification process 
undertaken for each of the Plan’s projects include not only the cost of replacement 
technology but also a comparison of the annual maintenance costs/charges of the 
original equipment in situ and the proposed replacement, where appropriate.  

 

 Appendices Attached  
 

‘A’- Slough Borough Council’s Carbon Management Plan 2009 – 2014.  Circulated 
separately to Committee Members and available on request from Democratic Services 
(01753 875018) 
 

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



MEMBERS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 

COUNCILLOR 

 

07/06 01/07 09/09 07/10 10/11 02/12 13/01 27/01 03/03 31/03 

Bains 
 

P          

Bal 
 

P          

Basharat 
 

P          

Coad 
 

P          

Haines 
 

P          

Mann 
 

P          

O’Connor 
 

P          

Shine 
 

P          

Walsh 
 

P          

 
P   = Present for whole meeting  P*  = Present for part of meeting 
Ap = Apologies given   Ab = Absent, no apologies given 

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 7

P
a
g
e
 8

9



P
a
g
e
 9

0

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 is
 in

te
n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



  

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
FORWARD AGENDA PLAN 2010-11 

 

Meeting Scrutiny Items Other 
 

Final Report  
Deadline (5 pm) 

9 September, 2010 

• Performance & Financial Reporting 
2010 RP/JE 

• Assessing the Council’s property 
estate and estates within housing 
(condition, how energy  efficient, 
effective use of, etc) 

• Car parking in the town including 
recent changes, management of 
those changes,signage, 
outsourcing, etc 

• 2011 Census- ONS 
 
 

• Members attendance report 

• Forward Work Programme 
 

27 August, 2010 

7 October, 2010 

• Performance & Financial Reporting 
2010 RP/JE 

• Cabinet / CEO Forward Plan 
(provisional).  

• Travellers and Traveller Sites 

• Annual attitutude survey and 
action being taken to address 
problems. 

 

• Members attendance report 

• Forward Work Programme 
 

24 September, 2010 

10 November, 2010 
• Performance & Financial Reporting 

2010 RP/JE 
 

• Members attendance report 

• Forward Work Programme 
 

29 October, 2010 

2 December, 2010 

• Performance & Financial Reporting 
2010 RP/JE 

• Cabinet / CEO Forward Plan 
(provisional).  

• Members attendance report 

• Forward Work Programme 
 

10 November, 2010 

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 8

P
a
g
e
 9

1



  

 

13 January, 2011 

• Performance & Financial Reporting 
2010 RP/JE 

• Council Budget 
 

• Members attendance report 

• Forward Work Programme 
 

30 December, 2010 

27 January, 2011 

• Performance & Financial Reporting 
2010 RP/JE 

• Cabinet / CEO Forward Plan 
(provisional).  

• Chief Constable’s Annual Visit. 

• Council Budget 
 

• Members attendance report 

• Forward Work Programme 
 

14 January, 2011 

3 March, 2011 
• Performance & Financial Reporting 

2010 RP/JE 
 

• Members attendance report 

• Forward Work Programme 
 

18 February, 2011 

31 March, 2011 

• Performance & Financial Reporting 
2010 RP/JE 

• Cabinet / CEO Forward Plan 
(provisional).  

• Annual Scrutiny Report 
 

• Members attendance report 

• Forward Work Programme 
 

18 March, 2011 

Unprogrammed • Post-Implementation Review of Art @ 
the Centre Scheme (G Ralphs/R 
Kirkham)  

• Credit Union Report 

• Report on the impact of the budget on 
MyCouncil 

  

 

P
a
g
e
 9

2



. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN 
 

JUNE 2010 TO SEPTEMBER 2010 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

3



 SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN 
 

 
Slough Borough Council has a decision making process involving an Executive (Cabinet) and a Scrutiny Function. 
 
As part of the process, the Council will publish a Forward Plan. The Forward Plan sets out the decisions which the Cabinet intends to take over the 
following 4 months.  The Plan includes both Key and non Key decisions.  Key decisions are those which are financially significant or have a 
significant impact on 2 or more Wards in the Town. 
 
What will you find in the Forward Plan? 
 
For each decision, the plan will give: 

• The subject of the report. 

• Who will make the decision. 

• The date on which or the period in which the decision will be made. 

• Who will be consulted before the decision is taken. 

• How the proposed consultation will be undertaken. 

• How to make representations on the report and the deadline for submission of those representations. 

• A list of those documents considered in the preparation of the report. 
 
What is a Key Decision? 
 
An executive decision which is likely either: 

• To result in the Council Incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget 
for the service or function to which the decision relates; or 

• To be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area  comprising two or more wards within the borough. 
 
Where can you find a copy of the Forward Plan? 
 
The Plan will be updated and republished monthly.  A copy can be obtained. from Reception at the Town Hall on weekdays between 9.00 a.m. and 
4.45 p.m., from MyCouncil, Landmark Place, High Street, or from Democratic and Member Services, Room GN08, Town Hall, Bath Road, Slough, 
Tel: (01753) 875120, email: claire.gray@slough.gov.uk. Copies will be available in the Borough’s libraries and a copy will be published on Slough 
Borough Council’s Website. 

P
a
g
e
 9

4



For further information, contact Democratic and Member Services as detailed above. 
 

 
How can you have your say on Forward Plan reports? 
 
Each Report has a contact officer.  If you want to comment or make representations, notify the contact officer before the deadline given. 
 
What about the Papers considered when the decision is made? 
 
Reports relied on to make key decisions will be available for viewing through the contact officer or Democratic and Member Services. 
 
Can you attend the meeting at which the decision will be taken? 
 
Where decisions are made by the Cabinet, the majority of these will be made in open meetings.  Some decisions have to be taken in private, where 
they are exempt or confidential as detailed in the Local Government Act 1972. You will be able to attend the discussions on all other decisions. 
 
When will the decision come into force? 
 
Implementation of decisions will be delayed for 5 working days after Members are notified of the decisions to allow Members to refer the decisions 
to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, unless the decision is urgent, in which case it may be implemented immediately. 
 
What about key decisions taken by officers? 
 
Many of the Council’s decisions are taken by officers under delegated authority.  Key decisions will be listed with those to be taken by the Cabinet.  
Key decisions taken under delegated authority are reported monthly and you can see the list of these at the same locations as the Forward Plan. 
 
Are there exceptions to the above arrangements? 
 
There will be occasions when it will not be possible to include a decision/report in the Forward Plan.  If a key decision is not in the Forward Plan but 
cannot be delayed until it can be published in the Forward Plan, it can still be taken if: 
 

• The Deputy Borough Secretary has informed the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or relevant Scrutiny Panel in writing, of the 
proposed decision/action.  (In the absence of the above, the Mayor and Deputy Mayor will be consulted); 

• Copies of the Notice have been made available to the Public; and 

• At least 5 working days have passed since public notice was given. 

• If the decision is too urgent to comply with the above requirement, the agreement of the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has 
been obtained that the decision cannot be reasonably deferred.

P
a
g
e
 9

5



 

Portfolio Key – F&S = Finance and Strategy, P & A = Performance and Accountability, C & L = Cultural and Leisure, E & C =Education and Children, O & S = Opportunity and Skills,  E & O = 
Environment and Open Spaces, H & W = Health and Wellbeing, N & R  = Neighbourhoods and Renewal 
 
Bold – Key Decision          Non-Bold – Non-Key Decision Italics – Performance/Monitoring Report 

CABINET - Monday, 14th June, 2010 
 

Item Port-
folio 

Ward Priority Contact Officer Consultation & 
Participation 

Other 
Committee 

Background 
Documents 

New 
Item 

Performance and Financial Monitoring 
2010/11 
 
To present a report to Cabinet with 

information on: 

• Risks 
• Update on financial systems 

• Compliance 

• Service Performance  

• BV PIs and LAA targets 

• Balance scorecard 
 

F&S All; All Julie Evans, Strategic 
Director of Resources, 
Roger Parkin, Director of 
Improvement & 
Development 
Tel: 01753 875300, Tel: 
(01753) 875207 

 
 
 

Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
07/06/2010 

None. 
 

 

Statement of Accounts and Outturn 
Position 2009/10 
 
To present to Cabinet the Statement of 
Accounts for the 2009/10 financial 
year. 
 

F&S All All Julie Evans, Strategic 
Director of Resources, 
Annal Nayyar, Deputy 
Director, Finance 
Tel: 01753 875300, 
Tel: 01753 477228  

 Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
07/06/2010 

  

Heart of Slough Update Report 
 

N&R All; 
Central 

A Cleaner, 
Greener place to 
live, Work and 
Play; Being Safe, 
Feeling Safe; 
Prosperity for All; 

Neil Simon, Interim 
Assistant Director, 
Property Services, Julie 
Evans, Strategic 
Director of Resources 
Tel: 01753 875898, Tel: 
01753 875300 

 
 
 

 None. 
 

√ 

P
a
g
e
 9

6



CABINET - Monday, 14th June, 2010 
 

Portfolio Key – F&S = Finance and Strategy, P & A = Performance and Accountability, C & L = Cultural and Leisure, E & C =Education and Children, O & S = Opportunity and Skills,  E & O = 

Environment and Open Spaces, H & W = Health and Wellbeing, N & R  = Neighbourhoods and Renewal 
 
Bold – Key Decision          Non-Bold – Non-Key Decision Italics – Performance/Monitoring Report 

Item Port-
folio 

Ward Priority Contact Officer Consultation & 
Participation 

Other 
Committee 

Background 
Documents 

New 
Item 

Housing Futures - Provision of 
Housing Management Services 
 
To report to Cabinet on the progress 
of the transfer of housing 
management services to direct 
provision. 
 

N&R All; All Neil Aves, Assistant 
Director of Housing 
Tel: (01753) 875527 

 
 
 

 None. 
 

 

Statutory Service Delivery Plans 
 
To seek Cabinet endorsement for 
Statutory Service Plans in relation to: 
 

• Food Safety Service 

• Health and Safety  Service 

• Trading Standards Service 
 

in accordance with the requirements laid 
down by external agencies. 
 
 

E&O All; A Cleaner, Greener 
place to live, Work 
and Play; Adding 
Years to Life and Life 
to Years; Being Safe, 
Feeling Safe; 

Keith Eaglestone, 
Trading Standards 
Manager, Ginny de 
Haan, Food & Safety 
Manager 
Tel: 01753 875260, 
Tel: 01753 477912 

 
 
 

 Food Standards 
Agency 
Framework 
Document, Health 
and Safety 
Commission 
Section 18 
Standard, 
National 
Indicators for 
Local Authorities 
and Local 
Authority 
Partnerships. 

 

Primary School Places Action Plan 2011-
13 
 
To present to Cabinet the latest Primary 
School Places Action Plan. 
 

E&C All Prosperity for all Clair Pyper, Strategic 
Director of Education 
and Children's 
Services, SBC 
Tel: (01753) 875704 

i) All primary 
schools have been 
visited individually 
to discuss 
expansion 
ii) Draft was 
circulated to 
Primary Heads 
iii) Draft approved 
by School organis- 
ation Group 
 

 School Places 
Plan 2009-19 
 

√ 

P
a
g
e
 9

7



CABINET - Monday, 14th June, 2010 
 

Portfolio Key – F&S = Finance and Strategy, P & A = Performance and Accountability, C & L = Cultural and Leisure, E & C =Education and Children, O & S = Opportunity and Skills,  E & O = 
Environment and Open Spaces, H & W = Health and Wellbeing, N & R  = Neighbourhoods and Renewal 
 
Bold – Key Decision          Non-Bold – Non-Key Decision Italics – Performance/Monitoring Report 

Item Port-
folio 

Ward Priority Contact Officer Consultation & 
Participation 

Other 
Committee 

Background 
Documents 

New 
Item 

LACM7 - Slough's Carbon Management 
Plan: 2010 - 2014 
 
To seek Cabinet endorsement of the 
Council’s Carbon Management Plan 
2010 – 2014 for submission to the 
Carbon Trust on 31 March 2010 
 

E&O All A cleaner, greener 
place to live work 
and play 

Amanda Renn, Policy 
Officer 
Tel: 01753 875560 

 
 
 

Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
25/02/10 

None. 
 

 

Scheme of Delegation to Officers 
 
To agree the Scheme of Delegation to 
Officers insofar at it applies to Executive 
functions. 
 

P&A All  Catherine Meek, 
Deputy Borough 
Secretary 
Tel: (01753) 875011 

 
 
 

 None. 
 

 

References from Overview and Scrutiny 
 
To present recommendations to Cabinet 
from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Scrutiny Panels. 
 

P&A All  Teresa Clark, Senior 
Democratic Services 
Officer 
Tel: 01753 875018 

 
 
 

 None. 
 

 

Executive Forward Plan 
 
To present to Cabinet the latest 
published Forward Plan. 
 

P&A All;  Catherine Meek, 
Deputy Borough 
Secretary 
Tel: (01753) 875011 

 
 
 

 Slough Borough 
Council's 
Constitution 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 9

8



 

Portfolio Key – F&S = Finance and Strategy, P & A = Performance and Accountability, C & L = Cultural and Leisure, E & C =Education and Children, O & S  = Opportunity and Skills,  E & O = 
Environment and Open Spaces, H & W = Health and Wellbeing, N & R  = Neighbourhoods and Renewal 
 
Bold – Key Decision          Non-Bold – Non-Key Decision Italics – Performance/Monitoring Report 

 

 

CABINET - Monday, 12th July, 2010 
 

Item Port-
folio 

Ward Priority Contact Officer Consultation & 
Participation 

Other 
Committee 

Background 
Documents 

New 
Item 

Performance and Financial Monitoring 
2010/11 
 
To present to Cabinet information on: 

• GF position 

• GF balances 

• Capital expenditure 

• Prudential borrowing, lending & 
Investments 

• Summary reports  

• High risks expenditure/ income 

• Virements to date 

• Risk assessment- revenue & capital 

• Employee / agency 

• Balance scorecard 

• BV PIs and LAA targets 
 

P&A, 
F&S 

All All Julie Evans, Strategic 
Director of Resources, 
Roger Parkin, Director 
of Improvement & 
Development 
Tel: 01753 875300, 
Tel: (01753) 875207 

 
 
 

Overview 
and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
01/07/2010 

None. 
 

 

Parking Enforcement Policy 
 

N&R All Being Safe, Feeling 
Safe; Prosperity for 
All 

Kam Hothi, Parking 
Enforcement Manager 
Tel: 01753 787899 

 
 
 

 None. 
 

 

Berkshire Minerals and Waste Core 
Strategy 
 

N&R All A Cleaner, Greener 
place to live, Work 
and Play; 

Paul Stimpson, Head 
of Planning Policy & 
Projects 
Tel: (01753) 875820 

 
 
 

 None. 
 

√ 

P
a
g
e
 9

9



CABINET - Monday, 12th July, 2010 
 

Portfolio Key – F&S = Finance and Strategy, P & A = Performance and Accountability, C & L = Cultural and Leisure, E & C =Education and Children, O & S = Opportunity and Skills,  E & O = 
Environment and Open Spaces, H & W = Health and Wellbeing, N & R  = Neighbourhoods and Renewal 
 
Bold – Key Decision          Non-Bold – Non-Key Decision Italics – Performance/Monitoring Report 

Item Port-
folio 

Ward Priority Contact Officer Consultation & 
Participation 

Other 
Committee 

Background 
Documents 

New 
Item 

Trading Standards - Age Restricted Sales 
Enforcement 
 
To present a report to cabinet on the 
following areas of work to have ongoing 
support and approval: : 

• Under age testing purchases of 
alcohol, knives, solvents, tobacco etc.  

• Work in schools with theatrical 
presentations on knives, alcohol 
awareness with workshops  

• Provision of Free proof of age card for 
all schoolchildren over 16 years of age  

• Trader education packs to all relevant 
traders within borough Trader 
education seminars 

 

H&W All Being Safe, Feeling 
Safe; 

Keith Eaglestone, 
Trading Standards 
Manager 
Tel: 01753 875260 

 
 
 

 None. 
 

√ 

References from Overview and Scrutiny 
 
To present recommendations to Cabinet 
from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Scrutiny Panels. 
 

P&A All All Teresa Clark, Senior 
Democratic Services 
Officer 
Tel: 01753 875018 

 
 
 

 None. 
 

 

Executive Forward Plan 
 
To present to Cabinet the latest 
published Forward Plan. 
 

P&A All All Catherine Meek, 
Deputy Borough 
Secretary 
Tel: (01753) 875011 

 
 
 

 Slough Borough 
Council's 
Constitution 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
0



 

Portfolio Key – F&S = Finance and Strategy, P & A = Performance and Accountability, C & L = Cultural and Leisure, E & C =Education and Children, O & S  = Opportunity and Skills,  E & O = 
Environment and Open Spaces, H & W = Health and Wellbeing, N & R  = Neighbourhoods and Renewal 
 
Bold – Key Decision          Non-Bold – Non-Key Decision Italics – Performance/Monitoring Report 

 

 

CABINET - Monday, 20th September, 2010 
 

Item Port-
folio 

Ward Priority Contact Officer Consultation & 
Participation 

Other 
Committee 

Background 
Documents 

New 
Item 

Performance and Financial Monitoring 
2010/11 
 
To present to Cabinet information on: 

• GF position 
• GF balances 

• Delivery against efficiency agenda 

• HRA 

• Summary reports  

• Other budgets/contingencies/reserves 

• High risks expenditure/ income 

• Virements to date 

• Grants 

• Trading accounts 

• Debt recovery 

• BV PIs and LAA targets 

• Balance scorecard 

• Update on financial systems 
 

P&A, 
F&S 

All; All Julie Evans, Strategic 
Director of Resources, 
Roger Parkin, Director 
of Improvement & 
Development 
Tel: 01753 875300, 
Tel: (01753) 875207 

 
 
 

Overview & 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
09/09/10 

None. 
 

√ 

References from Overview and Scrutiny 
 
To present recommendations to Cabinet 
from the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and Scrutiny Panels. 
 

P&A All; All Teresa Clark, Senior 
Democratic Services 
Officer 
Tel: 01753 875018 

 
 
 

 None. 
 

√ 

Executive Forward Plan 
 
To present to Cabinet the latest 
published Forward Plan. 
 

P&A, 
F&S 

All; All Catherine Meek, 
Deputy Borough 
Secretary 
Tel: (01753) 875011 

 
 
 

 Slough Borough 
Council's 
Constitution 
 

√ 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1



P
a
g
e
 1

0
2

T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 is
 in

te
n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Last Meeting held on 7th June, 2010
	3 Financial Performance Reporting for 2009/10
	4 Unemployment and the response to the Economic Downturn
	a Appendix 1 - Claimant Count
	b1 Managers and Senior Officials - Appendix 2a
	b2 Professional Occupations - Appendix 2b
	b3 Associate professional  technical - Appendix 2c
	b4 Administrative  Secretarial - Appendix 2d
	b7 Sales and customer service occs - Appendix 2e
	b8 Process plant  machine operatives - Appendix 2f
	b9 Elementary occupations - Appendix 2g
	c1 No qualifications - Appendix 3a
	c2 NVQ1 and above Slough - Appendix 3b
	c3 NVQ2 and above - Appendix 3c
	c4 NVQ3 and above - Appendix 3d
	c5 NVQ4 and above - Appendix 3e
	c6 Other Qualifications - Appendix 3f

	5 Census 2011 Update- Presentation
	6 Carbon Management Plan- 2009/2014
	7 Member's Attendance Record
	8 Forward Agenda Plan
	May Forward Plan


